GUILFORD COUNTY

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
PLANNING BOARD

Regular Meeting Agenda
NC Cooperative Extension — Agricultural Center
3309 Burlington Road, Greensboro NC 27405
April 12, 2023
6:00 PM

. Roll Call

. Agenda Amendments

. Approval of Minutes: January 11, 2023 and February 8, 2023

. Rules and Procedures

Continuance Requests
Old Business

None

. New Business

Legislative Hearing Item(s)

REZONING CASE #23-1-PLBD-00035: AG, AGRICULTURAL, TO LI, LIGHT INDUSTRIAL: 107 MARSHALL
SMITH ROAD

Located at 107 Marshall Smith Road (Guilford County Tax Parcel #170647 in Deep River Township),
the subject of this request is approximately 290 feet north of the intersection of Marshall Smith Road
and W. Market Street and comprises approximately 7.37 acres.

This is a request to rezone the property from AG, Agricultural, to LI, Light Industrial.

The proposed rezoning is not consistent with the Guilford County Airport Area Plan recommendation
of Mixed Use; therefore, if the request is approved, a plan amendment to Non-Residential will be
required.

400 W Market Street
Post Office Box 3427, Greensboro, North Carolina 27402
Telephone 336-641-3334 Fax 336-641-6988
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Information for REZONING CASE #23-1-PLBD-00035 can be viewed by scrolling to the April 12, 2023,
Agenda Packet at https://www.guilfordcountync.gov/our-county/planning-development/boards-
commissions/planning-board

Evidentiary Hearing Item(s)

SPECIAL USE PERMIT CASE #23-03-PLBD-00039: ENERGY SUBSTATION (MAJOR UTILITY); 1872
ANDREWS FARM RD

Located at 1872 Andrews Farm Road (Guilford County Tax Parcel #229086 in Jefferson Township) at
the northwest intersection of McConnell Road and comprises approximately 12.53 acres. The subject
parcel is zoned AG, Agricultural.

This is a request for approval of a Special Use Permit for an Energy Substation and the associated
Sketch Site Plan. Energy substations are allowed as a Major Utility in the AG district pursuant to the
Guilford County Unified Development Ordinance.

To view guidelines for Special Use Permit and quasi-judicial evidentiary proceedings please visit the following
link: https://www.guilfordcountync.gov/home/showpublisheddocument/11981/637588495341247655

Information for SPECIAL USE PERMIT CASE #23-03-PLBD-00039 can be viewed by scrolling to the April 12,
2023 Agenda Packet at https://www.guilfordcountync.gov/our-county/planning-development/boards-
commissions/planning-board. A copy of the Sketch Site Plan also is included under the MEETING CASE
INFORMATION section at the link above.

. Other Business

Rules and Procedures (to be presented at the meeting, no vote requested at this time)
Comprehensive Plan Update

Adjourn

400 W Market Street
Post Office Box 3427, Greensboro, North Carolina 27402
Telephone 336-641-3334 Fax 336-641-6988



(Insert Color Paper)



GUILFORD COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 1/11/2023 Page 1

GUILFORD COUNTY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES

NC Cooperative Extension — Agricultural Center
3309 Burlington Road, Greensboro NC 27405

January 11, 2023, 6:00 PM

A. Roll Call
The following Board members were in attendance in person for this meeting:
James Donnelly, Chair; Sam Stalder; Jason Little; Dr. Nho Bui; David Craft; Ryan Alston; and Cara

Buchanan

The following Board member was not in attendance at this meeting:
Guy Gullick

The following staff members were in attendance in-person for this meeting:
J. Leslie Bell, Planning and Development Director; Oliver Bass, Senior Planner; Aaron Calloway, Planner
I; Jessie Baptist, Administrative Officer; Rachel Teague, Office Specialist; L. Clyde Harding, Community
Environmental Services Program Manager; and Stephen Thomas, Fire Marshal
B. Agenda Amendments
None

C. Approval of Minutes: December 14, 2022

Mr. Alston moved to approve the 12/14/22 minutes, seconded by Ms. Buchanan. The Board voted 6-
0 in favor of the motion. (Ayes: Donnelly, Buchanan, Craft, Little, Bui and Alston. Nays: None.)

D. Rules and Procedures

Chair Donnelly provided information to everyone present regarding the Rules and Procedures
followed by the Guilford County Planning Board.

At this time, Mr. Stalder arrived for the remainder of the meeting.
E. Continuance Requests

None
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F. Old Business
Legislative Hearing Item(s)
CONDITIONAL ZONING CASE #22-10-PLBD-00024: FROM CZ-HI (ref. CASE #18-08-GCPL-04979)
CONDITIONAL ZONING-HEAVY INDUSTRIAL TO CZ-HI AMENDED CONDITIONAL ZONING-HEAVY
INDUSTRIAL: 2103 BISHOP ROAD (APPROVED)

Aaron Calloway stated that this request is located at 2103 Bishop Road (Guilford County Tax Parcel
#141333 in Sumner Township), south of the intersection of Bishop Road with Vermont Drive and
comprising approximately 7.05 acres. The request is to conditionally zone the subject parcel from Cz-
HI (ref. Case #20-09-GCPL-07186) to amend the current conditions. The current development
condition of the property is: there shall be no landfill activities on the property for the adjacent LCID
and C&D landfills. The applicant proposes to remove this current development condition and include
the following use condition: All uses allowed in the HI zoning district shall be prohibited except solid
waste transfer station and recycling facilities. The land is gently sloping, moderately sloping, and
steeply sloping. The adjacent properties to the west and south are similarly zoned for heavy industrial
uses. The property to the northwest is a recycling center, and the property to the south, which is the
subject of the Special Use Permit Case #22-10-PLBD-00025, has been used as a quarry and landfill.
Both are under the same property owner. The northern adjacent property is zoned RS-40, Single
Family Residential, and is undeveloped. Between the access for Tax Parcel #141332 and Tax Parcel
#141335, which is zoned HI and used for asphalt production, is a parcel also zoned RS-40. Tax Parcel
#141349, 0.21 of an acre, is isolated inside of Tax Parcel #141333 (the subject parcel), and is zoned
RS-40. The lot is vacant and designated as Heavy Industrial under the Southern Area Plan. The
proposed rezoning is partially consistent with the Southern Area Plan recommendation of Heavy
Industrial (HI) and Light Industrial (LI), thus, if approved, an Area Plan amendment for the LI portion
to HI will be required.

Chair Donnelly asked if there was anyone in the audience who wished to speak in favor or in
opposition to this request.

Tom Terrell, attorney representing the applicants, stated that he wished to introduce Ron and Betty
Petty, the owners of A-1 Sandrock. He started representing A-1 Sandrock in 1989 through their
Grandfather, Gene Petty. He pointed out that this the applicant is required by the rules of the NCDOT
for Solid Waste Permits to transcribe the hearings related to this property. The transcript will go to
Raleigh. All this land is on Bishop Road, and it goes back to the 1850s and was owned by the Bishop
family, and a lot of it is still owned by the Bishop family. This is land that they have taken care of and
used in different ways throughout these 175 years. This particular tract is one that they don’t have a
business plan for yet, but while they were going through rezoning of other tracts, they wanted to go
ahead and do that. It is already zoned HI, and because of that, there are all the uses allowed in the
Table of Permitted Uses. This request eliminates those uses except for two (2), one of which is a
transfer station for Municipal Solid Waste (MSU), the other of which is recycling. There was a
neighborhood meeting on January 4", which was a four-hour meeting, drop-in — drop-out. The
properties across the street are Martin-Marietta and Republic Industries, and there is an asphalt plant
to the east and C&D landfill to the west. There is a rectangle in the middle that is not owned by A-1
Sandrock. It is owned by the Goins family and is now owned by 2" and 3™ generation heirs. He is
having a difficult time finding all the heirs, but they have initiated conversations with one of the family
members, who has graciously agreed to become a petitioner in a Partition Proceeding so that that
one acre can be purchased and the proceeds divided up according to their interest. He is here to
answer any questions the Board members might have. He also mentioned Mr. David Garrett, Solid
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Waste Engineer, who will be designing this property at such time as they go through for permitting,
and he can answer questions as well.

Chair Donnelly clarified that Mr. Terrell has stated that there is no plan at this point for a future
business or rezoning; this only creates the opportunity for that to be done in the future.

There being no other speakers either in favor or in opposition to the request, the public hearing was
closed.

Mr. Little moved to close the public hearing, seconded by Dr. Bui.

The Board voted 7-0 in favor of the motion. (Ayes: Donnelly, Buchanan, Craft, Stalder, Little, Bui and
Alston. Nays: None.)

Discussion/Motion

Mr. Craft moved to approve this zoning map amendment for Guilford County Tax Parcel #141333
from CZ-HI to CZ-HI Amended because this approval also amends the Southern Area Plan. The zoning
amendment and associated Southern Plan amendment are based on the following changes in the
conditions of the Southern Area Plan: Changing the LI portion of the parcel to HI to allow a potential
waste handling facility to operate here. This amendment is reasonable and in the public interest
because the requested conditional HIl zoning is reasonable because the property is already
conditionally zoned Heavy Industrial, particularly the subject parcels associated with a large debris
recycling complex, which includes various lots. Completion of said complex will ensure a necessary
and orderly venue for various forms of solid waste for the public, and are not likely to disturb
populated areas, seconded by Ms. Buchanan. The Board voted 7-0 in favor of the motion. (Ayes:
Donnelly, Buchanan, Craft, Little, Stalder, Bui and Alston. Nays: None.)

CONDITIONAL ZONING CASE #22-10-PLBD-00023: FROM AG, AGRICULTURAL TO CZ-HI, CONDITIONAL
ZONING-HEAVY INDUSTRIAL: 2075 ZZ BISHOP ROAD (APPROVED)

Chair Donnelly stated that he understands that there are some additional conditions that are going to
be proposed.

Tom Terrell, attorney representing the applicants, stated that his clients (A-1 Sandrock, Inc) have been
working closely with the neighborhood, and there are some offers of conditions, and he would like to
read them into the record:

1) There shall be no access to Concord Church Road. .

2) The height of the facility shall be limited to 185’. (This condition was approved by the County
in 2018, under the current Special Use Permit..

3) Applicant shall use soil removed during construction of the CDLF cells to construct a berm
along the southeastern border of tax parcel #234575. Upon completion, the berm shall be no
less than 1,200 linear feet and at least 15’ in height, with a variety of evergreens planted along
the berm crest, approximately 8 to 10 feet apart. Evergreens shall be selected from varieties
expected to reach at least 15’ in height at maturity. The evergreens shall be maintained, and
dead or diseased plants shall be replaced quarterly, depending upon seasonal conditions.
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4) Hours of operations shall be limited to 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday and 8:00
a.m. to 1:00 p.m. on Saturdays and no work on Sundays.

At this time, all Board members (7-0) voiced their acceptance of the conditions, as read above.

Oliver Bass stated that this request is located at 2075 ZZ Bishop Road, Guilford County Tax Parcel
#234575 in Sumner Township, approximately 100 feet from the terminus of Concord Church Road and
comprises approximately 14.73 acres. This is a request to conditionally rezone property from AG to
CZ-HI with the use conditions as read into the record and accepted by the Board. The AG district is
intended to provide locations for agricultural operations, farm residences, and farm tenant housing
on large tracts of land. This district is further intended to reduce conflict between residential and
agricultural uses and preserve viability of agricultural operations. The HI district is intended to
accommodate a broad range of heavy industrial uses including manufacturing, wholesale, fabrication,
resource extraction and specialized industrial operations that may create adverse impacts on
incompatible uses including residential or sensitive habitats. Development should have access to
arterial streets and highways. The CZ district is intended to establish as a companion district for every
district established in Section 4-2 of the UDO. All regulations which apply to a general use zoning
district also apply to the companion conditional zoning. All other regulations which may be offered by
the property owner and approved by the Planning Board as part of the rezoning process apply. The
proposed rezoning is inconsistent with the Southern Area Plan recommendation of Rural Residential
and Agricultural; thus, if approved, an Area Plan amendment to Heavy Industrial (HI) is required.

Slides were presented for the Board members’ review showing that this is in a heavily industrialized
area south of the subject parcel with uses that include the A-1 Sandrock landfill, an asphalt plant, and
a truck terminal on Bishop Road. The area South of the property subject to the rezoning request
consists of low-density, single-family residential subdivided lots along Concord Church Road. The
existing land uses on the property are as follows: The subject property is currently undeveloped, and
there is a Duke Energy easement located along the southern boundary of the property, which is “A”
on the map shown. Surrounding uses are the Sandrock landfill operation. While the southern portion
of the lots has a LCDR landfill, the portion that fronts on Concord Church Road is primarily
undeveloped. The property to the west immediately adjacent to the property is primarily
undeveloped. There are no inventoried historic properties on the site and no known cemeteries are
located on the site.

Chair Donnelly asked if there was anyone in the audience who wished to speak in favor of this request.

Tom Terrell, attorney representing the applicant, stated that he hopes the Planning Board notices that
the number of people in the room is much smaller than last month. That is because of the
neighborhood meeting with people who lived as much as a % mile away from the site. This is a C&D
landfill, which means Construction and Demolition and is not something that is talked about very
often, but it is something that every growing community has to have. Anytime a house is built there
is left-over construction materials that must be removed from the property. Therefore, these types
of facilities are very important for our growing community. This 14-acre facility recycles these
materials on a daily basis. The materials are contained, and this is a very clean facility with very little
debris blowing around.

In response to a question posed, Mr. Terrell stated that with regard to the concrete and asphalt, it is
crushed and used for different types of aggregate. All of the wood is ground up and used for mulch,
which is sold to the public for its use. With regard to the proposed berm that would use the soil that
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is removed from the site, Mr. Terrell stated that he would explain how a landfill is constructed.
Landfills are built in cells. They dig out the soil, and if it is a lined landfill, the liner is installed, and one
spot is filled, and then when that one is capped, they move on to the next cell. Each cell is very
carefully, intricate and detailed engineered. There should be enough soil available to fill and cap each
cell. Berms stop just about all the sound from the facility, and the evergreens that would grow on top
of the berm would be an added visual buffer.

David Garrett, a registered engineer practicing Civil and Geotechnical Engineering for many decades
was introduced. He’s also a licensed geologist dealing with landfills most of his career, in excess of 30
years. Regarding the technical aspects of the facility, typical questions that they receive deal with the
nature of the waste - what is it, is it putrescible, is it infectious, etc. It is not any of those things. As
Mr. Terrell has described, it includes inert materials that are left over from construction, or if a building
is taken down and some of the materials that cannot readily be recycled, they would come to this
facility. There are no odors related to the facility that escape the boundaries, such as food and other
waste. No one has commented that they have encountered an odor from this facility. There are no
birds, rats, or other types of wildlife that are attracted to this waste. He knows this site very well and
has been there since it opened and has had the pleasure of working with three generations of the
Petty family, and they are genuine people. The landfill does, and will continue to, meet all of the local
zoning conditions, requirements, as well as the State’s permitting requirements. This facility is
monitored and permitted by the NC Department of Environmental Quality located in Raleigh. There
are agents in Winston-Salem and they make regular inspections of the facility to verify that they are
in compliance. Another question that is sometimes raised, relates to the groundwater conditions of
the facility. With groundwater being the resource that it is, the facility is designed and monitored in
order to protect groundwater quality. There have been no violations in groundwater at this facility.
Groundwater flows away from the community that brought these concerns on Concord Church Road.
Several people have wells there, and groundwater from the facility flows away from those residences.
There have also been no violations for operations, and the facility is very well run. This is one of the
best facilities he has dealt with in the State, and he has worked on about 100 facilities.

Chair Donnelly asked if there was anyone wishing to speak in opposition.

Richard Coleman, who owns the property at 2372 Concord Church Road, stated that this started out
as a recycling center, and they recycled everything. It looks like they’ve buried more than anything
over there, and he just wants to know why. There is no fence containing the blowable trash that blows
around everywhere. He brought pictures showing the debris and trash blowing around. There are
plastics, vinyls, and other contaminants that go in there, and they do break down, and they are very
contaminating. He would like to see an Environmental Impact Study on this facility before a decision
is made on this. If this request is approved, he would like the berm to be built immediately and not
two years from now. He also wanted to know why they need to expand the landfill if they’re trying to
put a transfer station in there?

Mr. Alston asked if Mr. Coleman was aware and attended the neighborhood meeting, and Mr.
Coleman responded that he did attend that meeting and also another meeting the week before. Dr.
Bui asked how much debris he was talking about that is blowing around? Mr. Coleman offered his cell
phone for anyone wishing to see the video he had taken of the facility showing the blowing debris. In
response to another question, Mr. Coleman stated that he owns the property, but he does not live
there. He also pointed out that there are animals that come to the property, such as birds. There are
lots of birds.
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Ira Knight owns a parcel in the area marked “G” to the south on the map. He stated that he is neither
for or against, he just wanted to make a comment. They (he) grow tobacco, sweet potatoes, and
winter wheat. He learned about this hearing a few weeks ago, but he wasn’t aware of a community
meeting. He does not own a parcel that adjoins the parcel marked “A”.

Rebuttal in favor

Tom Terrell responded to comments made and stated that with regard to Mr. Knight, he spoke with
him on the phone today and had an opportunity to answer questions. Mr. Knight was outside of the
notification area, and he did not sign up to receive any notifications. Regarding the trash, any time
you have light materials, there is going to be some blowing. A-1 Sandrock has its employees out there
on a regular basis picking up the trash, and they are required to do that by their permit. It is not a
daily chore, but it is something that they do regularly. The berm that is offered as a condition, with
the trees on top, should prevent any and all of the lightweight materials on windy days from leaving
the site.

David Garrett stated that with regard to the blowing trash, it is an operational requirement that the
blowing debris be managed, as Mr. Terrell mentioned. They also have an operations cover
requirement, where swells apply to the working surface on a periodic basis in order to prevent that
blowing material. The facility has not had any violations for blowing debris, and they do a good job of
keeping it picked up because they don’t have any violations. Regarding the birds, someone may see
some birds out there, but they are not of the scavenging variety like sea gulls, vultures, and things
that would be attracted to an MSW (household waste) landfill. In response to a question about soil
cover is an application of 6” average depth of soil to completely cover the waste within an operating
cell. The cells are usually at % acre or less or a 1-week period or less, the maximums for C&Ds.

Rebuttal in opposition

Richard Coleman returned and stated that they are proposing to build a 12’ — 15’ berm with the trees,
which would be 185’ high, and what good is that going to do? The City of Greensboro builds a fence
to contain their blowable trash, this one has no containment at all. There are vultures out there on
the power lines that hang out at the landfill.

Calvin Hanes, 2369 Concord Church Road, stated that his property is beside “D” on the map (of
property owners). He stated that he is in favor of the request. Mr. Petty talked with him and assured
him that he is going to build a berm across that property. As far as he is concerned, it is his land, and
he can do whatever he wants to there.

With regard to the debris blowing around, he has not seen any debris on his property, and he is 300-
400 feet away. He does not have a problem with it. He also talked to Doggett who owns the land
beside him, and he is also going to put a 20’ berm up and plant trees on it. He can sit on his deck and
see the A-1 property and he thinks the proposed berm will be very helpful. He has lived there 68 years
and he doesn’t have any problem with it.

Dr. Bui moved to close the public hearing, seconded by Ms. Buchanan. The Board voted 7-0 in favor
of the motion.



GUILFORD COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 1/11/2023 Page 7

Discussion/Motion

Mr. Alston stated that he attended the community meeting, and he expected a bigger turnout
because of the crowd that attended last month. He feels it said a lot to how hard they worked on
looking at adjacent properties in the community, so he would also approve the request because of
how they extinguished the fire from the last meeting. He applauds their efforts.

Mr. Craft moved to approve the zoning amendment for property located at Guilford County Tax Parcel
#234575 from AG to CZ-HI with the conditions that were previously accepted by the Board. This
approval also amends the Southern Area Plan by changing the parcel from AG to CZ-HI. This
amendment is reasonable in the public interest even though it is inconsistent with the Area Plan,
because it is basically an extension of Conditional Zoning for C&D landfill immediately north. Both
parcels are under the same ownership and the request proposes similar zoning conditions. The
proposed uses are similar to other uses south of the subject parcel, anda minimum 50’ Type-A buffer
is required from the adjacent residentially-zoned properties. Pursuant to the Guilford County Unified
Development Ordinance, access to the landfill site from Concord Church Road is restricted and C&D
landfills provide a means to properly dispose of waste-related materials, seconded by Dr. Bui. The
Board voted 7-0 in favor of the motion. (Ayes: Donnelly, Buchanan, Craft, Stalder, Little, Bui and
Alston. Nays: None.)

At this time a short break was taken from 7:05 until 7:15 p.m.
For the following case, the attorney representing the applicant had provided his own stenographer who

was to provide a verbatim transcript to the Planning Board. Therefore, the reporter retained by the County
left the meeting at 7:20 p.m.

Evidentiary Hearing Item(s)

SPECIAL USE PERMIT CASE #22-10-PLBD-00025: CONSTRUCTION AND DEMOLITION DEBRIS
LANDFILL, MAJOR AND ACCESSORY USES ON CONDITIONAL ZONING-HEAVY INDUSTRIAL (CZ-HI)
ZONED PROPERTY: 2111 BISHOP ROAD

Located at 2111 Bishop Road (Guilford County Tax Parcel #141332 and includes Tax Parcel #234575
located at 2075 ZZ Bishop Road in Sumner Township) and comprises approximately 86.7 acres. Tax
Parcel #141332 is currently under a Special Use Permit (Ref Case #31-01 SP and amendment Case 18-
08-GCPL-04985 SP) for a Major Land Clearing and Inert Debris (LCID) Landfill, a Major Construction
and Demolition Debris (C&D) Landfill, and Sandrock Mining Operation.

This request is for a Special Use Permit for a Major Construction and Demolition Debris Landfill with
the following conditions: (1) 30-foot buffer along parcels 141335 and 141336 shall remain as
undisturbed vegetative buffer; and (2) Access from Concord Church Road shall be for emergency
access only (not for day-to-day operations) and this access will be gated and locked; Facility height
(i.e. height of landfill) shall be limited to 185 feet. Subject properties are currently zoned CZ-HI (Ref
Case #30-01) and pending zoning CZ-HI (Ref Case #22-10-PLBD-00023). The request would extend the
C&D landfill operation to Parcel #234575. This request includes an associated Sketch Site Plan.

[SEE ATTACHED TRANSCRIPT]
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G. New Business
None
H. Other Business
Comprehensive Plan Update
I. Adjourn

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 8:30 p.m.

The next scheduled meeting is February 8, 2023.



TRANSCRIPT

IN RE: A-1 SANDROCK
Guilford County Planninig Board Hearing on 01/11/2023

© 00 N o o A~ w N Pk

e
= O

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

| N RE:

A-1 Sandrock

Condi ti onal Zoni ng Case Nunber 22-10- PLBD- 000023
Speci al Use Permt Case Nunber 22-10-PLBD- 000025

GUI LFORD COUNTY PLANNI NG BOARD HEARI NG

DATE: Wednesday, January 11, 2023
TI ME: 6:23 p.m
LOCATI ON: NC Cooperative Extension -

GQui |l ford County Center
3309 Burlington Road
Greensboro, NC 27405

REPORTER: Li sa Taylor, RPR, Notary Public

www.huseby.com Huseby Global Litigation 800-333-2082


http://www.huseby.com

IN RE: A-1 SANDROCK
Guilford County Planninig Board Hearing on 01/11/2023 Page 2

I NDEX

Appearance Page . ... ... ... e 3
Exhibit Page ....... ... ... . . . . . . . . 5
Certified Questions ........... ... .. ... ..., None
Reporter's Certificate Page ................... 120
Errata Sheet . ... ... . .. . . ... N A

© 00 N o 0o b~ w N PP

N DD N N NDMDN P P P PP PR PR
o A W N P O © 0N O Ol A WO N — O

www.huseby.com Huseby Global Litigation 800-333-2082


http://www.huseby.com

IN RE: A-1 SANDROCK

Guilford County Planninig Board Hearing on 01/11/2023 Page 3
1 APPEARANCES
2 For the Applicant:
3 FOX ROTHSCHI LD
BY: THOVAS E. TERRELL, JR , ESQ
4 230 N. Elm Street
Suite 1200
5 G eensboro, NC 27401
6 PHONE: (336) 378-5412
. E-MAIL: tterrell @oxrothschild.com
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
www.huseby.com Huseby Global Litigation 800-333-2082


http://www.huseby.com

IN RE: A-1 SANDROCK
Guilford County Planninig Board Hearing on 01/11/2023 Page 4

BOARD MEMBERS
JAVES DONNELLY, CHAI RVAN
AARON CALLOWAY
OLl VER BASS
J. LESLIE BELL
SAM STALDER
CARA BUCHANAN
RYAN ALSTON
DAVI D CRAFT
DR. NHO THI BUI
JASON LI TTLE

© 00 N o 0o b~ w N PP

e e
W N Rk O

M5. TEAGUE - ROLL CALL

N DD N N DN P P P PP
o A W N P O © 0 N O O b

www.huseby.com Huseby Global Litigation 800-333-2082


http://www.huseby.com

IN RE: A-1 SANDROCK
Guilford County Planninig Board Hearing on 01/11/2023 Page 5

EXHI BI TS
EXH BI T NO PAGE
(None Marked)
--000- -

© 00 N O o B~ W N P

N DD D DN DN P P P PP P PPk
oo & W N P O © 00 N OO 0o b W N —, O

www.huseby.com Huseby Global Litigation 800-333-2082


http://www.huseby.com

IN RE: A-1 SANDROCK

Guilford County Planninig Board Hearing on 01/11/2023 Page 6
1 (Heari ng commences, 6:23 p.m)
2 _
3 MR. TERRELL: Again, Tom Terrell, Fox
4 Rot hschild. W have on our own -- | say --
5 well, our own, A-1 Sandrock, nmade sone
6 additional offers of conditions, but
7 Ms. Stone who lives in one of the hones off
8 of Concord Church Road and her attorney have
9 been working with us. W' ve been worKking
10 wth them W've had quite a few
11 communi cati ons.
12 And what |'mabout to read into the
13 record reflects the changes. There's
14 actually nore -- one -- a |ate breaking
15 condition they asked us to add. W're glad
16 to add it, and I will read that as well.
17 Now, but the first condition is the
18 sanme condition, except we've tightened it up,
19 and that is there shall be no access to
20 Concord Church Road. W have del eted even
21 emer gency vehi cl es.
22 The height of the facility shall be
23 limted to 185 feet is not new. That was
24 approved by the county in 2018, when there
25 was a special use permt at that tine.
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1 The third condition is that applicant
2 shall use soil renoved during construction of
3 the CDLF, construction, denolition, and

4 debris landfill, cells to construct the berm
5 al ong the sout heastern border of Tax Parcel

6 234575.

7 Upon conpl etion, the bermshall be no
8 | ess than 1,200 linear feet and at | east

9 15 feet in height with a variety of

10 evergreens planted al ong the berm crest

11 approximately 8 to 10 feet apart.

12 Evergreens shall be selected from

13 varieties expected to reach at | east 15 feet
14 In height at maturity.

15 The evergreens shall be nmaintained,

16 and dead or diseased plants shall be replaced
17 guarterly, depending upon seasonal

18 condi ti ons.

19 We al so added a new set of conditions
20 today. Hours of operations shall be limted
21 to 7 am to 6 p.m Mnday through Friday and
22 8 am to 1l p.m on Saturdays and no work on
23 Sundays.
24 MR, DONNELLY: Al right. |Is that the
25 extent of the new conditions?
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1 MR. TERRELL: That is correct.

2 MR, DONNELLY: Ckay. What -- what |'d
3 li ke to do -- again, when -- when this

4 application cane forward to the planning

5 departnent and all of our infornmation was

6 prepared, we all received copies of the

7 Information as it was originally submtted.
8 Wth these additional conditions, we
9 would like to consider the full set of

10 condi tions that have been offered here, and
11 so we have to read these into the record.

12 And so for the changes, | want to go
13 one by one and us as a board have the

14 opportunity to accept this condition as a

15 part of the application we'll then hear

16 t hrough our nornmal process.

17 So the first change that was nmade was
18 to devel opnent condition nunber 1, it now
19 reads: No access to Concord Church Road.
20 The reference to energency vehicles has been
21 conpletely deleted fromthat. So the
22 condition as it reads is no access to Concord
23 Chur ch Road.
24 Is there -- do we need to do a notion
25 to second, or can we do this as a vote?
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1 MR. BELL: W can have a vote.

2 MR, DONNELLY: Ckay. So what I'd like
3 to offer is all those in favor of accepting

4 this condition -- we're not approving

5 anything. W're sinply accepting this

6 condition as a part of the application for no
7 access to Concord Church Road.

8 Al those in favor, please indicate by
9 sayi ng aye.

10 BOARD MEMBERS:. Aye.

11 MR. DONNELLY: Any opposed?

12 Al right. Devel opnent condition

13 nunber 1 has been adj usted.

14 We don't need to do anything with

15 nunber 2. That's the sanme as it was around
16 the height of this facility.

17 Condi ti on nunber 3 was brought forth
18 around the construction and mai ntenance of a
19 berm and the planting of that.
20 Again, I'd like to offer all those in
21 favor of accepting this condition as part of
22 the application, please indicate by saying
23 aye.
24 BOARD MEMBERS: Aye.
25 MR. DONNELLY: Any opposed?
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1 Al right. Again, unaninous vote.

2 W're accepting that condition into this

3 applicati on.

4 MR. BASS: May | add one thing? The

5 phrase "subject to the seasonal conditions"”

6 does need to be added to the petition that we
7 have witten here.

8 MR. DONNELLY: Well, essentially, |

9 think there's considerably nore than that

10 t hat needs to be added to that.

11 There was a question -- the whole

12 pi ece around replanting ahead of that. So

13 you're right, yeah.

14 MR. BASS:. Yeah.

15 IMR. DONNELLY: Yes, so this is not

16 exactly -- as it was read by M. Terrell, not
17 as we have in front of us.

18 Thank you for that clarification,

19 M. Bass.
20 MR. BASS: Yes, sir.
21 IMR. DONNELLY: The fourth condition is
22 related to the hours of operation.
23 Again, all those in favor of accepting
24 this condition as read into the application,
25 pl ease i ndicate by saying aye.
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1 BOARD MEMBERS:. Aye.

2 MR. DONNELLY: Any opposed?

3 Al right. So these conditions have

4 now been included as part of the application

5 which we wll now hear beginning with the

6 staff report, and then we'll go through the

7 process simlar to what we did on the | ast

8 case.

9 We'l |l have a public hearing where the
10 folks who are in favor of this application
11 and anyone who's opposed to it wll have an
12 opportunity to speak.

13 M. Bass?

14 MR. BASS: Thank you, M. Chair.

15 This is the Conditional Zoning Case
16 22-10- PLBD- 000023 to rezone it from AG

17 agriculture, to CZ-H, conditional zoning
18 heavy i ndustrial.

19 The property is located at 27 -- 2075
20 ZZ Bi shop Road, Quilford County Tax Parcel
21 234575, in Summer Townshi p, | ocated

22 approximately 100 feet fromthe term nus of
23 Concord Church Road and conpri sing

24 approxi mately 14.73 acres.

25 This is a request to conditionally
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1 zone property fromAGto H with the -- wth
2 the conditions as anended by the board

3 previ ously.

4 The AG zoning district is intended to
5 provide | ocations for agricultural

6 operations, farmresidences, and tenant farm
7 housing on large tracts of | and.

8 The district is further intended to

9 reduce conflicts between residential and

10 agricultural uses to preserve viability of

11 agricul tural operations.

12 The HI district is intended to

13 accommodat e a broad range -- a broad range of
14 heavy i ndustrial uses, including

15 manuf act uri ng, whol esal e, fabrication, and
16 resource extraction.

17 The conditional zoning district is

18 I ntended to establish as a conpanion district
19 for every district established in section
20 4.20 UBO which includes H zoning district.
21 Al reqgulations which apply to the
22 general use zoning district also apply to the
23 conpani on conditional zoning and all other
24 regul ations that may be offered by the
25 property owner and approved by the planning
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1 board as part of the rezoning process.
2 Looki ng at the character of the area,
3 we have taken sone pictures -- pictures of
4 adj acent properties in the vicinity.
5 The request is in a heavily
6 I ndustrialized area south of the subject
7 parcel with uses that include A Rock -- A-1
8 Sandrock landfill, an asphalt plant, a truck
9 termnal -- a truck term nal along Bi shop
10 Road.
11 The area south of the request consists
12 of lowdensity single famly residential and
13 subdi vi ded | ots al ong Concord Church Road.
14 Exi sting -- the existing |and uses on
15 the property: The subject property is
16 currently undevel oped. There is a Duke
17 Energy easenent that's | ocated al ong the
18 sout hern boundary of the property. The
19 sout hern boundary of the property which is
20 property A on the map.
21 Surroundi ng uses is the A-1 Sandrock
22 | andfill operation, although there is a
23 portion of the |ot southern -- there is a
24 southern portion of the lot that has a
25 landfill, LCID landfill, but the portion that

www.huseby.com Huseby Global Litigation 800-333-2082


http://www.huseby.com

IN RE: A-1 SANDROCK

Guilford County Planninig Board Hearing on 01/11/2023 Page 14
1 fronts on Concord Church Road is primrily
2 undevel oped.
3 East you have an asphalt plant, and
4 then the property to the west is primarily --
5 I mredi ately adjacent to the west is prinmarily
6 undevel oped.
7 There are no inventoried historic
8 properties on the site, and no known
9 ceneteries are |located on the site.
10 Moving to the | and use an- -- |and use
11 analysis. The property is located in the
12 Southern Area Plan. It reconmmends the area
13 as agricultural or/and rural residential.
14 The proposed zoning is inconsistent
15 wth the recommendati on of the Southern Area
16 Plan. These designations primarily support
17 agricultural and residential uses. Typical
18 uses in the H zoning district are not anong
19 those antici pated within these | and use
20 desi gnati ons.
21 Staff recommends approval of the
22 request, although it is inconsistent with the
23 Area Plan recommendati ons.
24 The requested action -- the requested
25 action -- the requested action is reasonable
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1 and in public interest because it is

2 basically -- it is basically an extension of
3 the conditional zoning for the A-1 Sandrock

4 operation imedi ately north. Both parcels

5 are under the sane ownership, and the request
6 proposes simlar zoning conditions.

7 The proposed use is simlar to other

8 uses south of the subject parcel.

9 A mnimal 50-feet type A buffer is

10 requi red along the adjacent residentially

11 zoned properties pursuant to the Guilford

12 County Unified Devel opnent O di nance.

13 Additionally -- additionally, access
14 to the site from Concord Church is restricted
15 under the proposed devel opnent conditions.

16 Finally, the C& landfill does provide
17 a neans to properly dispose of waste-rel ated
18 materials within the county.

19 Because the proposed rezoning is
20 I nconsi stent with the Southern Area Pl an
21 recomendation of rural residential and
22 agricultural, if approved -- if the rezone is
23 approved, an Area Plan to nove to heavy
24 I ndustrial wll be required.
25 That concl udes ny report.
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1 MR, DONNELLY: Thank you, M. Bass.
2 Any questions fromthe board for
3 M. Bass before we nove into the public
4 hearing to clarify anything in the report?
5 One question | had, M. Bass, if you
6 could talk about -- if | understood you
7 correctly, along this -- the | ower edge of
8 the portion, is that where the utility
9 easenent woul d be?
10 MR. BASS: Yes, sir.
11 | should have a picture of it. It may
12 not be here in this case, but we do have it.
13 We shoul d have a picture of it.
14 MR, DONNELLY: M question was what,
15 I f any, inpact does that easenent have on the

16 devel opnent that is being considered or the
17 rezoning request in particular in this case?
18 MR. BASS.: It's just that there's a
19 restriction -- developnent is restricted in

20 the utility easenent based on Duke Energy's

21 policy.
22 MR, DONNELLY: Um hum
23 MR. BASS. So they'll provide

24 addi tional buffer between the adjacent

25 sout hern properties.
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1 MR. DONNELLY: And so that 50 feet
2 type A buffer, does that go fromthe edge,
3 then, of the utility easenent or that would
4 be included -- the utility easenent woul d be
5 i ncluded in that?
6 MR. BASS: That woul d be extended --
7 extended fromthe southern boundary property
8 l'i ne.
9 MR, DONNELLY: Ckay. Okay.
10 MR. BASS: And that's in addition to
11  other buffers that's shown on the -- that
12 would be on the site plan for the landfill.
13 MR, DONNELLY: Ckay. GCkay. Geat.
14 Thank you.
15 Any ot her questions for M. Bass?
16 Al right. W'dIlike to go into the
17 publ i ¢ heari ng.
18 Again, 1'd like to ask at the
19 begi nni ng of this public hearing how many
20 fol ks are here to speak on behalf of this
21 application for rezoning.
22 We' ve got a couple of fol ks here who
23 are interested in speaking on behalf of it.
24 Who is interested in speaking agai nst
25 this rezoni ng request?
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1 Ckay. So we've got a coupl e speakers
2 for and one person who would |ike to speak

3 agai nst.

4 What we'll do is -- again, you've got
5 20 mnutes total, M. Terrell, on this. |If

6 you coul d manage your tinme within that to

7 bring folks forward in approval, and then

8 we'll go to the -- anyone who's opposed at

9 t he concl usion of that.

10 MR. TERRELL: Thank you. dad to do
11 t hat .

12 | think the first thing | should say
13 Is | hope you notice that the nunber of

14 people in the roomis nmuch smaller this nonth
15 as -- as opposed to last nonth, and that's, |
16 t hi nk, maybe because of the nei ghbor hood

17 neeting wth people who |ive as nuch as a

18 half mle away was invited. People froma

19 great distance, actually.
20 This is a C& landfill. This is not
21 sonet hing that you hear about or you talk
22 about very often, but it is sonething that
23 every grow ng conmmunity has to have. Every
24 community with any type of gromh has to have
25 access to this type of landfill in sone
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1 manner .
2 So what is the C&D, or construction
3 and denolition debris?
4 Any tinme you build a house, you have
5 | eftover 2-by-4s. You m ght have | eftover
6 shingles. You'll have concrete that is
7 ground -- that is taken out when you're
8 renovi ng what's there to put in sonething
9 that is new That has to go sonewhere.
10 These materials are either organic --
11 they're -- they're the trees, the | eaves, the
12 | i mbs, the stunps that you mi ght have out
13 here in the parking lot -- or they are the
14 materials |like that stage that's right behind
15 you, if that were to be taken up, if this
16 bui | di ng were taken down, or these
17 ci nderbl ocks. They would go to a place I|ike
18 the A-1 facility.
19 A-1, however, is a recycler nore than
20 they are a disposer of the materials, and
21 when we -- in the SUP portion, we have
22 phot ographs of that. But they are a huge
23 recycler. Still, you have to have a
24 facility.
25 Now, there are not many construction
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1 and denolition debris landfills in this

2 regi on, but what we do have is trenendous

3 gr owt h.

4 In fact, if you're reading the

5 busi ness journals or the G eensboro paper,

6 there are several articles out there saying
7 that the Piednont Triad is probably recession
8 proof or is recession proof because of all of
9 the |l arge econom c projects that we have had
10 com ng through here.

11 And it's not just Toyota, and it's not
12 just Boom It's also Fan Fast. It's

13 Wl fspeed, and it's all of those snaller,

14 | ess sexy conpanies comng in that you don't
15 read about in the headlines but that are just
16 comng in in droves.

17 There are nore subdivi sions going up
18 in this county now, | think, than any tine
19 since | have started practicing |aw, and
20 every single one of themw Il need a C&D
21 di sposal .
22 In fact, in the A-1 Sandrock service
23 area, there are over 10,000 open files for
24 buil ding permits right now That's not just
25 Qui |l ford County but includes their -- their
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1 whol e service area.

2 So this is the back end of all the

3 stuff we read about in the newspapers on the
4 front, and all of these landfills are filling
5 up, every single one of them

6 And this is the -- probably the |ast

7 expansi on they are ever going to be able to

8 do. The hei ght was approved five years ago,
9 but this facility is hemed in.

10 It is henmed in on the south by power
11 line, a regional transmssion line, so it

12 can't expand southward. There is a stream
13 and of course AOd Domnion to the west. You
14 have Bi shop Road that it sits on to the

15 north, and then there is Blythe asphalt plant
16 I mredi ately to the east.

17 This 14-acre tract represents the only
18 literal expansion that now is possible, and
19 it woul d basically expand the base so that
20 t hey can go up higher for this.
21 Now, M. Bass very correctly noted
22 that this is just outside of the heavy
23 I ndustrial, the deep purple on the map.
24 But 1'd like to point out that the
25 only part of this tract that would be --
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1 woul d have a landfill or any portion is about
2 125 feet in wdth., That is all. O that

3 whole 14 acres, it's about 125 feet, and the
4 rest of it would be dedicated to the berm

5 that we discussed in the condition, or would
6 just remain natural and grow up.

7 So basically it's only an expansi on of
8 that | and use plan by 125 feet, and

9 everything else is 100 percent consistent

10 wth those types of uses because there won't
11 be any industrial use there other than to

12 build that bermin the first couple of years.
13 Now, so those -- those are the key

14 points that we would |ike to nmake.

15 We do have -- we have sone exhibits
16 that m ght be hel pful if you have questions,
17 and if your questions go to engineering, |I'm
18 going to very quickly call on David Garrett
19 to respond, and if it goes to the business
20 operation of the facility, 1'd like for
21 Ronni e Petty to cone up.
22 IMR. DONNELLY: Any questions for
23 M. Terrell?
24 MR. CRAFT: Yeah. 1'd like to hear a
25 little bit nore about the recycling --

www.huseby.com Huseby Global Litigation 800-333-2082


http://www.huseby.com

IN RE: A-1 SANDROCK

Guilford County Planninig Board Hearing on 01/11/2023 Page 23
1 MR. TERRELL: Yeah.
2 MR CRAFT: -- aspect.
3 | think you said that a trenendous
4 anount of what cones in is recycl ed.
) MR. TERRELL: Onh, yes.
6 MR. CRAFT: So what's involved wth
7 that? Wat gets recycl ed?
8 MR, TERRELL: Just about everything is
9 recycled that's recyclable. Sonetines there
10 is no functional market for itens that are
11 technically recycl able, so you can say
12 they' re recyclable but there's really no
13 economc way to do it.
14 But every bit of concrete that cones
15 inis crushed so that you can have --
16 basically it's aggregate. |It's aggregate
17 t hat makes that concrete. |f you have
18 asphalt that conmes in, it is crushed. All of
19 the wood is ground up; it's used for nulch.
20 At the special use permt portion, we
21 had photographs of the -- the -- the huge
22 operation where they sell the itens that are
23 recycled. And there are good nmarkets for
24 this, soit's economcally smart to -- to
25 create a secondary narket for those things.
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1 One of the things I'll show you, when
2 | was visiting the site, was all these huge

3 sl abs of concrete that conme -- or cane from
4 H gh Point City Lake. It's a nmassive-sized

5 swming pool. It was starting to |eak, and
6 they just had to conpletely redo it.

7 And they -- A-1 got that contract to

8 take all of that material, and you'll see

9 this nonstrous pile of concrete slabs from
10 t hat .

11 You know, you never think when

12 sonething like that is taken out what happens
13 toit. Well, actually, it has probably

14 al ready been sold and it's either a road

15 (i ndiscernible) for sonebody or it's -- it's
16 in a garden or sonething |ike that.

17 Ronni e, would you like to add to that?
18 Is that -- is that a full explanation?

19 Ckay.
20 MR. DONNELLY: Any ot her questions for
21 M. Terrell?
22 | have one question, and this may be
23 for your engineer to -- to answer or -- as |
24 understand it fromthe description that you
25 read of the third condition, that the soi
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1 renmoved during construction is going to be
2 used to build this berm Can you wal k us
3 t hrough what that process |ooks |iKke.
4 ' m guessing --
5 MR TERRELL: Yep, yep.
6 MR. DONNELLY: -- that that may be one
7 of the visuals that you have.
8 MR. TERRELL: Yes. Let ne explain how
9 a landfill is constructed. | think David
10 m ght be cringing that | do this, but he
11 knows that | have worked on landfills
12 t hroughout the state.
13 Landfills are built in cells. You dig
14 out, and if -- if it's alined landfill, you
15 add the liner, and you fill one spot here,
16 and then when it's capped and fini shed, you
17 then go and do this next cell right here.
18 Each cell is very carefully
19 engi neered. It's a detail ed engineering.
20 As | got -- and | had a conversation
21 after the last neeting. He called it a dunp
22 and -- and he called ne up to apol ogi ze, and
23 we went into the intricate engineering that
24  these things have.
25 But once you have two cells side by
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side, then you start building cells on top of
them 1t's called piggybacking.

Now, as you dig themout, there wll
be soil. They don't know as we sit here
t oday how much soil that is, but they do know
that there should be enough for the -- what
Is in ny 37 years the |ongest, nost
vol um nous berm | have ever seen in any
zoni ng case.

And we were offering 10 feet. They
asked us -- Ms. Stone asked us to do 5 -- |
nean an additional 5, so we did. That -- by
the way, that's about 50 to $75,000 in cost
to A-1 Sandrock to go from10 feet to
15 feet. That was not an inconsequenti al
concession that was made at one nei ghbor's
request .

But this is taken down -- taken down
with a variety of noving equi pnent: novers,
carriers.

And you have to build the berm so that
there is at least a 3 to 1 slope. So that
for every foot you go up, you have to have
3 feet that goes out.

It woul d probably be | ess steep than
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t hat because you have to get this equipnent
up and it has to be conpacted and then you
have to have a crest on the top, so -- where
you can plant trees.

So when you take all of that together,
the 3-to-1 slope, if it was a pyramd, it
woul d just be 45 to 50 feet in wdth at the
base, but when you add the crest, all of a
sudden now you are at 60 to 65 feet w dth.

So it is a nonstrous berm

Berns stop just about all sound com ng
fromover them and then the evergreens that
woul d grow at a m ninumof 15 feet would be
an added visual buffer.

MR. DONNELLY: Thank you.

MR TERRELL: Sure.

MR. DONNELLY: | want to nake sure --
we' re about halfway through the tine, and I
know there are a couple other fol ks that want
to speak.

Do you have anything el se that you
want to say, M. Terrell?

MR TERRELL: No.

MR DONNELLY: Ckay. |'d like to

invite one of the two ot her speakers who
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1 requested to cone up, and if you would pl ease
2 share with us your nane and address, and we'd
3 | i ke you to address the board.

4 MR. BASS: Have them sign the sheet.

5 MR. DONNELLY: Yeah, and as you do

6 that, please sign the sheet here that's right
7 adj acent to the m crophone.

8 And as you may have al ready observed,
9 you need to pull the mcrophone a little bit
10 to you so we can all hear.

11 MR. GARRETT: Good eveni ng, everyone.
12 How is this?

13 MR. DONNELLY: (Good.

14 MR. GARRETT: [|I'mDavid Garrett. |I'm
15 a civil engineer practicing civil and

16 geot echni cal engi neering, have been for a

17 nunber of years, decades. I|I'malso a

18 | i censed geol ogi st.

19 And |'ve been dealing with landfills
20 nost of mny career. |In excess of 30 years
21 devoted to landfills. M entire practice has
22 been, as of this nonth, 40 years.
23 | wanted to speak a little bit about
24 the technical aspects of the facility.
25 The typical questions that we get deal
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1 with the nature of the waste. What is the

2 waste? Is it putrescible? Is it infectious?
3 Andit's not.

4 As Tom described, it's inert materials
5 that are left over fromconstruction or if a
6 buil ding is taken down. You know, sone of

7 the materials that cannot be readily recycl ed
8 would -- would wind up in this facility.

9 So there's no odors that escape the

10 boundary. And we tal ked to the nei ghbors

11 | ast week. Not one of themtold ne that

12 they'd ever encountered an odor.

13 Al so, there's no vectors, there's no
14 birds, there's no rats or any types of

15 wildlife that's attracted to the waste.

16 Ch, and |'ve been working on this

17 facility since its inception. | know the

18 site probably as well as anyone.

19 And |'ve had the pleasure of working
20 with three generations of the Petty famly,
21 and | can attest that they are genuine
22 peopl e.
23 | wanted to testify that the [andfill
24 does not -- well, excuse ne. | got off on ny
25 own.
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1 The landfill does and will continue to
2 neet all of the local zoning conditions and
3 requi rements as well as the state's
4 permtting requirenents.
5 This facility is nonitored and
6 permtted by the North Carolina Departnent of
7 Environnmental Quality. They are located in
8 Ral ei gh. They have agents in Wnston-Sal em
9 and they nmake reqular inspections of the
10 facility there to, you know, just verify that
11 the facility's in conpliance.
12 | wanted to speak about groundwater.
13 This is a typical question that we get and it
14 hasn't really surfaced in these discussions.
15 But groundwater is -- being the
16 resource that it is, the facility is designed
17 and nonitored in order to protect groundwater
18 quality.
19 And we've had no violations in
20 groundwat er what soever at the facility, and
21 it's been in service since 2009. So
22 that's -- that's a pretty good history.
23 G oundwater flows away fromthe
24 communi ty that brought these concerns about
25 Concord Church Road. There are several
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1 people on wells there. Goundwater is
2 flowm ng anay fromthem
3 | mentioned that we've had no
4 detectabl e i npacts. W've also had no
5 violations for operations.
6 And the -- the facility is very well
7 run. This is one of the best facilities |
8 have dealt wth in the state, and |'ve worked
9 on 100 facilities.
10 | have -- | don't want to get
11 repetitive, so | believe that | have cone to
12 the end of ny statenent, and I wll entertain
13 questi ons.
14 MR, DONNELLY: Thank you, M. Garrett.
15 Any questions for M. Garrett?
16 One question. At the beginning of
17 your conmments, | heard a couple of words, one
18 of which | recognize and one | did not.
19 That the waste is neither putrescible
20 or infectious?
21 MR. GARRETT:. Putrescible.
22 IMR. DONNELLY: Putrescible.
23 MR. GARRETT: That neans it rots.
24 MR, DONNELLY: OCh, it rots. Ckay.
25 MR. GARRETT: That's what people
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1 normally think of in alandfill is the
2 kitchen waste, and it does deconpose, and
3 this waste does not.
4 MR, DONNELLY: Ckay. Thank you for
5 that clarification.
6 Any ot her questions?
7 All right. | believe we have one nore
8 speaker who wanted to -- you've got three
9 m nutes and 40 seconds. You're welcone to --
10 no?
11 kay. Al right. So anyone el se who
12 would like to speak on behalf of this?
13 Al right. I1'dlike to nove then to
14 fol ks who w || be speaking against this
15 rezoni ng request.
16 And we have a gentleman fromthe back.
17 |'"d like to invite you forward. Wen you
18 cone to the podium if you would --
19 You're going to bring that back? You
20 can't run off wth our speakers.
21 Cone on, up, and I'll have you sit
22 down and share your nane and address with the
23 gr oup.
24 And then as soon as M. Garrett is
25 done with the clipboard, we'll give you the
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1 clipboard, and you'll have an opportunity to

2 sign that as well.

3 MR. COLEMAN: kay. Richard Col eman.

4 MR. DONNELLY: And your address,

5 M. Col eman?

6 MR. TERRELL: | own the property at

7 2372 Concord Church Road.

8 MR, DONNELLY: Ckay. G eat.

9 What woul d you like to share with us?
10 MR. COLEMAN: Well, it started out as
11 a recycling center. He recycled everything.
12 It 1ooks |like they bury nore than
13 anything over there, and | just want to know
14 why.

15 There's no fence containing the

16 bl owabl e trash that bl ows around everywhere.
17 | have pictures here, if you guys would |ike
18 to view them of the trash bl ow ng

19 everywhere. |It's plastics, vinyl,

20 ever yt hi ng.

21 Cont am nate goes in there, and they do
22 break down. And they are very contam nant.
23 And | would Iike an environnental

24 Il npact -- if you guys would at | east study
25 envi ronnent al i npact before you nake a
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1 deci sion on this.

2 And we'd like to -- and if it does go
3 through, we'd like the bermto start

4 I mredi ately, not two years | ater.

5 And anot her question | have is why do
6 we need to expand the landfill when we're

7 trying to put a transfer station in?

8 Isn't that what a transfer station is,
9 to nove your trash out of Quilford County?
10 And that's all | have to say.

11 MR. DONNELLY: Ckay. Any questions
12 for M. Col eman?

13 MR. ALSTON. | have.

14 MR, DONNELLY: Sure.

15 MR. ALSTON: Were you aware of the

16 community hearing they held -- what was

17 it? -- |ast week?

18 MR. COLEMAN. Yes. | was there.

19 MR. ALSTON: Did you go? kay. Just
20 aski ng.
21 MR. COLEMAN: | was at two community
22 meetings | ast week.
23 MR ALSTON. Cotcha.
24 MR. COLEMAN. One | ast week and the
25 one the week before.
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1 DR. BU: How nuch of debris are you
2 tal ki ng about that are flying and everyt hing,
3 and what type of debris are you --

4 MR. COLEMAN. Pl astics, papers. Right
5 here you can | ook and see for yourself. Here
6 Is a video, if you would Iike to | ook.

7 MR, CRAFT: |Is your property

8 referenced up there? Can we --

9 MR. COLEMAN. |'mon the power I|ine,
10 yes.

11 MR. CRAFT: Ckay. Are you at the end
12 of the road on the right?

13 MR COLEMAN:  Yes.

14 MR. CRAFT: Ckay. And is that your

15 princi pal residence? You |live there?

16 MR. COLEMAN: | own the property. |
17 do not live there.

18 MR CRAFT: Okay.

19 MR. DONNELLY: |Is that the 2372
20 Concord Church Road?
21 MR. COLEMAN: Correct.
22 IMR. DONNELLY: Yeah. Ckay. |It's
23 |isted on our map. | was just making sure of
24  that. kay.
25 MR BELL: M. Chairman, what we'l]l
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1 try to do is see if M. Coleman can e-mail us
2 t hat .

3 MR. COLEMAN:. Yes, sir, we can e-nuil
4 this to you. | didn't know -- if you

5 could -- we have an SD card. W could put it
6 up there. The county says you've got to

7 e-mail it.

8 MR, DONNELLY: Ckay. Any other

9 questions for -- for M. Col eman?

10 MR. COLEMAN: Onh, and one other thing.
11 There is animals that -- birds and all that
12 do fly over the landfill. Which the guy back
13 there said they didn't exist, but they do.

14  There's lots of birds.

15 MR. DONNELLY: And if you woul d,

16 M. Col enman, go ahead and sign our clipboard
17 there with just your nane and address, that
18 would be great.

19 Wiile he's doing that, is there anyone
20 el se here tonight who is interested in
21 speaki ng agai nst this rezoni ng case?
22 | -- hearing none, | would |like to at
23 | east provide an opportunity for -- there
24  were sone questions that were raised in
25 the -- there were sone questions that were --
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1 are you interested in speaking agai nst?

2 MR. KNIGHT: | understand that it's

3 for or against. [It's not an opportunity to
4 comment one way or the other? Can | -- do |
5 have to take a position?

6 MR. DONNELLY: No. You can certainly
7 make a comment during this period of tine,

8 but if you want to do that, we'll have to

9 have you conme up and have a seat and then

10 si gn our thing.

11 Certainly happy to have any additi onal
12 coment on this if you'd I|ike.

13 M. Coleman, is that everything?

14 MR COLEMAN:  Yes.

15 MR. DONNELLY: Ckay. Geat.

16 W will -- because we're in the side
17 of folks who are opposing, we're going to

18 hol d you under this tinme franme, but certainly
19 invite you to come up and share comrents if
20 you'd |ike.
21 Thank you, M. Col eman.
22 MR. COLEMAN:. Thank you.
23 MR, DONNELLY: Again, if you would
24 share with us nanme address and wite that on
25 t he cli pboard.
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1 MR, KNIGHT: M nane is |Ira Knight.

2 If you | ook at the map, the property
3 designated as D, | own the parcel adjoining
4 that to the south. |It's the one that | ooks
5 |ike a bowtie there.

6 MR, DONNELLY: Um hum

7 MR KNIGHT: That's a farm W -- we
8 grow t obacco, sweet potatoes, and w nter

9 wheat.

10 | learned about this hearing a few

11 weeks ago, but | wasn't aware of a community
12 neeting, and that was the only point that |
13 wanted to clarify. | -- 1 hadn't received
14 notice of that.

15 | do -- | don't own a parcel that

16 adj oins the parcel marked A --

17 MR, DONNELLY: Um hum

18 MR. KNI GHT -- because of the --

19 there's a very snmall | ake down there on the
20 map that exists, but that -- that was ny only
21 conment .
22 MR, DONNELLY: Ckay. Thank you, M.
23 Kni ght .
24 Because there were sone questions that
25 were raised during the comments against this
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1 application, 1'd like to provide the

2 applicant at |east an opportunity to respond
3 to sonme of those questions, if there's

4 anything you' d |ike to add.

5 And when we go into this rebuttal

6 period, again, no new information can be

7 shared, but comments can be nmade around

8 questions that were raised.

9 And so, M. Terrell, are you going to
10 cone forward and speak on behal f of the

11 appl i cant ?

12 MR TERRELL: Yes.

13 MR. DONNELLY: One second, please,

14 while we deal with our technical

15 difficulties.

16 M. Terrell?

17 MR TERRELL: Thank you. As to

18 M. Knight, he did call ne today. He got ne
19 by ny cell phone, and we did speak, so we did
20 have an opportunity -- it was a very
21 prof essi onal conversation where | gave him |
22 hope, all the answers that he would like to
23 have.
24 He was outside of the notification
25 area as an adj oining owner, and he wasn't one
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1 who signed up, so he sort of fell out of that
2 crack.
3 | would Iike to conment about the
4 trash. You're going to have trash bl ow ng
5 any time you have light materials, but A1
6 Sandrock has its enployees out there on a
7 regul ar basis picking the trash up. They're
8 required to do that by their permt. It's
9 not a daily operation, but it is sonething
10 that they do regul arly.
11 And this -- the bermthat is offered
12 as a condition of this with the trees on top
13 shoul d prevent any and all of that
14 | i ght wei ght materials on wi ndy days from
15 | eaving the site whatsoever at |east down
16 into that direction.
17 MR. DONNELLY: Any questions for
18 M. Terrell?
19 Al right. Thank you.
20 MR. TERRELL: Thank you.
21 IMR. DONNELLY: Yes, M. Grrett?
22 MR. GARRETT: M. Chairman, | have
23 just a couple nore comments about the bl ow ng
24  trash.
25 It is an operational requirenent that
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1 that trash -- that the blow ng debris be

2 managed, as M. Terrell nentioned.

3 We al so have an operational cover

4 requi renment where soil is applied to the

5 working surface on a periodic basis in order

6 to prevent blowng material, and the -- the

7 facility has not had any violations for

8 bl ow ng debris.

9 It's -- it's common at landfills, but
10 they do a good job of keeping it picked up
11 because they don't have any viol ati ons.

12 And | want to address the birds as
13 well. You may see sone birds out there, but
14 they're not of the scavenging variety |ike
15 seagull's and vultures and things that you're
16 going to see attracted to an MWl andfill.
17 That's your household waste. So we do not
18 have those kind of conditions.

19 MR. TERRELL: Tell them how the soil
20 cover worKks.

21 MR. GARRETT: Soil cover is an

22 application of 6 inches of soil, average

23 depth, to conpletely cover the waste within
24 an operating cell.

25 The cells are usually, | think by
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1 definition, at one-half acre or less or a

2 one-week period or |ess. Those are your

3 maxi muns for C&D.

4 MR. DONNELLY: Thank you, M. Garrett.
5 MR. GARRETT: Thank you.

6 MR. DONNELLY: Any questions for

7 M. Garrett?

8 Gkay. Thank you.

9 MR. GARRETT: Thank you.

10 MR, DONNELLY: Any other speakers for
11 the -- in favor of this proposal?

12 M. Coleman, if there's anything that
13 you just heard -- you heard earlier that you
14 wanted to coment on, we -- there's no new
15 I nformation, but you do have an opportunity,
16 I f there's anything el se you wanted to share
17 fromwhat you just heard fromthe applicants.
18 We don't have the opportunity to have
19 new speakers at this point, sir.
20 Thank you.
21 UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Oh, okay. |
22 t hought you said if | wanted to talk for it.
23 UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: For it?
24 UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: For it.
25 MR. DONNELLY: Well, we -- we did that
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1 inthe initial part. This is only the
2 rebuttal period.
3 UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Ckay.
4 MR. COLEMAN. | have a questi on.
5 He's wanting to propose to build a
6 12-foot berm 15-foot bermw th trees.
7 185 feet high. What good is that going to
8 do?
9 The Gty of G eensboro takes and
10 builds a fence to contain their bl owable
11 trash. Theirs is no contam nant at all.
12 And there is vultures out there on the
13 power lines and stuff |ike that that hang out
14 at the landfill.
15 MR. DONNELLY: Ckay.
16 MR. COLEMAN. Ckay. | just wanted to
17 concl ude that.
18 MR. DONNELLY: Yep. Thank you,
19 M. Col eman.
20 Ch, before you run away, any questions
21 for M. Col eman?
22 kay. Thank you.
23 So we've heard fromthe proponents and
24  the opponents.
25 If -- we have one ot her speaker out
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1 here. W probably have a couple -- extra

2 time.

3 Do we have tine to allow for one nore
4 speaker fromthe...?

5 Al right. Sir, you're interested

6 In -- in sharing sone comments. |f you would
7 cone up and sign in, again, on our formhere
8 your nanme and your address.

9 MR. HANES: |[|'m Cal vin Hanes.

10 MR, DONNELLY: M. Hanes.

11 MR HANES: | live at 2369 Concord

12 Chur ch Road.

13 MR, DONNELLY: Ckay.

14 MR. HANES: Wiich is -- is beside D.
15 | think it's D.

16 MR, DONNELLY: 23609.

17 MR. TERRELL: The | ast property on the
18 left.

19 MR. HANES: The |ast property on the
20 | eft.
21 MR. DONNELLY: Ckay. Very good.
22 MR. HANES: M. Petty cane out and
23 talked to ne, and he assured ne that he is
24 going to build a bermacross there.
25 As far as |I'mconcerned, it's his
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1 | and, he can do what he wants to with it as
2 | ong as they don't use our road, and they're
3 not goi ng to.
4 As far as debris blowng, there ain't
5 no debris that blowed on ny property, and I'm
6 down 300 foot fromit. 400 nmaybe. | don't
7 know.
8 Anyhow, | don't have a problemwth
9 it. And |I've also talked to Dogit
10 [ phonetically] who owns the | and asi de of ne,
11 and he's going to put a 20-foot bermup and
12 plant trees on it.
13 Because right now you can sit on ny
14 back deck and see A-1's dunp, but hopefully
15 their bermw Il cover that where | don't have
16 to seeit. I'mstill going to hear it, but
17 at least I won't have to look at it.
18 Now, |'ve lived there 68 years, and |
19 don't have a problemw th them Mst of the
20 people in here do, but | don't really give a
21 shit.
22 MR. DONNELLY: Thank you, M. Hanes.
23 Any questions for M. Hanes?
24 Al right. That being all the
25 speakers who indicated an interest in
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1 speaking, is there a notion to close the

2 public hearing by notion to cl ose?

3 DR. BU : Mdtion to close.

4 MR. DONNELLY: Motion to close the

5 hearing by Dr. Bui.

6 Second by...?

7 M5. BUCHANAN: Second.

8 IMR. DONNELLY: Second by Ms. Buchanan.
9 All those in favor of closing the

10 public hearing, pleas indicate by saying aye.
11 BOARD MEMBERS: Aye.

12 MR. DONNELLY: Al right. So the

13 public hearing is now closed, and it will go
14 to di scussion and conversati on anong the

15 board, or if sonebody is in a place where

16 they want to offer a notion, we can do that
17 as well.

18 And, again, if sonebody wants to nake
19 a notion, because of the fact that we have a
20 pl an amendnent that's required, we need
21 format nunber 3 to nake a notion if soneone
22 wants to approve, and if -- it would be
23 nunber 2 if sonebody wanted to deny this.
24 So any questions, thoughts, comments,
25 discussions fromthe nenbers of the...?
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1 MR. CRAFT: Yeah.
2 MR, DONNELLY: M. Craft?
3 MR. CRAFT: [|I'minclined to approve
4 it. It's a mnor expansion of an existing
5 facility. It's in industrialized area.
6 | think they worked hard to address
7 nei ghbor hood concerns.
8 And it's -- it's one of those things
9 you don't think about, but it's an inportant
10 t hi ng, operation to -- you know, that you
11 need in a grow ng area.
12 So that's -- that's where | am
13 MR. DONNELLY: And one thing that
14 provi des us a good opportunity to just
15 clarify for us as we consider this case, this
16 IS a rezoning case, and so this in and of
17 itself does not expand the |andfill but
18 creates the opportunity for a landfill to be
19 expanded and wi Il have the opportunity if it
20 gets approved by a supernmmjority to hear that
21 request .
22 So this is specifically the rezoning
23 that's being asked for our consideration.
24 Any ot her comments, questions, or does
25 soneone have a notion they'd like to offer?
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1 M. Alston?

2 MR. ALSTON. M. Craft -- ne and

3 M. Craft, we had a chance to go to the

4 communi ty neeting.

) MR, DONNELLY: Um hum

6 MR. ALSTON: And | expected a bigger

7  turnout because of the crowd that we had here
8 at the prior neeting.

9 VR, DONNELLY: Um hum

10 MR, ALSTON: | think it says a lot to
11 how hard t hey worked on working with the

12 adj acent properties in the community.

13 So | would al so nove to approve just
14 because of how they extinguished the fire

15 fromthe last neeting. So | think that says
16 a lot on the hard work that we've been doi ng.
17 And al so nove to approve.

18 MR. DONNELLY: Ckay. Thank you,

19 M. Al ston.
20 Wuld you like to turn that into a
21 noti on?
22 MR. ALSTON: 1'Il let M. Craft do
23 t hat .
24 MR CRAFT: Al right.
25 | nove to approve this zoning
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1 amendnent | ocated at Guilford County Tax
2 Parcel Nunber 234575 fromAGto CZ-H wth
3 the conditions that have been previously
4 presented and approved by this board.
5 Thi s approval al so anends the Southern
6 Area Pl an by changing the parcel fromAGto
7 Hl .
8 Thi s amendnent is reasonable in the
9 public interest. Even though it's
10 I nconsistent with the Area Plan, it is
11 basi cal |y an extension of the conditional
12 zoning for C&D landfill inmedi ately north,
13 but the parcels are under the sane ownership
14 and the request proposes simlar zoning
15 condi ti ons.
16 The proposed use is simlar to other
17 uses south of the subject parcel.
18 A m ni mum of 50-foot type A buffer is
19 required fromthe adjacent
20 residentially-zoned properties pursuant to
21 the Guilford County Unified Devel opnent
22 Or di nance.
23 Additionally, access to the landfill
24 site from Concord Church Road is restricted.
25 And C&D | andfills provide a neans to
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1 properly dispose of waste-related material .
2 MR. DONNELLY: |Is there a second to
3 t hat notion?

4 Dr. BU: Second.

5 MR. DONNELLY: Seconded by Dr. Bui.
6 Just | wanted to clarify, M. Bell,
7 because of the fact that we read these

8 conditions in on the front end, we don't need
9 to include themin this section here, even
10 t hough this (indiscernible) because that's
11 already a part of the full application at
12 this point?

13 MR. BELL: That's correct.

14 MR. DONNELLY: So -- all right. So a
15 noti on has been nmade and appropriately

16 seconded.

17 Aroll call vote, please.

18 M5. TEAGUE: M. Alston?

19 MR, ALSTON:  Yes.
20 M5. TEAGUE: Ms. Buchanan?
21 M5. BUCHANAN:  Yes.
22 M5. TEAGUE: Dr. Bui?
23 DR BU: Yes.
24 M5. TEAGUE: M. Craft?
25 MR CRAFT: Yes.
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1 M5. TEAGUE: M. Little?

2 MR LITTLE: Yes.

3 M5. TEAGUE: M. Stalder?

4 MR STALDER  Yes.

5 M5. TEAGUE: And M. Donnelly?

6 MR, DONNELLY: Yes.

7 Al right. So this being a unani nous
8 vote of 7 to O satisfies the requirenent for
9 final action on behalf of the Guilford County
10 Pl anni ng Board.

11 As with any zoning case, this case nay
12 be appeal ed to the Board of County

13 Comm ssioners wthin 15 days, and that appeal
14 must be acconpani ed by a processing fee.

15 Because of the fact that we have what
16 is in effect a final decision, we as a board
17 have the opportunity consider the next item
18 on our agenda, which is a special use permt
19 related to the operation of this C&D
20 landfill.
21 As | nmentioned before, this agenda
22 itemis different than our other agenda
23 I tens.
24 Whereas we had -- the burden was for
25 us as a board to decide what was reasonabl e
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1 and in the public interest, in a special use
2 permt, the board is making findings of fact,
3 and so essentially everything that has been
4 done up to this point is off the table, and
5 we're going to have a hearing specifically

6 based on the case that is presented here

7 t oni ght .

8 The first thing that we want to do --
9 |"'mgoing to swear in our folks who would

10 |i ke to speak in two groups.

11 The first group I'mgoing to swear in
12 is the folks on the behalf of the applicant,
13 as well as staff who are going to nake a

14 presentation.

15 When we get to the point where we

16 have -- the application has been conpl et ed,
17 I'"'mgoing to swear in the -- anyone who wants
18 to speak agai nst.

19 Based on sone of the other things, |
20 suspect we nmay want to take a five-mnute
21 break, so I'mgoing to take that to the
22 boar d.
23 W' ve | ost a coupl e of people.
24 Approval for a 5-mnute break. All
25 those in if favor, please indicate aye.
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1 BOARD MEMBERS:. Aye.

2 MR. DONNELLY: Any opposed?

3 Al right. So this neeting is

4 suspended for a 5-m nute break, please, if

5 you need to use the facility.

6 W will reconvene at 7:20.

7 (Recess taken.)

8 IMR. DONNELLY: [|'d like to call us

9 back to order.

10 Al right. Wth a -- as | indicated,
11 with a special use permt, we actually have
12 to swear in anyone who is going to speak as a
13 part of these proceedi ngs.

14 And so the first thing I'mgoing to do
15 IS swear in those who are going to speak on
16 behal f of the applicant as well as the staff
17 who are going to present any infornmation.

18 Wen we get a little bit later in the
19 neeting, we wll swear in anyone who w shes
20 to speak against this special use permt
21 request .
22 And | know at | east one of the
23 applicant party is mssing, but | see him
24 com ng.
25 s there anybody el se fromthe
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1 applicant party who needs to be sworn in?

2 UNI DENTI FI ED MAN. Let's nobve on.

3 Let's nove on.

4 MR. DONNELLY: So anybody who needs to
5 be sworn in, I"mgoing to invite you to

6 st and.

7 Are you going to be speaking for the

8 applicant, or are you going to wait to do the
9 I n opposition, sir, M. Coleman?

10 MR, COLEMAN:.  Qpposition.

11 MR, DONNELLY: Ckay. We'll get you in
12 a mnute. W'I|l get you in a mnute.

13 So anyone who w shes to speak on

14 behal f of the applicant, please stand and

15 rai se your right hand and along with the

16 staff.

17 What |'m going to ask you to -- and

18 you can respond by either "I swear" or "I

19 affirm™
20 | swear to tell the truth, the whole
21 truth, and nothing but the truth, so help ne
22  Cod.
23 STAFF AND POTENTI AL SPEAKERS: | do.
24 MR. DONNELLY: | do. That's all we
25 need. G eat. Thank you.
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1 Now, the reason that | wanted to do

2 that before we get started, again, in a

3 simlar situation to what we had before, |

4 understand that there are sone additional

5 conditions that we are going to read into

6 this special use permt application.

7 So, M. Terrell, I'"mgoing to invite
8 you up again to go through those conditions,
9 and we will accept those individually as we
10 did before before we get into the actual

11 comments fromthe staff.

12 MR TERRELL: Thank you,

13 M. Chai r man.

14 Tom Terrell fromwth [aw firm of Fox
15 Rot hschil d representing A-1 Sandr ock.

16 | won't be repeating the existing

17 condi ti ons but adding the new conditions or
18 the revised conditions into the record.

19 The first one is that there shall be
20 no access from Concord Church Road. The
21 provi si on about energency vehicles being able
22 to have access was del et ed.
23 Facility height has been approved
24 about five years ago.
25 The next itemis that the applicant
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1 shal | use soil renoved during construction of
2 the CDLF cells to construct a berm al ong the
3 sout heastern border of Tax Parcel 234575.

4 Upon conpl etion, the bermshall be no
5 | ess than 1,200 |inear feet and at | east

6 15 feet in height with a variety of

7 evergreens planted along the berm crest

8 approximately 8 to 10 feet apart.

9 Evergreens shall be selected from

10 varieties expected to reach at |east 15 feet
11 in height at maturity.

12 The evergreens shall be maintai ned,

13 and dead or diseased plants shall be replaced
14 quarterly, depending on seasonal conditions.
15 And then the last condition -- excuse
16 nme -- is that hours of operation shall be

17 limted to 7 am to 6 p.m Mnday through

18 Friday and 8 a.m to 10 p.m on Saturdays.

19 No wor k on Sundays.
20 MR BELL: 10 p.m on --
21 IMR. DONNELLY: | was going to ask the
22 sane questi on.
23 On Saturdays, is it 10 p.m or 1 p.m?
24 | heard you say 10 p.m 1|'ve got --
25 MR TERRELL: I'msorry. 1 p.m on

www.huseby.com Huseby Global Litigation 800-333-2082


http://www.huseby.com

IN RE: A-1 SANDROCK

Guilford County Planninig Board Hearing on 01/11/2023 Page 57

1 Sat ur days.

2 MR, DONNELLY: Al right. Thank you.
3 MR. TERRELL: Sorry.

4 MR. DONNELLY: Thank you.

5 VWhat |1'd like to do, then, is go

6 t hrough the sane process we went through

7 before, and we w Il accept these conditions
8 as individual itens.

9 So all those in favor of accepting

10 condition, in this case, it's nunber 2, which
11 sinply says no access --

12 MR. BELL: (I naudible.)

13 MR. DONNELLY: Roll call. GCkay. So
14 we'll do a roll call vote on accepting these
15 condi ti ons.

16 The first condition is no access from
17 Concord Church Road.

18 Roll call vote, please, to accept the
19 condition for no access from Concord Church
20 Road.
21 M5. TEAGUE: M. Al ston?
22 MR, ALSTON:  Yes.
23 M5. TEAGUE: Ms. Buchanan?
24 M5. BUCHANAN:. Yes.
25 M5. TEAGUE: Dr. Bui?
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1 Dr. BU: Yes.

2 M5. TEAGUE: M. Craft?

3 MR, CRAFT: Yes.

4 M5. TEAGUE: M. Little?

) MR LITTLE: Yes.

6 M5. TEAGUE: M. Stal der.

7 MR STALDER  Yes.

8 M5. TEAGUE: And M. Donnelly?

9 VR, DONNELLY: Yes.

10 So that condition is accepted by a

11 vote of 7 to nothing.

12 The next condition is that -- relates
13 to the condition as read by M. Terrell

14  around the use of soil to construct a berm as
15 wel |l as the planting and nai nt enance of

16 ever greens.

17 Roll call vote, please.

18 M5. TEAGUE: M. Al ston?

19 MR, ALSTON:  Yes.
20 M5. TEAGUE: Ms. Buchanan?
21 M5. BUCHANAN:  Yes.
22 M5. TEAGUE: Dr. Bui?
23 DR BU : Yes.
24 M5. TEAGUE: M. Craft?
25 MR. CRAFT: Yes.
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ALSTON: M. Little?
LI TTLE: Yes.

TEAGUE: M. Salter?
STALDER  Yes.

TEAGUE: M. Donnelly?
DONNELLY:  Yes.

25 DD DD

Al right. That condition is also

approved by a vote of 7 to O.

The | ast condition relates to the

hours of operation |limted to 7 a.m to
6 p.m Monday through Friday, and just to
clarify, 8 am to 1l p.m on Saturdays, wth

no work on Sundays.

Rol|l call vote, please.

M5. TEAGUE: M. Al ston?
MR, ALSTON:  Yes.

M5. TEAGUE: Ms. Buchanan?
M5. BUCHANAN: Yes.

M5. TEAGUE: Dr. Bui?
Dr. BU: Yes.

MB. TEAGUE: M. Craft?
MR. CRAFT: Yes.

M5. TEAGUE: M. Little?
MR LITTLE: Yes.

IVB.

TEAGUE: M. Stal der?

www.huseby.com

Huseby Global Litigation

800-333-2082


http://www.huseby.com

IN RE: A-1 SANDROCK

Guilford County Planninig Board Hearing on 01/11/2023 Page 60
1 MR STALDER  Yes.
2 M5. TEAGUE: M. Donnelly?
3 MR, DONNELLY: Yes.
4 Al right. So all conditions have now
5 been read into this application for a speci al
6 use permt, so everything that we just talked
7 about is now a part of the formal application
8 which we will be considering as we nove
9 f orward.
10 Now we can turn it over. It |ooks
11 like M. Bass is going to be sharing sone
12 i nformation with us on this case.
13 MR. BASS: Yes. M nane is diver
14 Bass, senior planner for the planning
15 depart nent.
16 This is special use permt Case Nunber
17 22-10- PLBD- 000025 for construction and
18 denolition debris landfill major and
19 accessory uses on property that is
20 conditionally zoned HI.
21 The property is located at 2111 Bi shop
22 Road, Cuilford County Tax Parcel Nunber
23 141332, and includes Tax Parcel 234575
24 | ocated at 2075 ZZ in Summer Townshi p and
25 conprises 86.7 acres.
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1 Tax Parcel 1- -- with regard to the
2 nature of the request, Tax Parcel 141332 is
3 currently zoned under a special use permt,
4 ref erence case 31-01 SP and anmendnent case
5  18-08- GCPL- 04985 SP.
6 It's for a magjor land -- land clearing
7 and inert -- debris, L -- whichis an LCID
8 | andfill, a major construction and denolition
9 landfill, and the Sandrock m ni ng operation.
10 This is a request for a special use
11 permt for a major construction and
12 denolition debris landfill wth the --
13 only -- it's only -- so the other two uses
14 are no longer included in this request -- and
15 wth the conditions that were anended and
16 accepted by the planning board.
17 This area -- this request is in a
18 heavily industrialized area al ong Bi shop
19 Road. Several waste-related industries are
20 concentrated in the area. These uses include
21 a landfill operation, a solid waste transfer
22 station, and a solid waste collection
23 contractor.
24 O her industrial uses in the area
25 I ncl ude an asphalt plant and a trucking
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1 termnal facility.

2 The area south of the subject parcel
3 on Concord Church Road consists of single

4 famly residential dwellings on subdivided

5 | ots which are separated by Duke Energy's

6 60 -- 60-foot easenent at Plat Book 66, Page
7 78 in the Register of Deeds.

8 Exi sting | and uses on the property is
9 Tax Parcel -- Tax Parcel 141332 is currently
10 operating under a special use permt for a
11 maj or |and clearing and inert debris

12 | andfill, a nmjor construction and denolition
13 debris landfill, and Sandrock mning. Wile
14 Tax Parcel 234575 is currently undevel oped.
15 As nmentioned earlier, Duke Energy

16 transm ssion lines run south of the subject
17 parcel .

18 Wth regards to the surrounding | and
19 uses, to the north is a solid waste transfer
20 station and A-1 landfill mai ntenance buil di ng
21 which is across the street fromthe subject
22 property, a closed LCID site, a solid waste
23 coll ection conpany, and simlar industrial
24 uses.
25 South of the property you have
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1 undevel oped and single-famly | ots al ong
2 Concord Church Road, an asphalt plant, and
3 undevel oped | and, and undevel oped | and, and a
4 trucking termnal to the west.
5 There are no inventoried historic
6 properties located on the site, and no known
7 ceneteries are on the property.
8 Wth regards to energency response, it
9 Is in the Pinecroft-Sedgefield fire
10 protection special district. It is
11 approximately .8 mles fromthe nearest fire
12 station.
13 The area is served by private septic
14 systens and wel | s.
15 Bi shop Road -- with regards to
16 transportation, Bishop Road is a m nor
17 t horoughf are under the G eensboro MPO
18 Coll ector Street Plan. NCDOT 2019 traffic
19 volune count reported 4,500 average daily
20 traffic near the G oonet own Road
21 I ntersection.
22 The proposed i nprovenents: The
23 coll ector street plan does propose an
24 extension that mght -- that could
25 potentially connect Viewpoint Drive to Kivett
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1 Drive and if devel oped could be -- could
2 | npact the subject site if inplenented.
3 And any of the site plans are subject
4 to an NCDOT driveway permt.
5 Topography is nearly flat, gently
6 sl opi ng, noderately sloping, and steeply
7 sl opi ng.
8 There is a regulated flood plan on the
9 property, including a 100-year fl oodpl ain.
10 There are no wetl ands on the property. There
11 are nmultiple streans running throughout the
12 property.
13 The property is |located in the
14 Randl eman Lake W5-1V water supply watershed.
15 Wth regards to the [ and use plan, it
16 is located in the Southern Area Pl an.
17 And the plan recommendati on woul d be
18 heavy i ndustrial pending approval of the --
19 wth the approval of the updated zoni ng case.
20 The heavy industrial recommendation is
21 designated to recogni ze | and depicted as
22 i ndustrial on the original Area Plan, and
23 there are lands that are currently heavy --
24 H , heavy -- heavy industrial, that is, or
25 coul d be devel oped under the H zoning
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1 st andards under the County Unified

2 Devel opnent O di nance.

3 Contingent on parts -- rezoning on

4 Parcel 235475: The site is consistent with
5 t he recommendati on of the Southern Area Pl an.
6 The review factors according to

7 Article 3.Q G fromthe Guilford County

8 Uni fied Devel opnent Ordi nance: The applicant
9 shal | denonstrate that the review factors

10 | i sted bel ow have been adequately addressed.
11 Crculation: The nunber and | ocation
12 of access points to the property and proposed
13 structure are in uses, wth particular

14 reference to the autonotive, pedestrian

15 safety and traffic flow and control, and

16 access in case of energency.

17 Per the submtted sketch plan and

18 proposed conditions in this application,

19 access wll be from Bi shop Drive.
20 Access from Concord Church Road wi ||
21 be restricted, as anended in the -- by the
22 pl anni ng board at this neeting.
23 And a NCDOT commercial driveway perm:t
24 will be required during the official
25 comercial site plan review process.
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1 Wth regards to parking and | oadi ng,
2 | ocation of off-street parking and | oadi ng
3 areas, parking for mmjor construction and
4 denolition debris landfill is subject to
5 Table 6-1-1 of the Guilford County UDO which
6 requires a mni num of one space per 2,500
7 square feet for waste -- waste-rel ated uses.
8 Upon receiving a plan review
9 application for a subject -- for a subject to
10 this subsection, the planning devel opnent
11 director is authorized to apply these
12 of f-street parking standards applicable to
13 the use are established in the off-street
14 par ki ng requi renent by reference to parking
15 resources published by the National Parking
16 Association or the Anerican Pl anni ng
17  Associ ation.
18 Wth regards to service entrance --
19 service entrance, locations of refuse and
20 service areas W th adequate access for
21 service vehicles, location of services --
22 service areas wll be to allow for adequate
23 access for all service vehicles at the TRC
24 review when the official site plan is
25 submtted for review per 6.1 in the Guilford
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1 County UDQ.

2 Lighting of it: The |location of

3 lighting wwth reference to spillage and

4 glare, notorist and pedestrian traffic

5 safety, and conpatibility with other property
6 I n the area.

7 A lighting plan will be reviewed at

8 TRC when the official site plan is submtted
9 for review per 6.3 of the Guilford County

10 Uni fied Devel opnent O di nance.

11 Uilities: Location and availability
12 of utilities, public or private. Septic

13 evaluations will be regulated by the Guilford
14 County Environnental Health Devel opnent upon
15 site plan review by TRC. Utilities will be
16 reviewed at the TRC.

17 Wth regards to open spaces, |ocation
18 of required street yards, and preservation of
19 existing trees and other natural features,
20 | andscaping requirenent will be reviewed by
21 TRC for conpliance with Article 6.2 of the
22 Qi Il ford County Unified Devel opnent
23 Or di nance.
24 Envi ronnmental protection: Provisions
25 to protect -- to protect floodplain, stream
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1 buf fers, wetlands, open space, other natural

2 f eat ures.

3 Envi ronnental regulations wll be

4 reviewed by the CGuilford County

5 Watershed/ Stormwater Division at TRC to neet

6 all environnental regulations per Article 9

7 of the Guilford County Unified Devel opnent

8 Or di nance.

9 Landscape buffering and screening --
10 and screening: Installation of |andscaping,
11 fencing, or bermng for the purpose of
12 buffering and screeni ng where necessary to
13 provi de visual screens where appropriate.

14 A m ninmumof a 50-foot type A buffer
15 I's required al ong adj acent

16 residentially-zoned property pursuant to the
17 Qi |l ford County Unified Devel opnent

18 Or di nance.

19 Additional -- additionally, a 200-foot
20 NCDEQ buffer is shown on the submtted sketch
21 pl an.

22 Ef fect on nearby properties: Effects
23 of the proposed use on nearby property,

24 i ncluding, but not limted to, the effects of
25 noi se, odor, lighting, and traffic.
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1 Li ghting planning requirenents will be
2 reviewed in -- will be required and revi ewed
3 by TRC per Article 6.3 of the Guilford County
4 Uni fi ed Devel opnment O di nance.

5 Conpatibility: General conpatibility
6 w th nearby property, including, but not

7 limted to, the scale, design, and use in

8 relati onship to other properties.

9 Maj or construction and denolition

10 debris landfill is simlar to surrounding

11 uses in the area al ong Bi shop Drive, and

12 HZ -- H zoned properties are required to

13 have | andscape buffers around entire

14 perinmeter of the facility.

15 Staff comments: During consideration
16 of the special use permt, the planning board
17 must determ ne that the follow ng findings of
18 fact have been satisfied upon rel evant and

19 credi bl e evidence presented at the hearing:
20 A witten application was submtted
21 and is conplete in all respects.
22 That the -- that the use will not
23 materially endanger the public health or
24 safety if | ocated where proposed and
25 devel oped according to the plan submtted.
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1 The use, a mmjor construction and

2 denolition debris landfill subject to the

3 subm tted sketch plan and along with the

4 approved [sic] conditions which is -- which

5 has been anended by the board neets all

6 requi red conditions and wll need neet all

7 requi red conditions and specifications.

8 That the location and character of the
9 use, if devel oped according to the plan

10 submtted, wll be in harnony with the area
11 in which it is to be located and is in

12 general conformty with the plan of

13 devel opnent of the jurisdiction, which is the
14 county, and its environs, and that the use

15 wll not substantially injure the val ue of

16 adj oi ning properties or abutting properties,
17 or that the use is a public necessity.

18 After review ng the proposed

19 devel opnent plan for this request, the staff
20 does offer the itens below for the planning
21 board consi derati on:
22 The devel opnent of the parcel shall
23 conply with all regulations as specified in
24 the @Guilford County Unified Devel opnent
25 Or di nance.
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1 The devel opnent shall proceed in

2 conformty with all anmended plans and design
3 features submtted as part of the special use
4 permt application and kept on file by the

5 Qui | ford County Pl anni ng & Devel opnent

6 Depart nent.

7 The devel opnent shall proceed upon

8 approval of plan and design features by the

9 Techni cal Review Committee, illustrating

10 conditions related to the request and

11 applicable to the devel opnent standards.

12 Added conditions, if applicable.

13 And if the specified conditions

14 addressed in this special use permt are

15 violated, the permt shall be revoked and the
16 use will no | onger be allowed -- be allowed.
17 Only by reapplying to the planning

18 board for another special use permt and

19 receiving its approval can the use begin
20 again -- can the use again be permtted.
21 That concludes ny staff report.
22 MR, DONNELLY: Thank you, M. Bass.
23 Clearly different than what we m ght
24 normally see with a rezoning request.
25 Let nme just see if | can sunmmarize, if
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1 you wll affirmfor ne.

2 So where we're at, one of the things
3 that's different here than what we typically
4 hear is you're not making a recommendation to
) us.

6 You're -- you're sharing with us

7 paraneters that nust be satisfied in order

8 for us to act on that this evening; is that

9 correct?

10 MR. BASS: That's correct. Al --

11  yeah, all decisions nust be based on findings
12 of fact.

13 MR. DONNELLY: And in the devel opnent
14 process that we tal ked about, the first

15 requirenent is that it needed to have

16 sufficient zoning to allow this to nove

17 forward. We did that wwth the prior case.

18 MR. BASS: Correct.

19 MR. DONNELLY: So now we're actually
20 considering the special use permt which we
21 have the opportunity to approve or deny.
22 MR. BASS: Correct.
23 MR. DONNELLY: Should it be approved,
24 then there's one following step, which is a
25 site plan that has to go through TRC and neet
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1 all of those technical conditions before any

2 operations can actually begin.

3 MR. BASS: That is correct.

4 MR. DONNELLY: Ckay.

5 MR. BASS: | do understand that they

6 may need to go through sone state permtting

7 requi renents as well.

8 MR, DONNELLY: Ckay. G eat.

9 So, again, we just want to put it in
10 context again. This is -- we've not had one
11 of these for alittle while -- to put it in
12 cont ext.

13 So we now have the opportunity to hear
14 fromthe applicant as well as fol ks who m ght
15 be opposed to this request to try to

16 determ ne whether or not the findings of fact
17 that M. Bass outlined have been sufficiently
18 supported in what we hear today.

19 MR. BASS. Yes, sir.

20 MR. DONNELLY: And the burden of proof
21 Is on the applicant to denonstrate the

22 meeting of those conditions.

23 Any questions for M. Bass before we
24 nove to the applicant?

25 Al right. M. Terrell, | assune
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1 you're going to be one of the fol ks who are

2 speaki ng on the applicant.

3 Anybody who is going to speak at this
4 poi nt needs to have been sworn in.

5 | f sonebody el se needs to speak, we

6 can certainly swear themin.

7 But you can cone up again. |f you

8 would sign in with your nane and address, and
9 then we'll invite you to share the

10 I nformati on you have for us.

11 MR. TERRELL: Gkay. Good eveni ng.

12 Again, Tom Terrell w th Fox

13 Rot hschi | d.

14 MR, DONNELLY: [If you will pull the

15 m cr ophone cl oser to you, sir.

16 MR, TERRELL: Okay. Tom Terrell with
17 the law firm of Fox Rothschild.

18 MR. DONNELLY: Thank you.

19 MR. TERRELL: | have handed each of
20 you a notebook that has all of the materials
21 in this for this evidentiary hearing. |
22 would like to tender this as evidence at this
23 poi nt, and then very quickly walk you through
24 tab by tab to show you what we have and why
25 t hese internal docunments are relevant to the
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1 standards of a special use permt.

2 The first thing you'll see in your --

3 in the leaf on the outside is a potenti al

4 order wth findings.

5 Al of the findings are consi stent

6 wth the material that is in the notebook and

7 that you will hear fromthe experts here

8 t oni ght .

9 If you turn to the first tab, this is
10 t he background and introduction. | put three
11 t hings in here.

12 The very last thing is actually a

13 chronol ogy of all of the permtting

14 I nvol venent that the State of North Carolina
15 has for a project or a facility like this,
16 but the very first two things are the

17 franchi ses that are issued by CGuilford

18 County.

19 M. Harding is here. He was heavily
20 I nvol ved in these franchi ses, but | put these
21 In here to show that not only is NCDQ

22 I nvolved with the regul ation but the county
23 itself is also involved.

24 And these franchi ses require that you
25 conply with the Cl ean Water Act,
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1 Sedi nentation & Erosion Control Act.
2 Every single environnental act that
3 you can imagine is listed in these franchi ses
4 so that there is an additional |ayer of
5 county enforcenent, and you don't have to
6 wait always for sonebody fromthe state to
7 come down.
8 The next tab is the special use permt
9 standards. |If you want to have those, feel
10 free just to yank them out and have them
11 right there beside you to see what the
12 standard is that we wll be addressing, but
13 we w |l be show ng you very clear evidence on
14  each of these standards.
15 The next tab is actually a very short
16 bull et point legal neno. It's the | aw of
17 guasi -judicial proceedings. | know that may
18 make sonme eyes roll, but this mght -- | put
19 these in because there m ght be an
20 opportunity where we have to cone back and
21 | ook at what our state suprene court says.
22 But basically in 30 seconds, it says
23 an applicant has a duty and that duty is to
24 present evidence that is conpetent, nmaterial,
25 and substantial, and if an applicant does
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1 that, then at that point in the hearing the
2 applicant is entitled to the permt.

3 This is the state law, and it's

4 because the deci sion has al ready been nmade

5 that the zoning is correct. The permt is

6 al ways on top of the zoning.

7 So if we neet those standards, we're
8 entitled to it, and it can only be overcone
9 I f there is equal testinony.

10 Li ke if we have an apprai ser cone in,
11 they, by statute, have to have an -- an

12 appraiser cone in to testify that it's not a
13 proper apprai sal .

14 Under these |aws and these

15 proceedi ngs, | mght object. You mght hear
16 nme back here saying "I object" because

17 sonething is hearsay, and | m ght have to

18 step up to cross-exam ne sonebody about what
19 they said. | don't do this to be rude. |
20 only do it to get information into the record
21 In case this is appealed into court, and we
22 have to have a record that's for that.
23 That, by the way, is not why the court
24 reporter is here, but that transcript would
25 be hel pful.
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1 If you would turn to the next tab, it
2 Is called a Bishop Road aerial. [If you'l
3 pull that aerial out, it is -- this is the
4 picture worth a thousand words. That shows
5 t he hi ghways. It shows the truck term nals,
6 A d Domnion. It shows the |andfill
7 facilities, the Martin Marietta, the asphalt
8 plant, all of these facilities that already
9 exist all around it.
10 This is the area. It's what M. Bass
11 called a heavily industrialized area, and
12 this shows it to you.
13 At the next tab is the expansion area
14 I n case you need a reference back to that.
15 The tab after that is the site plan.
16 Now, M. Bass was correct. This site
17 plan also has to go to Raleigh, and it wll
18 be far, far nore detailed at that point.
19 At that point when it goes under
20 review by a team of engi neers and scientists,
21 It could change but only change to becone
22 stricter, and it could not change to be in
23 contravention of county requirenents. So
24 they -- so the county's standards woul d
25 al ways be net.
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1 The next tab is called Standard |I.

2 We're supposed to show you that this is a

3 facility that has an Sin the colum by it.

4 It's sort of a no-brainer. W did a

5 cut - and- paste fromthe ordi nance.

6 At the next tab, Health and Safety.

7 M. Garrett is going to cone up. He's going
8 to testify again. He's going to keep it

9 conci se, but he's going to basically say what
10 he said in the |ast hearing because we have
11 to have it on the record.

12 But what this says is these facilities
13 are -- exist all over the State of North

14 Carolina, they exist all over this country,
15 and they have to neet standards that are

16 conpliant with what is called the Resource
17 Conservation Recovery Act, which is a very
18 strict set of federal guidelines or

19 regul ati ons that are now adopted by the
20 st ates.
21 You cannot do anything less than is
22 requi red, and those regulations for North
23 Carolina are at the next tab. [It's Chapter
24 15 of our Adm nistrative Code. |It's
25 actually -- the colloquial term these are
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1 the 500 rules, as opposed to the 1600 rul es

2 for MSWand the 1700 rul es for col ash

3 [ phonetical ly].

4 If you look at them it is nore than a
5 guarter inch thick.

6 So this tells you that there are very,
7 very detailed and strict rules for how you

8 build and site facilities like this and how

9 you operate them

10 For the -- the next tab is the use

11 neets all required conditions and

12 specifications. | think staff has determ ned
13 that it does.

14 M. Garrett wll testify in his review
15 that it does neet all of the zoning board

16 requi renments.

17 It will go under a higher |evel of

18 review to neet all of the state standards

19 when we get there.
20 It's surprising, but there are really
21 only four or five people in the state of
22 North Carolina who are certified appraisers
23 who do market inpact studies. This is a
24 subset specialty in that profession. One of
25 t hem happens to live in Guilford County,
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1 Mol 'y Chi shol m

2 She has done these type of studies for
3 a variety of industries and uses on behal f of
4 governnents and others as well.

5 And she has done sonething. She wll
6 I ntroduce the study, but it is to show that

7 this use does not substantially injure the

8 value of adjacent or adjoining property.

9 If you go to the next tab, which is

10 tab 5, the first thing you see is a -- a snip
11 fromthe County Land Use Pl an.

12 M. Bass -- again, he's going to get
13 tired of me quoting him-- but he was correct
14 when he said if you rezone that 14 acres,

15 then you are changing -- this is a statutory
16 requirenent. It is an automatic change of

17 the I and use pl an.

18 So in every respect, this would be now
19 consistent with that deep purple section
20 right there.
21 We are supposed to al so show you how
22 we're consistent with the conprehensive pl an,
23 but the -- other than the map, there's really
24 not much in the plan.
25 There is nothing on solid waste. |It's
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1 a plan that does not address econom c grow h,
2 but we did find one section about

3 I nfrastructure inprovenents, and we put that
4 I n there.

5 | do want you -- oh, and the section
6 on what is harnony. Harnony is not what it

7 | ooks |ike. Sonething |ooks Iike sonething
8 else. It's a functional determnation. This
9 Is com ng out of case law. You know, does
10 It -- does one use stop you fromusing the
11 use on the next permt, is essentially that.
12 | would Iike for you in that section
13 that's titled Standard 5, if you would turn
14 to page 6, | have sone photographs | would
15 li ke to wal k through and pause on a few of

16 t hem

17 On page 6, you see two very pretty

18 grassy hills, and if you turn to page 7, you
19 see grassy hills as well. This is what a
20 | andfill |ooks like. This is what a landfill
21 has to ook Iike, with the exception of what
22 Is called the working face.
23 The working face is about a half acre
24 to one acre area where all the waste is
25 applied for a period of tine and then it
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1 noves around. Currently it's on the

2 backsi de. That's where the working face is

3 right now That -- it's --

4 MR. DONNELLY: The court reporter had
5 a question about that.

6 COURT REPORTER: It's okay. Just

7 there's -- whoever is talking back there, if
8 they could just -- it's hard to hear when

9 ot her people are talking. That's all.

10 IMR. DONNELLY: So let ne share for

11 everyone to hear. |In order for the court

12 reporter to hear, we ask that conversation in
13 t he back of the room be kept to a m ni nrum

14 If there's certainly sonething you

15 need to tal k about, we invite you to step

16 out si de.

17 The court reporter needs to hear so

18 that she can record appropriately. Thank you
19 for your support of that.
20 M. Terrell?
21 MR. TERRELL: Yes, thank you.
22 At the end of the -- when this
23 facility closes -- and it's doesn't have that
24 many years left even with this expansion --
25 t hese photos are what it would | ook IiKke.
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1 It has to be planted, vegetated. |It's
2 yet one nore state requirenent.

3 So this is the long termof what it

4 woul d ook Iike. And, you know, in a matter
5 of several nonths, that -- that working face
6 wll now be -- will conme back around. It

7 wll be on Bishop Road or al ong one of the

8 sides. So it is a noving area.

9 If you turn to page 9, this is the

10 concrete that | was describing earlier that
11 canme out of H gh Point Cty Lake. High Point
12 City Lake had to do major reconstruction,

13 deconstruction, and then construction, and
14 this is a perfect exanple of how you reuse
15 sonething like that. It doesn't go in a

16 landfill. It's recycled.

17 And if you turn to the next page, page
18 10, these are the materials that A-1

19 recycles. These are the itens that cone in,
20 and instead of putting themin the landfill
21 and using up space, they actually put this
22 out here to be taken to other markets.
23 Then on Page 11, sone phot ographs
24 starting -- you know, this is -- page 11 and
25 12, that's photographs of the very large
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1 asphalt plant. It's taken fromthe top of
2 the landfill as -- when | -- actually, | took
3 t hat photograph. It is -- it shows you how
4 close that is. It has its own |arge nound of
5 recycled nmaterials. That's asphalt. That is
6 very close by. And you see it on page 13 to
7 the -- on the bottomof 13, you see
8 M. Coalman's trailer that he stores on -- at
9 the end of Concord Church, and you see those
10 transmssion lines that are the southern
11 boundary t hat nobody can go up beyond.
12 The next page, 14, is A d Domni nion.
13 It is a nonstrous facility. |If you go down
14 Bi shop Road -- it is quite large. And you
15 can see it -- on page 15, you can see it from
16 the landfill.
17 But if you | ook at the bottom of 15,
18 you're looking at trucks in the | ower
19 portion, but that's the landfill right behind
20 it. That is the -- that grassy area is the
21  landfill.
22 The sane is on page 16, and, again,
23 phot ographs of the Guilford County Wite
24 Goods facility.
25 Then you have the CGuilford County
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1 recycling facility that's on 17.
2 And then 17 and 18 are the Republic
3 transfer station. W have a transfer station
4 that is taking trash down either to Troy in
5 Mont gonery County, or | think nost of the
6 governnents who are delivering MSWwaste to
7 that facility are now going to the Asheboro
8 landfill.
9 And then there are a coupl e ot her
10 phot ographs toward the end, and on page 21
11  you will see the trailer at the end of
12 Concord Church | ooking up and seeing the
13 lines and all the trucks out on Bi shop Road.
14 So that is our overview of the
15 evi dence.
16 | would like, M. Chairman, if you
17 would allow us to bring two w tnesses
18 f orward.
19 | would like M. Garrett to cone
20 forward first and hit the highlights of his
21 testinony fromthe [ast hearing, and after he
22 speaks, Mdlly Chisholmw ||l conme forward.
23 Both of themw |l give you their
24 credentials, they' Il introduce what's in
25 here, and they will put sonme evidence into
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the record.

MR, DONNELLY: Very good. Thank you,
M. Terrell.

M. Garrett, again when you cone
forward, if you would introduce yourself wth
your nane and address again and then invite
you to share.

Yes.

MR. GARRETT: Sign the papers?

MR, DONNELLY: Yes. And then we'l]l
invite you to share your testinony.

MR. GARRETT: I'Il do this first.

MR, DONNELLY: Sure.

MR. GARRETT: Thank you.

M. Chairman, board nenbers, | am
David Garrett. | ama |licensed geol ogi st and
a registered engineer with the State of North
Car ol i na.

|'ve been in private practice for 40
years, 30 years of which |I've been in the
solid waste area. And |'ve been invol ved
With this project under consideration tonight
for over 20 years.

| do wish to reiterate ny earlier

testinony that addressed the conpliance wth
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1 all of the applicable regulations under which
2 the facility is permtted, and | think to
3 that effect, | would like to explain briefly
4 the permtting process and hel p the board
5 understand what all is involved with getting
6 one of these facilities beyond what this
7 board does.

8 The state and federal regulations are
9 codified in various places. |[|'ll quote one
10 in a nonent. They specify standards for the
11 permtting, design, operation, and nonitoring
12 of the facility. Al aspects of the facility

13 are very highly regul at ed.

14 The permt is the standard. It

15 defines the base grades, the final grades,
16 operating conditions such as the litter

17 control, such as waste placenent, and

18 covering the waste.

19 There is an environnental inpact study
20 as a part of this required by the state.

21 The permt defines water quality

22 nmonitoring closure -- and we haven't tal ked
23 about this -- post closure. This is -- the
24 obligation of the applicant extends beyond
25 the useful life of the facility.
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1 There is a 30-year m ni num post
2 cl osure care period for which the applicant
3 has put up a bond with the State of North
4 Carolina to cover the cost of those -- of
5 post-cl osure care should it be needed.
6 The permt application wll be
7 prepared by nyself. It wll be submtted to
8 the state. It's called the North Carolina
9 Departnment of Environnental Quality Waste --
10 Waste Managenent -- Division of Waste
11 Managenent & Solid WAste Section. That's
12 really a nouthful. W call themthe SW5.
13 The rules that we work under for this
14 type of facility are codified as 13A NCAC
15 . 0500, et seq. There are about 14 provisions
16 here that follow the .0500 rules.
17 Once the permt is reviewed by a team
18 of equally qualified engi neers and
19 geol ogists, | will have an opportunity to
20 answer their questions a little |ess
21 formal Iy, but we work out anything that they
22 feel |ike needs to be addressed, and then
23 they issue a draft permt.
24 After the draft permt is issued,
25 there is a 45-day waiting period, after which
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1 the -- there's a notification period and then
2 the 45 days starts to allow the public --

3 public to submt coments to the state.

4 And there is a public hearing at the

5 state level, and they will do this again.

6 So those are the steps that wll take
7 pl ace after -- after this |l eaves this room

8 here. There's still a long road to go here.
9 | would like to conclude by saying

10 that we have been in this site for 14 years,
11 si nce 2009.

12 Actually, we operated it as a sand

13 mne earlier than that that had its own set
14 of rules and permtting process that kind of
15 over | apped with solid waste rules that we

16 eventually rolled into.

17 And | failed to point out sonething

18 | nportant here is that the sedi nent and

19 erosi on control aspect of permtting and
20 monitoring falls into the county's purview so
21 that's done at the |l ocal |evel where, you
22 know, we'll go through that at TRC and, you
23 know, neet those kind of requirenents. They
24 are very specific to this |ocation.
25 And we so far have net all of the

www.huseby.com Huseby Global Litigation 800-333-2082


http://www.huseby.com

IN RE: A-1 SANDROCK

Guilford County Planninig Board Hearing on 01/11/2023 Page 91
1 requi renents. The facility neets all
2 applicable state, local, and federal
3 requi renments for permtting, design, and
4 operation, and nonitoring.
5 That's ny testinony.
6 MR. DONNELLY: Thank you, M. Garrett.
7 At this point, I'd like to invite if
8 anyone has questions of M. Garrett
9 specifically with respect to sone of these --
10 the regulatory and scientific aspects, if
11 you'd like to check with himat this point,
12 I f anyone has any questions.
13 M. Craft?
14 MR. CRAFT: | can't find it in here,
15 but | saw earlier that in the 20 or so years,
16 there -- this operation has not been cited
17 for anything that woul d endanger the public.
18 s that correct?
19 MR. GARRETT: That is correct.
20 MR. CRAFT: kay. Thank you.
21 MR. TERRELL: David, did you state
22 that it would neet all the code requirenents
23 so that we have that in the record? The
24 zoni ng ordi nance?
25 MR GARRETT: Yes, yes.

www.huseby.com Huseby Global Litigation 800-333-2082


http://www.huseby.com

IN RE: A-1 SANDROCK

Guilford County Planninig Board Hearing on 01/11/2023 Page 92

1 MR. TERRELL: Ckay.

2 MR. GARRETT: As we had prepared our

3 sketch plan and we'll proceed with further

4 pl an devel opnent, we will neet all applicable
5 zoni ng requirenents.

6 MR. DONNELLY: Thank you.

7 MR. TERRELL: That's good.

8 MR, DONNELLY: Any other questions for
9 M. Garrett?

10 | believe -- thank you, M. Grrett.
11 | believe we have one additi onal

12 person who would like to testify.

13 MR. GARRETT: Thank you.

14 MR. DONNELLY: | know that you swore
15 yourself in before, but if you' d cone up and
16 I ntroduce yourself and sign our sheet, we'd
17 | ove to hear what you have to say.

18 M5. CH SHOLM Ckay. All right. Good
19 evening. M/ nane is Molly Chisholm ['ma
20 North Carolina State certified residenti al
21 appraiser wwth 30 years of experience,
22 working the entire tinme with the firmHylton
23 Crowder & Associates in H gh Point here in
24 Qui | ford County.
25 | estimate that |'ve appraised
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1 somewhere around 12,000 hones or ot her
2 properties in ny career.
3 | maintain ny license; regularly
4 attend sem nars and continuing ed to be
5 I nformed of energing trends, changes in
6 appraising, and to maintain ny |icense.
7 What | have presented to you tonight
8 s not an appraisal. | was not asked to
9 pl ace a market value on a particular house or
10 use of | and.
11 Rat her, this is a consulting
12 assignnent to determne if the expansion of
13 an existing construction and denolition
14 | andfill would have a neasurabl e inpact on
15 adj oi ning or abutting property and, if so,
16 woul d that inpact be an injury to property
17  val ues.
18 To reach a conclusion, | used anal yses
19 and net hodol ogi es that are taught by and are
20 consistent with the regul ations set forth by
21 the National Appraisal Standard Board which
22 conformw th the Uniform Standards of
23 Pr of essi onal Appraisal Practice, or what is
24 comonly referred to as USPAP.
25 These st andards have been devel oped
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1 and tested over nmany decades, and they are

2 changed every two years to better conform

3 with current |ending practices.

4 This is a standard that is relied upon
5 by every financial institution in our country
6 for |l ending purposes and for real estate

7 transactions. They are used and accepted by
8 all state and federal trial courts.

9 These sane net hods and standards were
10 applied to performny study to determ ne

11 whether an expansion of the existing C&D

12 | andfill would substantially injure the val ue
13 of properties in close proximty to the use,
14 this proposed use.

15 In conformty with these standards, |
16 found facilities that were simlar and sone
17 that had the potential for greater negative
18 | npact. These are called paired sales

19 anal ysis, or the nore common termis
20 "conpar abl e sal es.”
21 At each facility, | found property in
22 close proximty to a C& landfill or other
23 ext ernal obsol escence which had sold and then
24 conpared that property to sales of simlar
25 properties within the sane general tine
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1 period and in the sanme nmarketing area and yet
2 far enough away that the inpact of the

3 studied facility would not have an i npact.

4 The data | coll ected shows objectively
5 how peopl e have chosen to spend their wealth
6 as they invest in their hones.

7 | have been to many hearings where

8 realtors give their opinion about effects on
9 wvalue, but until they have done an in-depth
10 study like this one, they are not giving an
11 opi ni on that would neet guidelines set forth
12 by the Appraisal Institute and USPAP.

13 This data shows sal es of hones

14 adj oining or abutting facilities like this
15 one or even nore intense facilities, such as
16 a rock quarry, a sawm ||, and a yard waste
17 conpost facility, do not injure their

18 mar ket -- the market value, and, therefore,
19 there is no injury to property val ues.
20 Does anyone have any questi ons about
21 nm...?
22 IMR. DONNELLY: Any questions for
23 Ms. Chi shol n?
24 |'ve got a couple of questions just
25 as -- looking at the anal ysis.
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1 In this particular case, we're

2 expanding -- the proposal is to expand a

3 facility that already exists, and so |I'm

4 curious if you could comment on how that, if

5 at all, influences the results that are here.

6 And one of the -- would you like to

7 answer that first, and I'll ask the second

8 one?

9 M5. CH SHOLM No, you can go ahead.
10 MR. DONNELLY: The second question
11  would be -- | heard one of the paraneters
12 that we're looking at is the height of this,
13 and |"mcurious if you have any -- any
14 ability to comment on how that plays into any
15 of the data that you |ooked at as a -- as a
16 rel evant factor.

17 M5. CH SHOLM Ckay. To answer the
18 first question, it's very difficult to find,
19 you know, these facilities, and nore

20 specifically, a sale close to a facility.

21 And really the state standard is it
22 al nost has to be abutting or within a half
23 mile.

24 And so to find a facility, a C&D

25 facility that's just sinply expanding |ike
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1 this one is, I was not able to find anything

2 |like that.

3 | just used three C& facilities,

4 three quarries, a sawm ||, and a yard waste

5 and conpost.

6 Actually, it's two -- sorry -- C&D

7 facilities. One in Wnston-Salem one in

8 Alamance County.

9 As far as the height, the quarries, |
10 t hi nk, are even hi gher than what the proposed
11 hei ght of this facility would be. To ne,

12 that woul d be a conparabl e external factor.
13 But when | am | ooking for the sales,
14 again, | don't know, other than driving by
15 there, how -- | don't know the specifications
16 of the construction of those facilities.

17 MR, DONNELLY: Um hum Ckay. Thank
18 you.

19 M5. CH SHOLM  Um hum

20 MR. DONNELLY: Any ot her questions for
21 Ms. Chi shol n?

22 MR. TERRELL: Ms. Chisholm would you
23 expl ain why you | ooked at quarries when this
24 is a C& | andfill.

25 M5. CH SHOLM | | ooked at quarries
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1 because they have a simlar pitch, if you
2 wll. They also have a noise factor.
3 They actually, in ny experience,
4 have -- have a worse reputation, if you wll,
5 because of the use of blasting, which has
6 becone very scientific and mnimal, but still
7 the -- the image in everyone's mnd is
8 dynamte and things like that. And so to ne
9 that is a worst case scenario conpared to a
10 C&D landfill.
11 MR. TERRELL: And what were your
12 findings on those?
13 M5. CH SHOLM They were -- they were
14 the sane as the findings wwth the C&D
15 | andfills. There was no negative i npact.
16 And a couple of those were just
17 right -- the one in Elkin was, | nean, right
18 next door to the landfill. | nean to the
19 quarry.
20 MR. ALSTON: Just so I'mclear, you
21 were doing CMAs on properties close to C&D
22 facilities and trying to find out the inpact
23 of the property val ues?
24 M5. CHHSHOLM So -- so not a CVA
25 That's sonething that realtors do.
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1 MR. ALSTON: Right.

2 M5. CH SHOLM What | did was | ook for
3 a sale -- let's just use one of the exanples
4 like -- and | don't have ny report in front

5 of ne.

6 But the -- the first oneis a -- |

7 think it was a townhone, but it's near -- it
8 abuts a C& landfill in Wnston-Sal em

9 MR, ALSTON:  Um hum

10 M5. CHISHOLM So that -- so | take

11 ot her townhones --

12 MR ALSTON: Right.

13 M5. CH SHOLM -- that would be

14 marketed in the sane -- that sane marketing
15 ar ea.

16 And it's really like doing an

17 apprai sal, except that the only factor that
18 Is different other than square footage,

19 nunber of bat hroons, you know, just little
20 things, it isolates the fact that this one is
21 next to a C& landfill, and does it still end
22 up with a simlar result in the sale price.
23 Does that nmake sense?
24 MR. ALSTON: Yeah, it does.
25 |"mjust trying to figure out how you
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1 determne that -- that just by one factor, |
2 guess, sO to speak.
3 M5. CHHSHOLM Well, you -- and in the
4 grid -- the sales conparison grids are in the
5 report. It shows how they -- they line up,
6 and you just put the data -- you spread that
7 out --
8 MR, ALSTON: Ckay.
9 M5. CH SHOLM -- and conpare each
10 property to the one that is close to the --
11 t he negati ve.
12 MR ALSTON:  Yes, nma'am
13 M5. CHI SHOLM  Yeah.
14 MR. ALSTON. Got you. Thank you.
15 M5. CH SHOLM  Um hum
16 IMR. DONNELLY: So just to follow up on
17 that and confirmthat I'mreading it
18 correctly, so | do have your report that |I'm
19 flipping through.
20 So each of the conparabl es includes
21 one property that is adjacent to one of these
22 uses, and then the other properties are sales
23 that would not be. And you're doing an
24 anal ysis between the two to identify if
25 there's a difference in --
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1 M5. CHHSHOLM Right. And | guess
2 t hat gets confusing because then those
3 properties are consi dered conparabl es, but
4 t hey' re conparabl e because they are within
5 that market, they sold within the year that
6 you can go back, and woul d appeal to the sane
7 buyer other than that one factor.
8 MR, DONNELLY: Ckay. Thank you for
9 that clarification.
10 M5. CH SHOLM  Um hum
11 MR. DONNELLY: Anything el se?
12 Any ot her questions for M. Chisholnf
13 Al right. Thank you.
14 s there any -- any additional
15 comments that you would |ike to nake,
16 M. Terrell?
17 MR. TERRELL: | knowit's getting
18 | ate, but we -- we have concl uded our case in
19 chief.
20 There may be things said in the
21 opposition that | would like to rebut and use
22 t hat opportunity for cross-exam nation, but
23 at this point, | think that the record is
24 abundantly clear that for an evidentiary
25 hearing, the applicant has presented evi dence
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1 that is conpetent material and substanti al
2 and it neets that initial threshold of
3 entitling the applicant to the permt at this
4 time.
5 Thank you.
6 MR. DONNELLY: Thank you, M. Terrell.
7 At this point, | wanted to find out if
8 there are others in the room who woul d now
9 w sh to speak in opposition to this request.
10 Ckay. First thing I'"'mgoing to do is
11 ' mgoing to have you take the oath that we
12 had ot her fol ks take earlier.
13 So if you -- you're already standi ng.
14 Rai se your right hand.
15 Do you swear to tell the truth, the
16 whol e truth, and nothing but the truth? And
17 you could --
18 MR. COLEMAN. Yes, | do.
19 MR. DONNELLY: Ckay. Thank you.
20 Al right. So I'll invite you
21 f orward.
22 Again, this is a little bit different
23 fromthe last hearing that we had in that
24 what we're considering as a board is evidence
25 that woul d either support or contradict that
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1 the conditions that M. Bass described a

2 little bit ago are net. So that's what we're
3 going to be listening to.

4 And as M. Terrell indicated, if there
5 I s sonmething that conmes up, he may have the

6 opportunity to interject or ask for a

7 clarification.

8 MR. COLEMAN: kay. |'Il describe one
9 nore tinme this, and 1'd just like to know --
10 MR, DONNELLY: Ckay. Nane and --

11 MR. COLEMAN. Ch, Richard Col eman.

12 Ri chard Col eman.

13 You need ny hone address?

14 MR. DONNELLY: Pl ease.

15 MR. COLEMAN: 1204 Meadow Street. |
16 own the adjacent property, 2372 Concord

17 Church Road, and that -- it's real property
18 Is what it is.

19 And since I'mgoing to | ose val ue on
20 my property, aml going to get ny taxes
21 reduced?
22 And they already have a special use
23 permt on the property now. So what are we
24 going to do? Just keep handi ng out speci al
25 use permts like it's candy? Does anybody
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1 get one? Can | get one on ny property if

2 they're that easy to get?

3 And that's all |'ve got to say.

4 VR, DONNELLY: Ckay. M. Bell, would
5 you like to talk about the special use permt
6 process that folks go through just to...

7 MR. BELL: There are sone uses that

8 are outright permtted uses based on your

9 zoning district, and there are sone that's
10 listed in our UDO that have devel opnent

11 st andards, which neans for that particular

12 use one may be pernmitted and you don't have
13 to cone to a board to secure an additional

14 permt.

15 There are certain -- there's certain
16 requi renents that you have to neet. It could
17 be size. It could be operating hours.

18 Then there are certain uses that have
19 an S that are -- that do require a speci al
20 use permt, which is a quasi-judicial
21 process.
22 So if you ask can you get one on your
23 property, it all depends on what use you are
24 requesting because it may require a speci al
25 use permt or it may not.
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1 Wth regards to the taxes, what |

2 woul d have you do is to contact the tax

3 departnent, sinply being that if there's a

4 special use permt on the property now, they
5 could tell you whether or not your property
6 val ues have gone down now or if they went up.
7 The county just had a recent

8 reeval uation, so they can also tell you

9 whether or not by seeking an additional

10 and/ or anended special use permt if that

11  w |l cause your property to stay the sanme, go
12 up, or go down. But you want to talk with
13 the tax departnent.

14 MR. COLEMAN: Well, you know it's

15 going to go down.

16 MR, BELL: | -- 1 don't know that.

17 MR. COLEMAN. So seeing that it's a
18 gar bage dunp there, so ny property value is
19 going to go down.
20 MR. BELL: Didit go down -- do you
21 know? -- on the refile? D dit go down from
22 what it was prior to this past year?
23 MR. COLEMAN. That | do not know.
24 MR. BELL: So what you can do --
25 MR. COLEMAN. But -- but it was not a
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C&D | andfill right on top of ne either.

MR. BELL: Contact the tax -- contact
the tax departnent. They -- that's who you
want to talk to about that.

W don't deal with the tax part of it.

MR. DONNELLY: Thank you, M. Bell.

Any additional comments, M. Col eman?

MR. COLEMAN: That's it.

MR, DONNELLY: Al right. Thank you
for comng out tonight. Appreciate you being
her e.

MR. COLEMAN:. | hope you guys |istened
to ne.

MR. DONNELLY: M. Terrell, you
I ndi cated that you may w sh to have anot her
comment. |Is there anything el se you woul d
| i ke to share?

MR. TERRELL: 1'Il approach the m ke
only to say | don't have anything to rebut or
to cross-exam ne and our case is closed.

MR, DONNELLY: Ckay. Thank you.

MR. TERRELL: Thank you.

| wll say there's an order in your
packet that has proposed findings if you

would |li ke to consult that.
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1 MR, DONNELLY: Thank you.

2 So at this point for us as a board --
3 M. Bell, if I can just confirm we don't

4 really need to close the hearing, or do we?
5 MR. BELL: | would close the hearing.
6 It's the public hearing but close the

7 heari ng.

8 VR, DONNELLY: Al right. So do |

9 entertain a notion to close the hearing on
10 this matter for the eveni ng?

11 MR. CRAFT: So noved.

12 M5. BUCHANAN: So noved.

13 MR. DONNELLY: I'mgoing to give it to
14 M. Craft.

15 And, Ms. Buchanan, are you willing to
16 t ake a second?

17 M5. BUCHANAN: Second.

18 MR, DONNELLY: Al right. Al those
19 in favor of closing the hearing, please
20 I ndi cate by sayi ng aye.
21 BOARD MEMBERS:. Aye.
22 MR. DONNELLY: Any opposed?
23 (Carification by the court
24 reporter.)
25 MR DONNELLY: Ckay. So this wll

www.huseby.com Huseby Global Litigation 800-333-2082


http://www.huseby.com

IN RE: A-1 SANDROCK

Guilford County Planninig Board Hearing on 01/11/2023 Page 108

1 still be part of the deliberations. Thank

2 you for clarifying that.

3 So at this point we can have a

4 di scussion. |If soneone feels like they are
5 in a position to make an assessnent of

6 whet her or not -- again, our -- our task

7 here, as is the case for a special use

8 permt, is to determ ne whether or not the

9 st andards have been net by the applicant.

10 And we have -- in addition to the

11 I nformati on that the applicant provided, we
12 have fornms provided fromthe staff that all ow
13 us to wal k through, identify whether or not
14 those standards have been net.

15 MR. BELL: As he indicated, he did

16 provide findings of fact, so in lieu of that,
17 I f you al so chose, you could read that

18 because it has the sane findings. So that

19 would be at the board' s discretion. Not
20 everyone does that, but he did do this.
21 MR, DONNELLY: Yeah. Okay. Thank
22 you, M. Bell.
23 And the -- the one thing that we wll
24 need to adapt fromthat is the recognition
25 that we tal ked about earlier that any find --
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1 any concl usions we reach tonight have to be

2 conti ngent on the appeal -- the appeal period
3 bei ng exhaust ed.

4 MR, BELL: Right, right, that is

5 correct.

6 And so then what woul d happen is then
7 we would hold this reporting until that

8 15-day period is up based on that condition.
9 MR, DONNELLY: Ckay. Thank you.

10 MR. CRAFT: Did | hear we could accept
11 these findings of fact? |Is that what |

12 hear d?

13 MR, BELL: Yes.

14 MR, DONNELLY: Yes.

15 MR. CRAFT: | have a question, then,
16 about this that M. Terrell mght need to

17 answer .

18 MR DONNELLY: Ckay.

19 MR. CRAFT: Under B, the | ast sentence
20 of the first paragraph, "In fact, the public
21 Is not invited into this fenced-in facility."”
22 The prior sentence refers to it not
23 bei ng a danger, but then it says the public
24 Is not invited in, so that -- those two don't
25 really connect. And it's not fenced in.
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1 MR. TERRELL: Wiich paragraph -- |I'm

2 | ooki ng at B.

3 MR. CRAFT: B, Public Safety, the | ast

4 sentence of the first paragraph.

5 MR. BELL: Under Findings of Fact?

6 MR. DONNELLY: He's | ooking at

7 sonething different.

8 MR. CRAFT: |Is that Exhibit B?

9 IMR. DONNELLY: No, this is sonething
10 that was -- cane as part of the -- it was the
11 i nsi de cover of the notebook.

12 MR CRAFT: I|I'msorry. I'm--

13 MR. DONNELLY: That's okay.

14 MR. CRAFT: A lot of stuff tonight.

15 MR, DONNELLY: That's right.

16 It was on the inside cover of the

17 bi nder .

18 MR. CRAFT: Ckay. Ckay. | got you.
19 MR. DONNELLY: Yeah.

20 And so | think if | understood what

21 M. Bell offered and what M. Terrell offered
22 Is that M. Terrell has gone through and

23 articul ated, organized for us the information
24  that has been presented, and if we find that
25 this is sufficient, we could enter this as
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the finding of fact for the special use
permt and recomend approval of that permt
conti ngent upon the appeal period being
exhaust ed.

MR. BELL: Right. And, M. Terrell,
for the record, is it your intent that this
be read or by reference?

MR. TERRELL: You nean all of the
findi ngs?

MR BELL: Yes.

MR. TERRELL: No, | don't think it has
to be read. It is presented to the board
formally in our notebook that we tendered as
evi dence, and the board has it to | ook at.

| think the board woul d be satisfied
that every single finding is taken out of the
materials that are either in the notebook or
that were testified to.

So the board could just -- other
communities and settings and counties w |
just say "I nove that we adopt these findings
and concl usi ons. "

MR. DONNELLY: And if we do that,

M. Bell, how do we incorporate the

conditions we tal ked about on the front end?
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1 MR. TERRELL: They're already

2 | ncor por at ed.

3 MR. DONNELLY: They're incorporated on
4 t he application?

) MR TERRELL: Yes.

6 MR. DONNELLY: Got it. Ckay.

7 MR. TERRELL: Under Conclusions, it

8 says, "Subject to all conditions offered in

9 t he application.™

10 The application was anended to include
11 what was read tonight.

12 MR. DONNELLY: Perfect. Thank you.

13 Al right.

14 MR. BELL: Now, one thing I wll say,
15 because these are recorded, the conditions,
16 woul d you accept -- and you can take a | ook
17 at that.

18 There's an attachnment to this that

19 lists the conditions, so that when it's
20 recorded, then the conditions are recorded
21 along wth the findings.
22 MR. TERRELL: | would be pleased to
23 draft an attachnent that is 100 percent
24 consistent with what was read into the
25 record --
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MR, BELL: Ckay.

MR. TERRELL: -- and send that to you
along wth what you're holding as a Wrd
docunent .

MR. BELL: Gkay. Right. kay.

MR, DONNELLY: Al right. So if | --
in summary, if sonmeone would chose to nmake a
notion, it can be that we would affirmthe
findings of fact as articulated in this
docunent, including the conditions that were
read into the application on the front end,
and we woul d chose to approve based on that
contingent on the appeal period expiring for
this application got recorded. Before the

permt got recorded.

MR BELL: Yes.
MR. DONNELLY: So is there a notion?
MR. LITTLE: | have a question.
IVMR. DONNELLY: Sure.
MR. LITTLE: | have a statenent,
per haps.

DONNELLY:  Absol utely.

VR
MR. LITTLE: So we are going to have a

notion finding that these are actual facts;

right?
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1 Now, on nunber D, letter D by
2 Ms. Chisholm in the testinony, she is
3 saying -- it sounded to ne |like she said that
4 it was very hard to find conparabl e sales,
5 but her testinony was that the val ue woul d
6 not, in fact, be reduced or substantially
7 I njured, even though she said that it was
8 hard to find conparabl es.
9 Li ke, we're taking that as testinony,
10 testinony in fact?
11 M5. CH SHOLM Can |?
12 MVR. DONNELLY: Absolutely, you can
13 clarify.
14 M5. CH SHOLM Yeah, it's very
15 specific, very -- another conparable, | nean,
16 the main one that extends to the external
17 obsol ete feature, quarry, landfill, sawml]|.
18 So, in other words, it wasn't
19 difficult to find the conparables to conpare
20 to that property. It's just difficult to
21 find a property that is in that close of a
22 proximty to a facility, but | do have seven
23 of themin here and have conpared those to
24 ot her properties in their market.
25 MR, LITTLE: Okay. And your finding
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1 was that there was no --
2 M5. CH SHOLM  There was no injury.
3 In other words, | ook at the sal es conparison
4 grid. Each conparable that was cl ose to the
5 facility ended up, even after all adjustnents
6 were made for concrete things |ike a garage
7 or not or things like that, they still would
8 end up with a simlar eventual sale price.
9 MR LITTLE: Okay. Thank you.
10 MR, DONNELLY: And | think certainly
11 our option is we can use this, or we can use
12 the formthat was provided to us if we're
13 nore confortable using that in terns of the
14 findings of fact. W can -- we can go either
15 way .
16 | s anybody prepared to offer a notion
17 for our consideration?
18 MR CRAFT: Well, yeah, | wll.
19 But let me first say | -- you know, |
20 take sonething like this pretty seriously
21 because this is a significant operation.
22 It's also an i nportant operation. |It's
23 sonething Quilford County needs. 1It's one
24 reason Cuilford County gave them a franchise
25 to provide this service, | guess, nore or
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1 | ess on behalf of the county so the county
2 doesn't have to do it itself.
3 |'ve | ooked at the findings of fact.
4 |'"ve reviewed all this. |'ve been out to the
5 site three different tines. | actually go
6 down 220 several tinmes a week. And got to
7 |l earn a | ot about what's just off the highway
8 t here.
9 So -- but these are -- you know, these
10 are inportant things that we need.
11 So | would like to nake a notion that
12 we accept these findings of fact with the
13 conditions that were read in earlier and with
14 the additional condition that -- that this
15 be approved subject to the rezoning of the
16 14- acre parcel becone final after 14 days.
17 Does that cover everything?
18 MR BELL: 15 days.
19 MR, DONNELLY: 15 days.
20 MR. CRAFT: 15 days.
21 Does that cover everything?
22 IMR. DONNELLY: | believe it does.
23 MR CRAFT: Al right.
24 MR. DONNELLY: Is there a second?
25 MR. STALDER: Second.
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1 IMR. DONNELLY: Any discussion before
2 we call a vote?

3 MR, LITTLE: |Is this a majority vote?
4 IMR. DONNELLY: Yes, it is. This --

5 this would be -- well, our vote -- the

6 decision wll be based on majority vote,

7 that's correct.

8 MR LITTLE: Ckay. Thank you.

9 MR. DONNELLY: Yeah, the approval

10 requires a majority of the fol ks who are

11 here, so it requires four votes in favor in
12 order to pass.

13 MR. LITTLE: Ckay. Very good.

14 MR. CRAFT: Do we have to have

15 unani nous, or it can be appealed to -- not
16 the comm ssioners but to the superior court?
17 MR. DONNELLY: No, no. W just need
18 to --

19 MR. CRAFT: W just vote on it?
20 MR. DONNELLY: That's right.
21 But there is that opportunity --
22 MR. CRAFT: But it goes to the
23 superior court after us not choosing it?
24 MR. DONNELLY: That's correct.
25 MR CRAFT: kay.
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1 MR. DONNELLY: And | guess the one

2 thing I just wanted to add before we take a
3 vote, | appreciate your diligence in that,

4 M. Craft.

5 And |'ve had the opportunity to go out
6 and visit as well, and I -- and | appreciate
7 you're lifting up that this is sonething

8 that's inportant in the role we do, and we

9 take this role of finding of fact and trying
10 to understand how we protect both the

11 Interests of the citizens in the community as
12 well as the wellbeing of the -- of the folks
13 I n the community.

14 And I'minclined to support, but I

15 appreci ate the diligence you' ve done, and |
16 appreciate the diligence that has been done
17 all around in terns of trying to bring all

18 the relevant information to the table here.
19 So | just wanted to say that before we vote.
20 Any ot her comments?
21 Rol|l call vote, please.
22 M5. TEAGUE: M. Al ston?
23 MR ALSTON: Yes.
24 M5. TEAGUE: Ms. Buchanan?
25 M5. BUCHANAN: Yes.
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1 M5. TEAGUE: Dr. Bui?
2 Dr. BU: Yes.
3 M5. TEAGUE: M. Craft?
4 MR. CRAFT: Yes.
) M5. TEAGUE: M. Little?
6 MR LITTLE: Yes.
7 MR. BELL: D d we get a second on
8 t hat ?
9 MR. STALDER: Yeah, | seconded.
10 MR. BELL: You seconded. Gkay. Thank
11 you.
12 M5. TEAGUE: M. Stal der?
13 MR STALDER  Yes.
14 M5. TEAGUE: M. Donnelly?
15 MR, DONNELLY: Yes.
16 So this perm -- this special use
17 permt is approved.
18 As was articulated, this is just one
19 step in the process. Additional steps are
20 going to have to -- need to happen before any
21 operati on conmmences.
22 But, again, | appreciate everyone's
23 patience in sitting through this tonight.
24 It is inportant that we hear all the
25 rel evant i nformation.
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And | appreciate the diligence on
behal f of the applicant to try to nake sure
that all the bases were covered in this
process.

MR. TERRELL: May | thank you for a
very well run neeting and for good questions.

MR, DONNELLY: Thank you, M. Terrell.
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(Hearing concludes, 8:39 p.m)
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CERTI FI CATE OF COURT REPORTER

I, Lisa Taylor, Regi stered Professional

Reporter, certify:

That the foregoing natter

was taken before

me at the tinme and place therein set forth;

That the testinony of the witness(es) and
all objections nade at the tine of the proceedi ng

were recorded stenographically by ne,

ny ability, and thereafter transcri

That the foregoing transcript

record of the testinony and of all
at the tinme of the proceeding.

| further certify that |

counsel for nor related to any party to said action,
nor in any way interested in the outcone thereof.

In wi tness whereof, | have subscri bed ny

nanme this 17th day of January 2023.

Li sa Tayl or
Regi stered Prof essi onal Reporter
Not ary Public

bed;

obj ecti ons made

am nei t her

to the best of
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GUILFORD COUNTY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES

NC Cooperative Extension — Agricultural Center
3309 Burlington Road, Greensboro NC 27405

February 8, 2023, 6:00 PM

A. Roll call
The following Board members were in attendance in person for this meeting:
Guy Gullick, Vice Chair; David Craft; Jason Little; Dr. Nho Bui; Cara Buchanan; Sam Stalder; and
Rev. Gregory Drumwright. (Rev. Drumwright arrived at 6:32 p.m. for the remainder of the
meeting)
The following Board members were not in attendance at this meeting:
James Donnelly, Chair and Ryan Alston

The following staff members were in attendance in-person for this meeting:

J. Leslie Bell, Planning and Development Director; Justin Snyder, Senior Planner; Rachel Teague, Office
Specialist; and Stephen Thomas, Fire Marshal

B. Agenda Amendments

Leslie Bell stated that Item E (Continuance Requests) on the agenda would be moved under Agenda
Amendments based on inquiry by Vice Chair Gullick regarding Case #22-11-PLBD-00029 listed under
Old Business.

C. Approval of January 11, 2023, Minutes: Forthcoming
D. Rules and Procedures

Vice Chair Gullick provided information to everyone present regarding the Rules and Procedures
followed by the Guilford County Planning Board.

E. Continuance Requests

Leslie Bell stated that there has been a request from the applicant for Conditional Zoning Case #22-
11-PLBD-00029 from RS-40 Single-Family and AG, to Light Industrial Conditional Zoning located along
Methodist Road, south of its intersection with Liberty Road and contains 96.33 acres. Included in the
member’s packet is a request to continue indefinitely, at this time. There are a number of policy
initiatives that are being considered and updated/modified by the City of Greensboro, which may or
may not have an impact ultimately on how this area develops. Staff would like the opportunity to
consider the outcomes of those initiatives (as well as the applicant) before moving forward.
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Mr. Craft moved to continue the above-mentioned to a future meeting, seconded by Ms. Buchanan.
The Board voted 6-0 in favor of the motion. (Ayes: Craft, Buchanan, Bui, Gullick, Stalder, Little. Nays:
None. Members absent: Donnelly and Alston).

F. Old Business

Legislative Hearing Item(s)

CONDITIONAL ZONING CASE #22-11-PLBD-00029: RS-40, RESIDENTIAL, SINGLE-FAMILY AND AG,
AGRICULTURAL TO CZ-LI, CONDITIONAL ZONING-LIGHT INDUSTRIAL - Located along Methodist Road
south of its intersection with Liberty Road (includes Guilford County Tax Parcels 122311, 122325,
124720, 124711, 122331, and 122310 split by US Highway 421 right-of-way in Clay Township) and
comprises approximately 96.33 acres. [Request to Continue Passed]

G. New Business

Non-Legislative Hearing Item(s)

None

Legislative Hearing Item(s)

REZONING CASE #22-12-PLBD-00032: AG, AGRICULTURAL, TO RS-30, RESIDENTIAL: 8527 Zz
HUDSON-JAMES ROAD AND A 2.89-ACRE PORTION OF 8426 ZZ RUMBLEY ROAD

Located at 8527 ZZ Hudson-James Road and 8426 ZZ Rumbley Road (Guilford County Tax Parcel
#221302 and a portion of #147559 in Bruce Township), is approximately 1,660 feet south of the
intersection of Rumbley Road and U.S. Highway 158 and comprises approximately 18.06 acres.
(APPROVED WITHOUT REQUIRED 75% MAJORITY-TO BE SENT TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AS A
RECOMMENDATION AND FINAL APPROVAL)

Justin Snyder stated that this is a request to rezone the entirety of Guilford County Tax Parcel #221302
and a 2.89-acre portion of Tax Parcel #147559 in Bruce Township, which in total comprises
approximately 18.06 acres, from AG, Agricultural, to RS-30, Residential. The remaining 1.03 acres of
property in the western portion of Tax Parcel #147559 are to remain zoned AG. In the Board members’
packets are the descriptions of the AG district as well as the description for the RS-30 district. The RS-
30 district is primarily intended to accommodate single-family detached dwellings in areas without
access to public water and sewer services. The minimum lot size of this district is 30,000 square feet.
Cluster developments including conservation subdivisions are permitted. This area is just west of the
boundary of the jurisdiction of Summerfield, as shown on the map provided for review. The presence
of significant wetlands, streams, and other environmental encumbrances in this general area has
created a pattern that is generally low-density residential and agricultural. The existing land use on
the 2.98-acre portion of the northern property is heavily wooded and vacant. The southern property
has a wooded portion with the center of the property being cleared for agricultural use. It is also
vacant. Surrounding land uses on all sides are single-family residential and agricultural. There are no
inventoried historic landmarks on this site, and there are no cemeteries shown. There are minor
impacts projected to the public school facilities, and any development will be served by private septic
systems and wells. Both of these parcels are likely to be developed as a single-family residential
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subdivision and are anticipated to be developed in conjunction with the parcel to the north, which
actually fronts on Hudson-James Road. Staff is recommending approval of this request. The proposed
rezoning according to the Northwest Area Plan would be consistent with the recommendation of rural
residential. If approved, no map amendment would be required, and the request would be reasonable
and in the public interest because it is consistent with the rural residential land use designation and
with the zoning and land uses on the adjacent parcels. The requested zoning allows flexibility for
future subdivision design with slightly higher density to accommodate a variety of housing styles and
sizes.

Vice Chair Gullick asked for the speakers in favor of the request to come forward for this case.

Leslie Bell reminded speakers that there is a limit of 20 minutes for each side to make their comments.
He asked that everyone speaking be mindful of the 20-minute time limit.

Bill Greco, Land Solutions, P.O. Box 347, Oak Ridge, NC, stated that he is speaking on behalf of the
applicant in this case, and he thanked staff for all their assistance with putting the application together
and also for the staff report. The staff report is very thorough, and he does not think they need to
revisit any of the information previously stated by staff. Regarding their background and some of their
efforts thus far, the project does consist of not only the portion that is before the Board tonight, but
also the parcel to the north, which was rezoned in 2007. That parcel has not been developed and has
been vacant since that time. Combining these together with the proposed pieces this evening, they
would have approximately 43 single-family lots for a proposed subdivision.

Mr. Bell clarified that this is not a conditional rezoning so consideration of any one particular use
would not be applicable for this case. As the Board considers this, Mr. Greco was asked to speak in
more general terms because it is not a conditional zoning, but rather, it is a conventional rezoning. He
would ask that the Board consider the appropriateness of all the uses in the RS-30 zoning district for
this area.

Mr. Greco thanked Mr. Bell for his comments and continued on by saying that, to his knowledge, the
only use permitted in RS-30 is residential single-family, which is what they are proposing. They have
submitted to Guilford County Planning Department a Master Sketch Plan for the property with the
adjacent properties, and it went through the Technical Review Committee (TRC), whose comments
on that plan were “unremarkable, pretty standard” comments that you would expect for a Master
Sketch Plan review. Their efforts leading up to this meeting included reaching out to some of the
immediately adjacent neighbors via mail, and he has met with some people in person, on-site, and
there was a ZOOM open house meeting where neighbors were afforded the opportunity to ask
guestions and voice their concerns. The concerns that he is aware of to date are those typically seen
with a rezoning of this nature. There is a lot of sentiment that they wish the area could just stay the
way that itis. There were some concerns and some points made regarding them being good neighbors
throughout the development process, making sure that the environmental issues are addressed. They
feel that at the end of their efforts that they were able to answer some questions and provide some
information to those concerned.

Going back to the staff report and to the applicable regulations governing this property, the Northwest
Area Plan certainly recommends single-family residential, which is what they are asking for. It is not
conditional use, in that they do not have any conditions to add to this request. This is a very vanilla-
type application simply because it is for RS-30 zoning. There is a mix around the property, but certainly
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RS-30, AG, RS-40, MH, all of those are compatible districts in the ordinance and are very similar to
what they are proposing. He pointed out that the entrance would be on Hudson-James Road. NC-DOT
has taken a preliminary look at that, and this project does not warrant any improvements to Hudson-
James Road. He hopes the Board will approve this request for this project to move forward.

In regard to a question posed by Vice Chair Gullick, Mr. Greco stated that their office had sent out
cards to the adjacent property owners inviting them to attend the ZOOM meeting, and gave the link
and other information for the ZOOM meeting. It was fairly well-attended, and there were 6-8 people
there during a 40-minute discussion. They did not expand beyond the immediate adjacent property
owners, but they were invited to invite others, if they wanted to.

Mr. Little asked where the entrance to the property would be located. Mr. Greco responded that this
parcel to be rezoned is adjacent to parcel “C” on the map that is already zoned RS-30, and there is a
pond at the northernmost portion of that exhibit. Their road would be to the north of that pond and
will run east to Hudson-James Road.

Joe Thacker, 8269 Walter-Cone Way, Stokesdale, NC, stated that he will speak in favor of the request,
and he is speaking on behalf of Ms. Anne Thacker who is a property owner that borders this property.
She is not really for the rezoning, but she is also not against it. She and her husband sold the property
to the present owners. They have been expecting this action for some time now. She would like
clarification about the water run-off from this property that will be developed, as she still has property
on the east side of it, and it is downhill from where this property lies. She also would like some kind
of privacy fence or plantings that would give her peace and privacy on her property. She also would
like to know the setbacks for the houses from the street. They also want to know if all the houses will
be built at one time, or will they be built in phases?

Vice Chair Gullick asked if there was anyone wishing to speak in opposition to this request.

Mark Rector, 8309 Hudson-James Road, stated that if you take a look at the map, the RS-30 is strictly
the properties that border Hudson-James proper, while anything that is off Hudson-James is AG or
MH and RS-40. Though it is zoned RS-30, it is really quite limited. He pointed out that there are 40
homes located on Hudson-James Road and Wright’s Farm Lane. White Farm Lane enters and exits off
from Hudson-James, so there is no other path for them. The smallest lot size is 1 acre, and the largest
lot size is in excess of 30 acres. For someone to say that RS-30 is the standard, that is not true. He
stated that this development would more than double the traffic in this quiet neighborhood off of
Hwy 158. The people in this area moved there so they would have peace and quiet, but now there
would be a cluster development built right on top of them and wanted to know if that type of
development is off the table.

Mr. Bell stated that is not being considered this evening; this is not a conditional zoning district. Mr.
Snyder responded that “clustering” is simply that they would put the lots closer together in exchange
for leaving “open space” in other areas. But it doesn’t allow townhouses or something like that.

Ann Rector, 8309 Hudson-James Road, stated that she is taking the environmental approach and
brought some information to submit and protest the change from agricultural to RS-40, and she would
like everybody to see the packet of soils for this development; it is listed in the Board members’
literature. She wished to quote what was said about this property on Hudson-James Road, “The
majority of the property actually falls under very limited and indicates that the soil has one or more
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features that are unfavorable for the specified use limitations, generally, and special design would be
needed for septic tanks.” It is listed as “very limited,” and if you start putting that many houses on the
development, this would be part of the reason that other people are going to talk about the lack of
water in the area. Ms. Rector detailed some of the information that she shared with the Board
members. She pointed out that there is going to be a lot of tree cutting and a loss of homes for the
wildlife. The streams will overflow because of the disruption and severe water run-off from the
development. Poor septic systems and low water exist for the proposed homes in the area.

Jenny Tucker, 8426 Rumbley Road, stated that her property is located in the designated area “P” on
the map, and the big issue she has is that several of the houses around her have had problems when
they have dug their wells. When they dug the well on her property, it affected the man that owned
property next door to her. Once they start digging all these wells, how is that going to affect the water
supply in this area? She feels that this property should be left for the wildlife as it is. She is totally
against this request and would like for there to be some kind of restriction, that if it affects their water
supply, that the builder has to be responsible for that.

Marty Hyatt, 8545 Hudson-James Road, stated that one of her big concerns is the traffic pattern and
the use of one entrance/exit with approximately 80 cars coming out onto Hudson-James Road and
then onto Highway 158 where there have been numerous accidents. She has talked to the Town of
Summerfield, and they were not aware of this proposed development. They are interested because
that is a significant amount of housing that would affect the fire, schools, and other local facilities.
She is concerned about the septic area near the creek on the map, which shows a common septic
area, and it is right at the creek. She is also concerned about privacy screening and wants to know if
they will leave some of the trees to help with screening.

Vice Chair Gullick stated that in regard to concerns about septic, if they are unable to come up with
enough septic areas for the number of houses they would like to build, they will be restricted.

Virginia Brown, 8534 Hudson-James Road, stated that in regard to the soil classifications, she is a
licensed soil scientist, and the land there is actually considered prime farmland, which is some of the
most productive farmland in the state. She strongly disagrees with this proposal, changing it to RS-30,
and would like to keep it AG, rural residential, because if you build houses on all the AG, then it is
really important to keep this area of the County rural, and the agricultural heritage is a big part of the
state’s economy. When she built her home, she looked at all the surrounding land and chose that
location because all the properties had a lot of AG zoning, and that was where she wanted to live. A
lot of other people in this area feel the same way.

Janet James, 8579 Hudson-James Road, stated that they also have property on Highway 158. Her
concern is the vehicles exiting onto Hudson-James Road. There have been accidents and a fatality,
and her sister-in-law was killed pulling out on Hudson-James Road. She feels it would be better to exit
onto Rumbley Road and split that traffic.

Matthew Hawkrider, 8621 Hudson-James Road, stated that he owns property “I” on the map. The
creek runs along the edge of his property. As it stands right now, there is quite a bit of erosion that
occurs when there is a large downpour, and with taking all the natural area out, it will just increase
that erosion. His family moved to this area because it is rural, and he sold his property in Oak Ridge
because they started building high-density developments around him. His children go to the
Northwest Guilford Schools and it is already extremely overcrowded, and they are having to use
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trailers for classrooms. Adding this many houses to this area will only compound the existing problem
with the schools. He is completely opposed to this request, as there are a lot of negatives.

Diana Johnson stated that she is property “H” on the map, and the creek also runs along her property
line. There is a lot of wildlife on their property, and they would like to see the property remain like it
is, AG.

Jacob Nelson, 8403 Hudson-James Road, stated that if this goes through, it will completely flood his
property. There is a flood zone that he bought just for the wildlife, and it is full of silt. There is no creek
behind his house anymore. If they build a neighborhood, he is going to catch all the water just before
it gets to their house. He has already seen rain up to the edge of his grass after just a good rain. If this
goes through, he will have to sell out just vacant land because it’s going to flood his house, or they
will have to do something about it.

Rebuttal in Favor:

Bill Greco stated that it is often difficult in public hearings to educate, which is challenging in this
format. However, having listened to the opposition, he feels that they can safely cluster a number of
their concerns into the category of the cart-before-the-horse. What is before the Board this evening
is a rezoning, and matters of subdivision and design, DOT permitting, septic/well, are certainly
addressed in the ordinance and does a great job, as well as staff that are responsible for that. He will
speak briefly on wells and septic. Certainly, the County staff has a fabulous process where they permit
those, and if it is unsuitable, then no permit is obtained. For wells, over the last 10-15 years the
technology has gotten very advanced, and they know where neighboring wells are, and they know
about impacts, and they do a great job monitoring that. As developers and folks who want to be in
the community and have been for the past 20 years doing these subdivisions, they will certainly be
there on-site if someone does have a problem. The traffic on Hudson-James Road, that is premature,
as they do not have a driveway permit, and that would go before NCDOT for the final word on that.
They do evaluate soils prior to designing a subdivision, prior to moving forward, and they feel
confident that will be addressed. Erosion was a topic of conversation, and they certainly have to
produce an erosion control and grading plan, which has to be installed, maintained, and inspected.
The County staff comes out and inspects, so there is a rigorous program there that would be adhered
to.

Rebuttal in Opposition:

Mark Rector, 8309 Hudson-James Road, stated that they understand, although they may not like a
development there, the decision before the Board is really to change the zoning for the parcels shown
on the map “A” and “B” from AG to RS-30. He asked that the request be rejected, and they believe
that RS-30 is inconsistent with the property for the reasons already stated. He pointed out that it
would certainly double the traffic in the immediate area, and he understands that there is work to do
with NCDOT and the TRC on some of these issues. The main thing is that they don’t want the Board
to change the zoning from AG to RS-30, and changing the potential lot size from a minimum of 40,000
square feet to 30,000 square feet. That does not solve all of their concerns; but, it mitigates what can
be mitigated by the Board.

Randy Huffman, 8505 Hudson-James Road, stated that he has a small mini-farm where he raises
truffle trees. He is worried about the finite number of resources they have with water in the ground.
There is already a water problem in this area because it washes off everybody else, and some of those
people have been flooded out several times. The ground does not really retain water, and that is the
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problem. He has been in the grading business a little bit himself, and sometimes they have Mr. Doggett
go in there and level a lot out, put in a silt pond, but the water would be retained in the soil, and the
perk fields will not perk for very long. He thinks the density that is proposed here is just stupid.

Mr. Craft moved to close the public hearing, seconded by Ms. Buchanan. The Board voted 7-0 in favor
of the motion. (Ayes: Craft, Buchanan, Bui, Gullick, Stalder, Drumwright, Little. Nays: None. Members
absent: Donnelly and Alston).

Board Discussion:

Mr. Little stated that he has been out to this property, and this is clearly farmland. Putting all those
houses behind these existing properties just seems, to him, to be inconsistent with the rest of the
properties, especially with all the concerns about the water issues.

Dr. Bui stated that she hears all of the concerns from the neighborhood residents that live in this area,
and she believes that those concerns should be addressed before going forward with the request. She
does not feel that concerns about the wells have been taken into consideration very well and even
though there was a ZOOM meeting, she does not think their voices were heard.

Rev. Drumwright stated that he is trying to understand the weigh-out of the procedures and the
preponderance of problems. He came into the meeting in mid-conversation, so he is unsure about
making comments. | would echo what Dr. Bui has said, and it seems that there needs to be more
discussion and discovery before moving forward.

Ms. Buchanan stated that she wishes that there had been an in-person community meeting. She is
looking at the neighbors in the community and feels that most of the people in this room are not
comfortable using just a ZOOM meeting. An in-person meeting would have been more helpful.

Mr. Craft stated that he hopes the audience does not take the Board’s lack of asking questions, as lack
of interest. They are very interested in what everyone has to say. The Board’s mission is very narrow
in this case, as they need to determine if the request is consistent with the Plan, which it is, is it
reasonable and in the public interest, and it is. He is all for saving trees and preserving farmland, but
it puts an undue burden on a property owner to say that is what they have to do. People need places
to live, so based on that, he is inclined to support the request as it is next to current RS-30 zoning.

Mr. Stalder stated that his only concern is the lack of an in-person meeting with the residents.

Rev. Drumwright stated that he has a question. Given the multiple voices on the Board about the
ZOOM meeting and the lack of participation, had this community shared these concerns in a virtual
space, would that have changed the outcome? He wanted to know if the community was invited?

Vice Chair Gullick stated that there was a small ZOOM meeting of only adjacent property owners. He
stated that what staff encourages is a community meeting so there is a better understanding and less
misunderstandings. Rev. Drumwright asked how many adjacent property owners were invited to the
ZOOM meeting. Justin Snyder responded that it looks like seventeen (17) adjacent property owners,
but some of them are duplicates, so maybe not that many. In response to a question about sign
placement, Mr. Snyder stated that signs were placed on Hudson-James Road, as well as Rumbley
Road.
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Ms. Buchanan asked if the Board has the option of continuing this request? Mr. Bell responded that
the Board can certainly continue the request. He pointed out that Mr. Greco did not submit a
conditional zoning request with a sketch plan that could be reviewed by everybody [including] here
at the meeting. During a community meeting, one way that this plays out is they talk about a specific
use and what will abate some of the concerns that were expressed this evening, but the applicant is
under no obligation to do any of those things [under a conventional rezoning request]. So if the
request is continued, the Board should align expectations of what may come out of that meeting. Mr.
Greco has mentioned a subdivision, but he may change his mind tomorrow. It could be another use
entirely.

Dr. Bui suggested that a 5-minute recess be taken to give the Board members an opportunity to gather
their thoughts.

Thereupon, Mr. Craft moved to take a short recess, seconded by Mr. Little. There was a recess from
7:15 until 7:25 p.m. and the meeting reconvened.

Vice Chair Gullick called the meeting back into session.

Ms. Buchanan moved to approve the zoning amendment located on the entirety of Guilford County
Tax Parcel #221302 and a 2.99-acre portion of Parcel #147559 from AG to RS-30 because the
amendment is consistent with applicable plans because RS-30 is included as an anticipated district in
the AG residential designation. The amendment is reasonable and in the public interest because it is
consistent with the AG, rural residential land use designation and follows with land use on adjacent
parcels, seconded by Mr. Stalder. The Board voted 5-2 in favor of the motion. (Ayes: Craft, Buchanan,
Bui, Gullick, Stalder. Nays: Little and Drumwright. Members absent: Donnelly and Alston).

Vice Chair Gullick noted that this request will go to the Guilford County Commissioners for a final
decision. Vice Chair Gullick stated that those in attendance for the previous case are welcome to leave

the meeting at this time.

Evidentiary Hearing Item(s)

SPECIAL USE PERMIT CASE #22-12-PLBD-00033: Boarding House, 3-8 residents, 335 Knox Road
Located at 335 Knox Road (Guilford County Tax Parcel #117317 in Jefferson Township), is
approximately 130 feet north of the intersection of Lookout Place and comprises approximately 0.86
acres. Thisis a request to consider granting a Special Use Permit for a Boarding House, 3 to 8 Residents
on AG zoned property.

Vice Chair Gullick stated that he would like to know how many people are here in favor of the request.
There was only one (1) person in favor. There were approximately eight (8) people in opposition.
Chair Gullick asked if there was a neighborhood meeting between the two (2) parties for this request.
Many of those in opposition stated that there was no neighborhood meeting held and no
communication with the applicant. Vice Chair Gullick asked the applicant to come forward for just a
moment. Vice Chair Gullick suggested to the applicant, Dr. Johnny Henderson, that this case be
continued so that he can take time to meet with his neighbors, talk about their concerns, outside of
this arena and then come back to the Board for a hearing. He feels that this would be a much more
efficient process and better for the community.
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Dr. Henderson stated that his concern right now is that this process has been going on for about three
months, and he really needs to get a final decision, one way or the other, so he can do something else.

Vice Chair Gullick then asked for comments from the Board members. He pointed out that there has
been no community meeting, and it is a quasi-judicial case under oath, and he feels it would be a
simpler process for everyone if there were a neighborhood meeting held. Mr. Bell stated that Dr.
Henderson has seen how many people are in opposition to what he is wanting to do. He stated that
this is an Evidentiary Hearing, and with those questions and Findings of Fact that the Board has to
find, it is incumbent on Dr. Henderson to provide the evidence for them to find in his favor. He does
not know what the people who are in opposition have or what their concerns are, but he asked Dr.
Henderson if he wanted to take the opportunity to have that [neighborhood] meeting, which may
prepare him for his hearing. It is not a recommendation; it is a question before this moves forward.
Dr. Henderson stated that he understands the question and appreciates it, but as he just mentioned,
he is just tired as it has been going on for three months, and he’d just like to present his case and
opposition can present their case, and wherever it falls, let it fall. Leslie Bell responded that, for either
side, if the decision is not in their favor, they can appeal to Superior Court within thirty (30) days.

Leslie Bell stated that this is a request for a Special Use Permit Case #22-12-PLBD-00033: Boarding
House, 3-8 residents, 335 Knox Road located at 335 Knox Road (Guilford County Tax Parcel #117317
in Jefferson Township), is approximately 130 feet north of the intersection of Lookout Place and
comprises approximately 0.86 acres. This is a request to consider granting a Special Use Permit for a
Boarding House, 3 to 8 Residents on AG zoned property.

At this time, all speakers were sworn in for their testimony for the above-mentioned case.

Leslie Bell stated that, as mentioned earlier, this is a request to consider granting a Special Use Permit
for a boarding house of 3-8 residents, subject to the associated sketch site plan, and subject to any
approved conditions. He explained the map shown for the Board members’ review. This property is
in a low-density residential area along Knox Road with AG uses on adjacent properties to the rear of
the subject parcel. There is a single-family dwelling on the site, and to the north is low-density
residential and AG, to the south, east and west are low-density residential. There are no inventoried
historic landmarks located on or adjacent to the property, as well as no cemeteries. There is no
anticipated impact on the public school facilities, and emergency response is provided by the
McLeansville Fire Department and is located 7 mile from the nearest fire station. The property is
serviced by a private septic system and well. This property is within or adjacent to the Greensboro
Growth Tier | water and sewer service area. The existing condition on Knox Road is a major
thoroughfare and average daily trips are 5,000 vehicles north of subject parcel, per NCDOT 2019 traffic
counts. If approved, the subject property would, potentially, be subject to an NCDOT driveway permit.
The topography is moderately sloped. In terms of land use analysis, it is in the Northeast Area Plan.
The Plan recommendation is for residential single family in AG rural residential. In terms of
consistency, the land use designation of the subject parcel is residential single-family along the street
frontage and AG rural residential along the rear of the parcel. The requested action is consistent with
both designations under the Northeast Area Plan because each designation recognizes AG as a
compatible zoning district. Because this is a Special Use Permit, the Unified Development Ordinance
Subsection 3.4Q(3)(G) of the UDO, indicates that the applicant shall demonstrate that the review
factors have been adequately addressed. 1) Circulation: number and location of access points per the
associated sketch plan in this application - access will be from Knox Road. An NCDOT Commercial
Driveway Permit will be required during the official commercial site plan review process. 2) Parking
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and Loading: Parking for a boarding house, 3 to 8 residents, is subject to Section 6.1.D, Table 6-1-1.
parking requirements for Group Living and Social Services Use Category of the Guilford County UDO.
3) Service Entrances and Areas: Locations of service areas will be reviewed to allow for adequate
access for all service vehicles when the official site plan is submitted for review per Section 6.1 in the
Guilford County UDO. 4) Lighting: A lighting plan will be presented when the official site plan is
submitted for review per Section 6.3 of the Guilford County UDO. 5) Utilities: Septic evaluation will
be regulated by the Guilford County Environmental Health Department upon site plan review by TRC
or appropriate staff. Utility easements will be reviewed at TRC or by appropriate staff. 6) Open
Spaces: Landscape requirements will be required and reviewed by TRC or by appropriate staff per
Article 6.2 of the Guilford County UDO. 7) Environment Protection: Environmental regulations will
be reviewed by Guilford County’s Watershed/Stormwater Section at the TRC or by appropriate staff
to meet all environmental regulations per Article 9 of the Guilford County UDO. 8) Landscaping,
Buffering & Screening: A landscape buffer in the form of a Type B Planting Yard (min. width 25’, avg.
width 30’, max width 50’) will be required per Section 6.13(D) in of the Guilford County UDO. 9) Effect
on Nearby Properties: Lighting plan requirements will be required and reviewed at TRC or by
appropriate staff per Article 6.3 of the Guilford County UDO. 10) Compatibility: Boarding House, 3 to
8 Residents, being surrounded by residentially-zoned properties, are required to have landscape
buffers of the entire perimeter of the facility. The surrounding area is low-density residential on
subdivided lots.

During consideration of a Special Use Permit, the Planning Board must determine that the following
Findings of Fact have been satisfied, based upon relevant and credible evidence presented during the
hearing:

1. A written application was submitted and [is/is not] complete in all respects.

2. That the use [will/will not] materially endanger the public health or safety if located
where proposed and developed according to the plan submitted.

3. The use, Boarding House, 3- 8 Residents with associated Sketch Site Plan and subject
to any conditions of approval for which the Special Use Permit is sought, [is/is not] in
conformance with all special requirements applicable to this use. The use meets all
required conditions and specifications.

4. That the location and character of the use, if developed according to the plan
submitted, [will/will not] be in harmony with the area in which it is to be located and
[is/is not] in general conformity with the plan of development of the Jurisdiction and
its environs, and

5. That the use [will/will not] substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting
property, or that the use is a public necessity.

After reviewing the proposed development plan for this request, staff offers the following for Planning
Board consideration:

1. The development of the parcel shall comply with all regulations as specified in the Guilford
County Unified Development Ordinance (GCUDO).

2. The development shall proceed in conformity with all amended plans and design features
submitted as part of the Special Use Permit Application and kept on file by the Guilford County
Planning and Development Department.
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3. The development shall proceed upon approval of plan and design features by the TRC,
illustrating conditions related to the request and applicable development standards.

4. Added conditions, if applicable.

5. If the specified conditions addressed in the Special Use Permit are violated, the permit shall
be revoked, and the use will no longer be allowed. Only by reapplying to the Planning Board
for another Special Use Permit and receiving its approval can the use be again permitted.

Mr. Bell added that there is a TRC report submitted in the Board members’ packet, showing comments
that need to be addressed. There also are associated maps of the general area and the zoning of the
area.

Vice Chair Gullick asked for those speaking in favor of the case to please come forward.

Dr. Johnny Henderson pointed out that what he proposes is to house veterans. It is his understanding
that there is a big need for veterans to be housed comfortably. He acquired this building in August
2021, and it had clean space in a quiet neighborhood. He has renovated the rooms, and it is
completely furnished and very comfortable for anyone to live in it at this point. It is not a rehab center,
and there is not going to be people who have been on drugs, alcohol or any other kind of abuse. These
veterans are disciplined, stable people that only would be allowed in the facility. There is not much to
add to the building, as it is an existing building, and he intends to make additional improvements. He
has already done that with some of the landscaping that is ongoing, and it would get better with time.
He intends to put security through ADT or Ring, or some other type of system at the facility. Instead
of a veteran in a hotel, they can be in a home with a home environment with plenty of room. He has
0.78 acres there, finished space, with plenty of room for a garden in the backyard.

Mr. Bell stated that the Board has to have Findings of Fact and wanted to know if there was anything
that Dr. Henderson would like to present.

Dr. Henderson stated that the use will not materially endanger the public health or safety if
constructed as proposed and developed according to the plan submitted. He did submit a plan, but
keep in mind that this is an existing building, and there is not much he can do to change that. It is to
be used primarily by disciplined personnel and that is consistent with his logo, which is, “Comfort Card
for All Veterans”. He has dealt with the Veteran’s Affairs people and accepts their recommendations
about the people that he would interview for possible rent at the facility. There is not too much that
he can add to that. The Special Use Permit is sought to be in conformance with all special requirements
applicable to this use. The use meets all the required conditions specified as it is an existing building,
and he has submitted a legal description of the property and the site plan. He is trying to be consistent
with that. The location and character of the use, if developed according to the plan submitted, will be
in harmony with the area in which it is to be located and in general conformity with the plan
development of the jurisdiction and its environs. This is based on the fact that the building is an
existing building, and nothing has changed. In addition, there will be improvements to the sidewalk
entrance as well as improvements to the parking lot at the rear of the house. There will be no changes
to the front of the building. Specific attention will be given to handicap parking, if necessary. The
handicap ramp is in the front of the building. He would anticipate an increase in the value of adjoining
properties due to the improvements that he is making in the landscaping, sidewalk, parking lot and
the building itself. He wanted to know if three veterans would be allowed to move to this
neighborhood who are disciplined, organized, experienced people?
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Mr. Craft asked who would be supervising the residents and the operations of the household,
regarding cleaning, et cetera? Dr. Henderson stated that he would arrange that and hire local people
to come in to do all the cleaning, cooking and whatever is required. That is his responsibility to find
those people. He already has someone in mind to take over those duties. Mr. Craft stated that on the
application, it shows that he has a Florida address and wanted to know if Dr. Henderson still lived in
Florida? Dr. Henderson stated that he bounces around quite a bit. He has properties in New Jersey,
Florida, North Carolina, and right now he is in North Carolina. Mr. Craft asked where the funding would
come from to run the boarding house? Dr. Henderson replied that funding would come from the VA.
He did not think that this would be a big issue for the neighbors. This is a quiet and beautiful
neighborhood, and he talked to the neighbors to the left and right of the house and across the street,
and it seems that they all get along fine.

Mr. Craft asked for clarification of the definition of “group home” or “boarding House”. Mr. Bell
responded that a boarding house “is a dwelling or part, thereof, in which lodging is provided by the
owner or operator to more than three (3) or more boarders”. Justin Snyder added that a boarding
house with 3 to 8 residents is permitted with a Special Use Permit in the AG, while a boarding house
with 9 or more is not.

Vice Chair Gullick asked that those who wished to speak in opposition to come forward with their
comments and concerns.

Wanda Small owns the property at 338 Knox Road, which is across the street from Dr. Henderson’s
property. A boarding house is lodging or a dorm unit for grown-ups. She stated that Dr. Henderson
purchased this property as residential and had it rezoned as AG, and she feels that he had the
intention of doing this all along. Had the neighbors known, they probably would have not agreed upon
having it rezoned. Even though Dr. Henderson says it is for veterans to live there, how do they know
that is what it will stay? She does not feel that the proposed use would be in harmony with the current
neighborhood. This is an older residential neighborhood, very quiet, and there are nine (9) single
women that live in households within % mile of this site. She is on the Gibsonville Development
Committee, and has spoken with the Police Chief there, and there are two (2) boarding houses in
Gibsonville, and they have more drug-related and tenant issues because the shared common areas
have more tenant crimes than the typical household would have. Most boarding houses are
developed in inner city locations because of economic and social opportunities, rather than in rural
areas. Only the very adjacent neighbors were informed of this meeting so very few people even knew
about it. She has not been contacted and the reason she knew about it is because her sister-in-law
owns the house next door and got a letter.

Ginger Reece, 323 Knox Road, stated that she is two houses down from this site and has lived there
for over 30 years. She did not receive a letter, and her property does not touch this property, but she
feels like this community should have been notified so they could have voiced their opinions. She is
opposed to a boarding house. She understands that he wants to help veterans, and that is great, but
she feels that it should be in a different area. Most of the people in the neighborhood have been there
for many, many years. There is a lot of farming that goes on and a lot of big farm equipment. There is
also some kind of housing development at the corner, so that will be developed in the near future.
There is also a lot of school traffic going through there. She hopes the Board will consider that this is
an older neighborhood, and these people don’t want to be disturbed. She thinks the house owned by
Dr. Henderson only has 3 bedrooms and 1 bathroom, so it is not really big enough to house 3 to 8
people. In response to a question posed by Vice Chair Gullick, Ms. Reece stated that she feels that Dr.
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Henderson should have had a meeting with everyone in the neighborhood and explained what his
intentions for the house are.

Teresa Edwards, 333 Knox Road, stated that she is right next door to this proposed boarding house.
Her issue is that she is a single female and just bought this property in August and has done about
$70,000 worth of improvements on her home, and she feels that a boarding house is not appropriate
for the surrounding area. She feels that there would be a lot of wear and tear on the septic tanks and
wells around there. Once it gets set as a boarding house, who is to say who will actually live there?
She moved from a campground on E. Lee Street, and there was a teen home there that caused a lot
of issues for that neighborhood. There were a lot of police issues, constant traffic through there with
police officers and ambulances and fire trucks. She does not want that kind of situation in her new
neighborhood. She is concerned about the parking being in the back of that house because people
coming into that area, the headlights would come right into her house. She has dogs and seven
grandchildren, and the oldest one is a 16-year old girl, and she doesn’t want 3 grown men living in a
home where her granddaughter is going to be out in the swimming pool and in a bathing suit. There
is no way to guarantee that the men living in the home are honorable and not dangerous. She is
worried about safety issues, especially possibly PTSD issues.

Mr. Bell pointed out that in the TRC report there is an advisory comment that includes a provision
that an owner must designate an on-site manager. There are some other requirements that would
have to be met. This information is included in the Board’s packet.

Reesa Stevens, 5820 Lookout Place, stated that a family member lived in the house that is now owned
by Dr. Henderson, and when they lived there, it had a living room, kitchen, a small adjoining sitting
room, a laundry room and bathroom and two (2) bedrooms. She would like to know how he is going
to put 8 people in a house that size. The area has a lot of sand rock, and most people have a lot of
problems with their wells. The proposed boarding house would not be able to support that use on the
existing well and septic system. She also wants to know if there is going to be someone living on the
premises to look after those veterans. She feels that this is proposed for the wrong area.

Vice Chair Gullick asked Ms. Stevens if there were any conditions that she would like to propose that
would help make this an easier transition. Ms. Stevens responded that she did not think there is,
because every individual person who has been in a war, has their own individual issues, and everybody
deals with things differently. Some people are able to get over them, but some people never get over
them, such as nightmares and other psychological issues. She has dealt with a lot of it with her own
son. You cannot scrutinize an individual with an application to rent a room to them to the point that
you don’t get into their personal business enough to know what is behind the closed doors. She hopes
the Board will not allow this proposed boarding house in this neighborhood.

Ms. Buchanan stated that under the Planning staff comments it says, “must provide a floor plan
showing compliance with minimum size of sleeping room of 200 square feet, per person.” Based on
that information, you could not have more than 3 people because it is only a 3-bedroom house. Mr.
Bell responded that is correct, unless they do some remodeling. Ms. Buchanan asked who monitors
the number of people living in the house? Mr. Bell responded that no one goes to check on that unless
the VA asks a question about it. A septic recheck is done beforehand by the Environmental Health
Department. The building plans for the structure would have to be checked and approved by the
County, to ensure that there is compliance with that. Ms. Buchanan asked if an on-site manager is
required to sleep at the location and be there 24 hours? Mr. Bell answered that it does not specify if
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they have to sleep there. He would think that in reading that probably most people would think that
it would be 24 hours, but it is not clearly stated as such.

Vice Chair Gullick asked Dr. Henderson if he would like to speak in rebuttal or if he had anything else
to add?

Dr. Henderson responded that he would like to be more specific about something that was said. The
lady from next door at 338 Knox Road, he did not speak to. He spoke to a young man who lives at that
place. He did tell the young man about his plans for the house. Ms. Buchanan asked how many
bedrooms are currently in the house? Dr. Henderson answered that there are three (3) bedrooms. He
also answered another question concerning the number of bedrooms and stated that there would be
another bedroom downstairs in the basement of the house.

Vice Chair Gullick asked if there was an on-site manager that is ready to go into action if this Special
Use Permit is allowed. Dr. Henderson responded that he does have somebody ready.

Ms. Small stated that she has concerns about Dr. Henderson’s age because if something were to
happen to him so that he was unable to own or manage this property, who would manage the
property then? Mr. Bell stated that was irrelevant to the question at hand.

Mr. Craft moved to close the Evidentiary Hearing, seconded by Dr. Bui. The Board voted 7-0 in a roll-
call vote in favor of the motion. (Ayes: Craft, Buchanan, Bui, Gullick, Stalder, Drumwright, Little. Nays:
None. Members absent: Donnelly and Alston).

Board Discussion:

Mr. Little said he had no comments or questions. Dr. Bui had no comments or questions. Rev.
Drumwright had no comments or questions. Ms. Buchanan had no comments or questions. Mr. Craft
stated that it is up to the applicant to provide full and complete information for the Board to make a
decision, and in this case, he feels that there are just too many open things that aren’t fully vetted
and specified about this type of operation, so he could not support this request. He does feel that
something like this is a valued part of a community, but this just doesn’t rise to the level of being
approved. Mr. Stalder had no comments or questions. Mr. Gullick stated that this is an Evidentiary
Hearing, and they had to see certain points made to approve this application, and in his opinion, he
doesn’t feel that the Board has those. So, he would not be supporting this application.

Vice Chair Gullick asked if someone from the Board would like to make a motion.

Mr. Stalder asked if the application could be tabled? Mr. Bell stated that was an option. The Board
can approve, approve with conditions, deny, or table. Mr. Stalder stated that he feels that the Board
should give him the opportunity to come up with the proper evidence for the hearing and possibly
table it until the next session.

Mr. Bell stated that the question to the Board is whether he provided you with evidence that is
sufficient or not. He stated that there just needs to be some clear direction as to what the Board is
looking for if the Board votes to table it.

Ms. Buchanan stated that she feels that the Board just needs further clarification on what specifically
will be done. She feels that there are a lot of unanswered questions related to what Dr. Henderson’s
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intentions are for the property. Rev. Drumwright asked if Dr. Henderson can provide the Board with
facts that have not been entered at tonight’s hearing. Mr. Bell asked that if the Board decides to table
the application, as it was discussed earlier, what is the Board specifically looking for, and what other
evidence could be brought forward? With these types of cases, it is not uncommon that there be
expert witnesses that are established to help with the Findings of Fact, that some of the operational
things can be addressed.

Mr. Craft stated that he does not feel it is the Board’s place to provide that level of direction to an
applicant. He has enough information to make a decision due to the lack of a lot of information, and
if this application is turned down, how long could he take to make another application? Mr. Bell stated
that it could come back before the Board again if there is additional evidence presented.

Vice Chair Gullick asked Dr. Henderson to return to the speaker’s table to answer a few questions. He
asked Dr. Henderson if he is agreeable to the current application being tabled? Vice Chair Gullick
stated that some of the Board members feel that they need more information, and it has been
suggested that this application be tabled to give him time to gather more additional information.

Dr. Henderson responded that there is nothing more that he can add to the way he explained it. He
doesn’t know what other information he could get, maybe because he is not an attorney, and he
doesn’t know what to expect beyond what he has already said.

Vice Chair Gullick asked if anyone had a motion they would like to offer at this time.

Mr. Craft stated that in the case of Special Use Permit #22-12-PLBD-00033, Boarding House, 3-8
residents, 335 Knox Road, the Guilford County Planning Board held an Evidentiary Hearing on
February 8, 2023, to consider a request for a Special Use Permit for a Boarding House with 3-8
residents, subject to the submitted sketch site plan, along with any approved conditions for the
property located at 335 Knox Road (Guilford County Tax Parcel #117317 in Jefferson Township), is
approximately 130 feet north of the intersection of Lookout Place and comprises approximately 0.86
acres. Having heard all of the evidence and arguments presented at the Evidentiary Hearing, makes
the following Findings of Fact and the following conclusions:

1) A written application was submitted and is not complete in all respects.

2) That the use will materially endanger the public health and safety if located where proposed
and developed according to the plan submitted. This conclusion is based upon the sworn
testimony and evidence submitted during the Evidentiary Hearing which shows the following:

There are still questions about the supervision of the residents and how they are vetted and
selected, and what level of on-site supervision there would be.

3) The use, Boarding House, 3-8 residents, for which the Special Use Permit is sought, is not in
conformance with all special requirements applicable to this use. The use meets all required
conditions and specifications. This is based on sworn testimony and evidence submitted
during the Evidentiary Hearing which shows the following:

There is the lack of a business plan to more fully give a picture of how this operation would
be run.
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4) The location and character of the use, if developed according to the plan submitted will not
be in harmony with the area in which it is to be located and is not in general conformity with
the plan of development of the Jurisdiction and its environs. This is based on sworn testimony
and evidence submitted during the Evidentiary Hearing which shows the following:

This is a residential area, and this type of occupancy is more transient in nature and not
conforming with the current residents in the area.

5) The use will substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting property, or the use is a
public necessity. This is based on sworn testimony and evidence submitted during the
Evidentiary Hearing which shows the following:

There was no evidence showing that the properties would not be injured.

THEREFORE, on the basis of all the foregoing, IT IS ORDERED that the application for a Special Use
Permit for a Boarding House, 3-8 residents, be DENIED.

The previous motion was seconded by Ms. Buchanan. The Board voted 5-2-0 in a roll-call vote in favor
of the motion to deny the application. (Ayes: Craft, Buchanan, Bui, Gullick, Little. Nays: Stalder and
Drumwright. Members absent: Donnelly and Alston).

Mr. Bell stated that this decision can be appealed within thirty (30) days to Superior Court.
Other Business

Comprehensive Plan Update

Mr. Bell stated that in the budget, they have requested another $200,000. One of the reasons why is
the Comprehensive Plan process is spread over two (2) fiscal years, and they also are requesting that
with all the development and construction and projected population growth, that the 2016 updated
Area Plans be updated to reflect from 2017 through 2022. Also, the southeastern portion (east of Hwy
421, near the Guilford County/Randolph County line [as you move toward Alamance County]) of
Guilford County has never had an area plan. We are asking that an Area Plan for future development
be completed for that area of Guilford County.

Adjourn

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 8:43 p.m.

The next scheduled meeting is March 8, 2023, at 6:00 p.m.
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REZONING CASE #23-1-PLBD-00035: AG, AGRICULTURAL, TO LI, LIGHT
INDUSTRIAL: 107 MARSHALL SMITH ROAD

Property Information

Located at 107 Marshall Smith Road (Guilford County Tax Parcel #170647 in Deep River
Township), the subject of this request is approximately 290 feet north of the intersection of
Marshall Smith Road and W Market Street and comprises approximately 7.37 acres.

Zoning History of Denied Cases: There is no history of denied cases.

Nature of the Request

This is a request to rezone the entirety of Guilford County Tax Parcel #170647 from AG,
Agricultural, to LI, Light Industrial.

District Descriptions

The AG, Agricultural district is intended to provide locations for agricultural operations, farm
residences, and farm tenant housing on large tracts of land. This district is further intended to
reduce conflicts between residential and agricultural uses and preserve the viability of
agricultural operations. Commercial agricultural product sales - “agritourism” - may be
permitted. The minimum lot size of this district is 40,000 square feet.

The LI, Light Industrial district accommodates limited, small-scale manufacturing, wholesaling,
research and development, and related commercial activities that have little adverse effect,
through noise, odor, or visual distraction, on neighboring properties. Development shall
provide adequate screening and buffers and be located where there are adequate public
utilities and access to arterial streets and highways.

Character of the Area

Abutting to the north and west are comparably large tracts within Guilford County’s jurisdiction
zoned AG. All other adjacent properties are within the City of Greensboro. The property adjoining
to the south off Marshall Smith Road is zoned CD-C-M, Commercial, within the city limits of
Greensboro and is a restaurant. The two properties across Marshall Smith Road are zoned CD-
RM-18, Residential Multifamily, and CD-C-M, Commercial. South of the intersection of Marshall
Smith Road and W. Market Street are industrial developments within the City, zoned HI, Heavy
Industrial.

Existing Land Use(s) on the Property: The property is undeveloped and wooded.



Surrounding Uses:
North: Residential
South: Commercial fronting Marshall Smith Road; agricultural fronting W. Market Street
East: Commercial and Residential
West: Agricultural

Historic Properties: There are no inventoried historic landmarks located on or adjacent to the
subject property.

Cemeteries: No cemeteries are shown to be located on this property, but efforts should be made
to rule out the potential of unknown grave sites.

Infrastructure and Community Facilities
Public School Facilities: No anticipated impact.

Emergency Response:
Fire Protection District: Colfax

Miles from Fire Station: Approximately 2.1 miles

Water and Sewer Services:
Provider: Private Septic Systems and Wells

Within Service Area: No
Feasibility Study or Service Commitment: No
Transportation:

Existing Conditions: Marshall Smith Road is classified as a Collector with an Average Annual
Daily Traffic (AADT) of 1,200 vehicles per the 2021 NCDOT traffic count.

Proposed Improvements: Subject to NCDOT Driveway permit

Projected Traffic Generation: Undetermined

Environmental Assessment
Topography: Gently sloping, moderately sloping and steeply sloping

Regulated Floodplain/Wetlands:
There are no mapped wetlands on the property. There is no regulated floodplain on the property.

Streams and Watershed:
There is a mapped stream on the property and a mapped pond. The property is located in the
Greensboro (Reedy Fork) WS-l Water Supply Watershed in the General Watershed Area.



Land Use Analysis

Land Use Plan: Airport Area Plan (2008)

Plan Recommendation: Mixed Use
Consistency: The proposed rezoning is not consistent with the Airport Area Plan.

The Mixed-Use (MU) designation within Guilford County’s Airport Area Plan is intended to
recognize an opportunity for a mixture of complimentary and integrated principal land uses
and/or housing types developed on large tracts under a unified development scheme. Mixed-Use
(MU) areas should be characterized by pedestrian and bicycle interconnectivity and should
incorporate many of the policies recommended by this plan. Traditionally, mixed-use
developments have emphasized a variety of transportation options, recreational and/or open
space amenities, and high standards of site and architectural design. It is envisioned that mixed-
use projects will develop under the Planned Unit Development zoning districts of the Guilford
County Development Ordinance.

Recommendation

Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the request.

The requested LI, Light Industrial, zoning is reasonable and in the public interest because the
property is in proximity to commercial and industrial activity within the City of Greensboro.
Additionally, the subject parcel is less than 300 feet away from the intersection of Marshall Smith
Road and W. Market Street. As such, the infrastructural capacity at the site will be more than
sufficient to facilitate light industrial uses. While the surrounding parcels within the County are
zoned AG, Agricultural, the development around this portion of W. Market Street has been
trending toward a growing industrial hub. Therefore, approval of this request will satisfy Policy
1.3.2 of the Governmental Coordination Element of the Guilford County Comprehensive Plan,
which states that government entities within the County should coordinate comprehensive
planning efforts for the promotion of complementary land use development patterns. The Light
Industrial zoning district would be conducive for this area due to the availability of public water
and sewer for future non-residential development and the general consistency of the request
with the commercial and industrial uses around the W. Market intersection. Therefore,
associated light industrial uses would be complementary to existing development patterns.

Area Plan Amendment Recommendation:

The proposed rezoning is not consistent with the Airport Area Plan recommendation of Mixed
Use, thus if approved, an Area Plan amendment to Non-Residential will be required.
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REZONING CASE #23-1-PLBD-00035: AG, AGRICULTURAL, TO LI, LIGHT INDUSTRIAL:
107 MARSHALL SMITH ROAD

GUILFORD COUNTY PLANNING BOARD
ZONING MAP AMENDMENT STATEMENT OF CONSISTENCY

DECISION MATRIX

Zoning Plan Consistency Decision
Approve Consistent #1
Deny Inconsistent #2
Approve Inconsistent #3
Deny Consistent #4
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REZONING CASE #23-1-PLBD-00035: AG, AGRICULTURAL, TO LI, LIGHT INDUSTRIAL:
107 MARSHALL SMITH ROAD

GUILFORD COUNTY PLANNING BOARD
ZONING MAP AMENDMENT STATEMENT OF CONSISTENCY

DECISION # 1
APPROVE-CONSISTENT
NO PLAN AMENDMENT

| move to Approve this zoning map amendment located on Guilford County Parcel #170647

from AG to LI because:

1. The amendment is consistent with applicable plans because:
[Describe elements of controlling land use plans and how the amendment is consistent.]

2. The amendment is reasonable and in the public interest because:
[Factors may include public health and safety, character of the area and relationship of uses,
applicable plans, or balancing benefits and detriments.]




REZONING CASE #23-1-PLBD-00035: AG, AGRICULTURAL, TO LI, LIGHT INDUSTRIAL:
107 MARSHALL SMITH ROAD

GUILFORD COUNTY PLANNING BOARD
ZONING MAP AMENDMENT STATEMENT OF CONSISTENCY

DECISION #2
DENY-INCONSISTENT
NO PLAN AMENDMENT

| move to Deny this zoning map amendment located on Guilford County Parcel #170647 from
AG to LI because:

1. The amendment is not consistent with applicable plans because:
[Describe elements of controlling land use plans and how the amendment is not consistent.]

2. The amendment is not reasonable and in the public interest because:
[Factors may include public health and safety, character of the area and relationship of uses,
applicable plans, or balancing benefits and detriments.]




REZONING CASE #23-1-PLBD-00035: AG, AGRICULTURAL, TO LI, LIGHT INDUSTRIAL:
107 MARSHALL SMITH ROAD

GUILFORD COUNTY PLANNING BOARD
ZONING MAP AMENDMENT STATEMENT OF CONSISTENCY

DECISION #3
APPROVE-INCONSISTENT
PLAN AMENDMENT

| move to Approve this zoning map amendment located on Guilford County Parcel #170647

from AG to LI because:

1. This approval also amends the Airport Area Plan. [Applicable element of Comp
Plan]

2. The zoning map amendment and associated Airport Area Plan amendment are
based on the following change(s) in condition(s) in the Airport Area Plan:
[Explanation of the change in conditions to meet the development needs of the community
that were taken into account in the zoning amendment.]

3. The amendment is reasonable and in the public interest because:
[Factors may include public health and safety, character of the area and relationship of uses,
applicable plans, or balancing benefits and detriments.]




REZONING CASE #23-1-PLBD-00035: AG, AGRICULTURAL, TO LI, LIGHT INDUSTRIAL:
107 MARSHALL SMITH ROAD

GUILFORD COUNTY PLANNING BOARD
ZONING MAP AMENDMENT STATEMENT OF CONSISTENCY

DECISION #1
DENY-CONSISTENT
NO PLAN AMENDMENT

| move to Deny this zoning map amendment located on Guilford County Parcel #170647 from
AG to LI because:

1. The amendment is not consistent with applicable plans because:
[Describe elements of controlling land use plans and how the amendment is consistent.]

2. The amendment is consistent but not in the public interest because:
[Factors may include public health and safety, character of the area and relationship of uses,
applicable plans, or balancing benefits and detriments.]
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2 Crowne Point Court
Cincinnati, OH 45241
United States

www.jacobs.com

March 3, 2023

Attn: J. Leslie Bell

Planning and Development Director

Planning and Development Department, Guilford County Government
400 West Market Street

Greensboro, NC 27401

Project Name: Stewart Mill Retail 100 kilovolt Substation Project

Subject: Special Use Permit Application for Guilford County

Dear Director Bell,

On behalf of Duke Energy Carolinas (Duke Energy), please consider the accompanying materials in our
application for a Special Use Permit in Guilford County. These materials include the Special Use Permit
application and a Statement of Justification describing the need for the project, the details of the project, and
exhibits including diagrams of proposed structures and maps detailing the location and extent of the project.

Regards,

Thomas D Hahn Jonathan Schultis

Siting Lead Client and Account Manager
859-409-0131 804-426-3455

Tom.Hahn@jacobs.com Jonathan.schultis@jacobs.com




GUILFORD COUNTY Planning Board

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT Special Use Permit

Application

Date Submitted: _3/7/2023 Fee $526.00 Receipt # Case Number _ 2>03-PLPB-00039

(includes $26 recording fee)

Provide the required information as indicated below. Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance (UDQ), this application will not be
processed until application fees are paid; the form below is completed and signed; and all required maps, plans and documents have been submitted to the satisfaction of
the Enforcement Officer. Additional sheets for tax references and signature blocks are available upon request.

Pursuant to Section 3.5.Q of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), the undersigned hereby requests Guilford County to

authorize a Special Use Permit for the property described as being located _1872 Andrew Farms Road

in Jefferson Township; Being a total of: 12.54 acres. The property is in

the Agricultural (AG) Zoning District. The proposed use(s) is (are) _an electric substation, a Major utility

Further referenced by the Guilford County Tax Department as:

TaxParcel # 2 2 9 0 8 6 Tax Parcel #
Tax Parcel # Tax Parcel #
Tax Parcel # Tax Parcel #

Additional sheets for tax parcels are available upon request.

Check One:
The property requested for a Special Use Permit is an entire parcel or parcels as shown on the Guilford County
Tax Map.
I:‘ The property requested for a Special Use Permit is a portion of a parcel or parcels as shown on the Guilford

County Tax Map; a written legal description of the property and/or a map are attached with dimensions and
bearings.
Check One:
Public services (i.e. water and sewer) are not requested or required.
Public services (i.e. water and sewer) are requested or required; the approval letter is attached.
Check One:
[ ] The applicant is the property owner(s)

The applicant is an agent representing the property owner(s); the letter of property owner permission is attached.

The applicant has an option to purchase or lease the property; a copy of the offer to purchase or lease to be

submitted if the owner’s signature is not provided (financial figures may be deleted).
Special Use Permit Requirements:

Site Plan. A site plan illustrating conditions related to the request and compliance with applicable development
standards must be attached for all Special Use Permit requests. Refer to Appendix 2, Map Standards of the
Unified Development Ordinance (UDO).

[] Special Use Conditions. Development conditions may be provided, list on following page. Refer to uses as
listed in Table 4-3-1 of the Guilford County Development Ordinance. If conditions are not proposed, indicate
‘not applicable’.

[ ] Review Factor. Applicant must demonstrate that the review factors listed in section 3.5 .Q.3(g) of the UDO
are adequately addressed.

Application Special Use Permit Page 1 of 3
Revised 04/28/2021
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GUILFORD COUNTY Planning Board

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT Special Use Permit
Application

Please address the following and be prepared to present as sworn or affirmed testimony and evidence for the
scheduled quasi—judicial hearing:

1. A written application was submitted and is complete in all respects.
I:‘ 2. That the use will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located where proposed and developed according to

the plan submitted. This conclusion is based the following:
The proposed use has been designed with the latest safety and operational protocols; the proposed use has an 8-foot-

tall perimeter fence; the proposed use will reduce power outages eXperienced by Duke Energy customers; the pro-

posed use will not produce any air emissions; no environmental features are present within the proposed location that

could be adversely affected.

I:‘ 3. The use, a _ ¢lectric substation , for which the Special Use Permit is sought, is in conformance with all

special requirements applicable to this use. The use meets all required conditions and specifications. This is based on the
following:

The proposed use has been designed to follow the most up to date safety and operational protocols while also preventing

environmental contamination; the proposed use has been designed to follow County setback and tree preservation

requirements; the proposed use is necessary for the County to maintain a reliable electric supply; and the proposed use

will have adequate visual screening and noise dampening so as not to injure the value of adjoining or abutting property.

[]4. That the location and character of the use, if developed according to the plan submitted, will be in harmony with the area

in which it is to be located and is in general conformity with the plan of development of the Jurisdiction and its environs.
This is based on the following:

The proposed use is necessary to support development in the area and to provide a reliable electric supplv to the County.

The proposed use is compatible with nearby uses, such as the recently approved West River Solar 470-acre solar farm.

All County setback and tree preservation requirements have been implemented into the use's design, and remaining for-

est cover at the proposed site will help "blend" the proposed use into it's environs.

I:‘ 5. The use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting property or the use is a public necessity. This is based
on the following:

The proposed use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property because it has been designed to follow County

setback and tree preservation requirements; the proposed use has also been designed to provide adequate screening and

noise dampening. The proposed use is necessary for the County to maintain a reliable electric supply and promote development.

Application Special Use Permit Page 2 of 3
Revised 04/28/2021
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Jonathan Schultis, Principal in Charge for Jacobs on behalf of Duke Energy
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2 Crowne Point Court
Cincinnati, OH 45241
United States

www.jacobs.com

March 3, 2023

J. Leslie Bell, Planning and Development Director

Planning and Development Department, Guilford County Government
400 West Market Street

Greensboro, NC 27401

Subject: Special Use Permit Application Statement of Justification for the Stewart Mill Retail
100-kilovolt Substation Project

Dear Director Bell:

On behalf of Duke Energy Carolinas (Duke Energy), Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc. (Jacobs), is respectfully
submitting a Special Use Permit Application for the Stewart Mill Retail 100-kilovolt (kV) Substation Project
(Project). The Project involves construction of a new electric substation in Guilford County, North Carolina,
approximately 9 miles southeast of the city of Greensboro. The proposed substation will provide
additional capacity to alleviate demand on the Kimesville Retail Substation Circuit 1201, which is expected
to be at capacity by 2026. This new substation will be constructed to meet current reliability and safety
standards. The additional regional electric supply enabled by the Project will support continued economic
growth, helping to sustain an efficient and resilient economy in the County. This application provides a
statement of justification for building a new 100-kV transmission-to-distribution substation that will
occupy approximately 1.91 acres of land on a 12.54-acre parcel currently held by a private landowner.
Exhibit 1 (exhibits are at the end of the application) shows the Project location in an unincorporated area
of Guilford County outside the limits of the city of Greensboro.

The proposed facility—the subject of this Special Use Permit Application—is a three-bank transmission-
to-distribution substation and is approximately 278 by 185 feet (subject to final engineering). Exhibit 1
provides an overview of the study area, including nearby land features. Exhibit 2 shows the Guilford County
zoning districts affected by the Project. Exhibit 3 shows the location of the proposed Stewart Mill 100-kV
substation. Examples of the representative proposed substation and site plans are shown on Exhibit 4.

l. STATEMENT OF JUSTIFICATION

The Stewart Mill Retail 100-kV Substation is a Duke Energy development project designed to relieve the
electrical demand on the Kimesville Retail Substation Circuit 1201, which is anticipated to reach capacity
in 2026. New development in eastern-central Guilford County, driven by its proximity to Interstate (1)-85,
includes approved plans for two proposed planned unit developments (PUDs), which will add both
residential and nonresidential development. These PUDs will ultimately lead to potential load growth in
the area beyond what the existing infrastructure has the capacity to provide. The Project involves
constructing a new three-bank substation that will sustain current service reliability and add additional
capacity for future growth.



J. Leslie Bell, Planning and Development Director
March 3, 2023
Page 2 of 11

A. Regulatory Compliance

Duke Energy is an Electric Utility as defined in Chapter 46 of the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of
1978, 16 United States Code Section (“8") 2602(4). Electric utility companies operating in North Carolina
are regulated by the North Carolina Utilities Commission (NCUC). According to North Carolina General
Statute (G.S.) § 62-3(23), a public utility is defined as an entity that owns and operates facilities for
producing, generating, transmitting, delivering, or furnishing electricity to the public. Under G.S. §
62-101(a), no public utility may begin to construct a new facility without obtaining a Certificate of Public
Convenience and Necessity (Certificate). However, according to G.S. 8 62-101(c)(1), substations and
transmission line components energized to less than 161 kV are not required to obtain a Certificate.
Therefore, because the Stewart Mill Substation will be energized to 100 kV, it will not require a Certificate
from the NCUC.

Instead, Duke Energy will seek authorization for the development of this Project from the local
government (Guilford County). The North Carolina General Assembly established in G.S. § 160D-103 that
local governments may combine any authorized regulations in the Chapter into a unified ordinance, as
Guilford County has done in its Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). This statute authorizes the County
to use any organizational structure, board, commission, or staffing arrangement it deems necessary in its
UDO. Further, G.S. 8§ 160D-301, allows the County to appoint, compensate, and designate duties to its
planning board. These duties may include preparing and maintaining a comprehensive plan, facilitating
citizen engagement in the planning process, developing policies, and providing a preliminary forum for
review of quasi-judicial decisions, as Guilford County does through its Planning and Development Board.

Local governments are required to have a comprehensive plan (or land use plan) prior to adopting and
applying zoning regulations, according to G.S. § 160D-501. Guilford County addresses this requirement by
designating the duty of preparing and maintaining a comprehensive plan to its Planning Board. Under
state statutes, a comprehensive plan establishes goals, policies, and programs to guide the present and
future physical, social, and economic development of the jurisdiction. A comprehensive plan may address
acceptable levels of public services and infrastructure to support utility development. By supporting
appropriate levels of utilities development, a jurisdiction can advance the broader goals of its plan, namely
furthering social and economic growth.

According to G.S. § 160D-702, once a jurisdiction meets the requirement of G.S. § 160D-501 and adopts a
comprehensive plan, it can then adopt zoning regulations. A zoning regulation may regulate and restrict
the height, number of stories, and size of buildings and other structures; the percentage of lots that may
be occupied; the size of yards, courts, and other open spaces; the density of population; and the location
and use of buildings, structures, and land.

North Carolina recognizes the importance of balancing private and public interests. In support of this goal,
G.S. 8 160D-108 prevents a local government from taking any action that would prevent, impair, or delay
development of property as allowed under applicable regulations.

In this statement of justification, we will demonstrate that the Project is consistent with the applicable

regulations in the North Carolina G.S., the Guilford County UDO, and the Guilford County Comprehensive
Plan as they relate to obtaining approval for a Special Use Permit.

230213131030_b5d67c3f
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B. Stewart Mill Retail-100-kV Substation — Project Overview and Purpose

Duke Energy is seeking approval of a Special Use Permit from the Guilford County Planning and
Development Department to develop a new substation at the intersection of McConnell Road and Andrew
Farms Road. The Project consists of a three-bank substation to alleviate demand on the Kimesville Retail
Substation Circuit 1201.

Portions of the Kimesville Retail Line, notably Circuit 1201 and Bank 01, are anticipated to reach
maximum capacity in 2026. Circuit 1201 peaked in the winter of 2017/18 during extreme cold
temperatures. By the winter of 2026, it is anticipated that the increased demand on the substation will not
be met under cold weather conditions because the circuit will be at 100 percent of its capacity of 600
amps. Additional analyses conducted by Duke Energy demonstrated that Bank 01 is overloaded because it
has a high-water content and therefore has been de-rated (restricted to a lower capacity). Accordingly, the
primary reason for the proposed Project is to relieve the electrical demand on the Kimesville Retail
Substation Circuit 1201.

The proposed Project is near the -85 corridor in Guilford County, which is seeing an influx of residential
and industrial development. Recently, plans have been approved for two proposed PUDs and a 470-acre
solar facility. The PUDs are expected to bring up to 2,030 new residences to the area in the form of single-
family homes and townhomes. These new developments will increase regional load growth. The proposed
Project aims to alleviate the demand on the existing circuits from the pending new developments.

To a lesser extent, the proposed Project would alleviate demand on the Tabernacle Church Retail
Substation that is approximately 1.5 miles west of the proposed location. Stewart Mill would also connect
with Kildare Retail Circuit 2405, which would immediately improve electrical reliability for the customers it
serves.

The proposed Project site was selected because it is the closest to the load center (2,474 feet), requires
the shortest length of distribution lines to be improved or created, does not require a property subdivision,
and has no known environmental features present. Distribution would exit the site south toward
McConnell Road and tap existing lines along the road (Exhibit 4).

In Guilford County, public utilities seeking to construct an electric substation are classified as a “major
utility” and are required to apply for and obtain a Special Use Permit. Major utilities are permitted in all
zoning districts with the Special Use Permit. Therefore, we are seeking to obtain a Special Use Permit as
cited in Subsection 3.5.Q of Section 15 of the Guilford County Code.

I DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED SITE AND USE

A. Proposed Site Location

The proposed Project site is approximately 9 miles southeast of the city of Greensboro in a rapidly
developing area. The Project area is approximately 1.25 miles south of I-85 and I-40. McConnell Road is
400 feet to the south and Andrews Farm Road is 260 feet to the east of the proposed Project site. The
Project area is currently rural and undeveloped, consisting of a mix of residential, agricultural, and
industrial land uses.

230213131030_b5d67c3f
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B. Site Description

The proposed Project site (tax parcel number 229086) is approximately 12.54 acres and consists of one
parcel that is zoned agricultural (AG). The Project site is undeveloped and forested, consisting of mature
deciduous and evergreen trees. Residences to the south and east are within 750 feet of the proposed
substation site. The nearest water resource is approximately 0.11 mile to the west of the site. The Project is
not anticipated to affect this water resource.

The Project site parcel abuts AG zoning districts to the north and west, and an Agricultural Special (AG-SP)
zoning district to the northwest (all parcels are forested and undeveloped). McConnell Road and Andrew
Farms Road form the parcel’s southern and eastern boundaries, respectively. Vegetation on the eastern,
western, and northern sides of the Project allows for a natural buffer between the substation and nearby
residences for noise, light, and visual screening.

[Il.  DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED USE

A. Type of operation: Three-bank, 100-kV substation.
B. Station dimensions (Exhibit 4): 278 by 185 feet.
C. Access roads: Two access roads, each approximately 200 feet long and 24 feet wide.

D. Station components: Transformers, regulators and associated circuit breakers, and electrical
metering components. Station includes a control room with an underground oil-water separator
system.

E. Hours of operation: 24 hours per day.

F. Service area of the proposed use: The proposed substation will serve local and regional load in
Guilford County.

G. Maintenance requirements and frequency: Maintenance is anticipated to be minimal and will
include occasional inspection and tree trimming.

IV.  ANTICIPATED IMPACTS ON ADJOINING PROPERTIES

A. Traffic impacts: The proposed substation site will not generate permanent vehicle traffic in the
area. During construction, temporary impacts from construction traffic may be noticeable but will
not result in a permanent impact on the area’s transportation network.

B. Noise and light impacts: The proposed substation will be constructed in 2026 and is expected to
take 8 months to complete. During substation construction, noise will be generated by
construction equipment and activities. The substation site will be cleared of tree cover prior to
foundation excavation, and trucks will be used to haul excess soils that cannot be stockpiled or
disposed of onsite. Once substation construction is complete, lighting for the substation will only
be on at night. Noise (in decibels or dB) generated by the operation of the substation will peak at
approximately 60 dB with levels typically lower during normal operation. This peak dB level is
audible from up to 200 feet away. The nearest residence is approximately 400 feet from the
proposed substation. The distance and remaining forest cover is expected to dampen any noise

230213131030_b5d67c3f
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generated from the substation’s operation. No new or additional impacts are expected from
regular operation of the substation.

C. Impacts on environmental features of the site: The proposed substation site is on a parcel large
enough to accommodate Duke Energy’s standard three-bank substation design. The proposed
substation has been designed to protect water quality and provide erosion and sedimentation
controls pursuant to applicable regulatory standards. There are no wetlands, waterbodies, or
floodplains within the proposed substation site. Total land disturbance for the substation
construction will be approximately 5 acres, which consists of the substation site and limits-of-
impact (LOI) required for the Project. The Project will require clearing approximately 5 acres of
tree cover.

D. Impacts on air and water quality: Air quality permitting is not required for the Project because the
construction and operation of the proposed substation site will not produce air emissions. There
are no wetlands, waterbodies, or floodplains within the proposed substation site or LOI. Water
quality will be preserved by establishing erosion and sedimentation controls during proposed
substation construction.

E. Visual impacts: The proposed substation site will have minimal visual impact on the surrounding
area because of the existing tree canopy surrounding the proposed substation site. The remaining
tree canopy (approximately 7 acres) surrounding the substation site will provide adequate visual
screening for residences adjacent to the proposed substation site along McConnell Road and
Andrew Farms Road. Approximately 260 feet of tree canopy will remain between the substation
LOI and the western side of Andrew Farms Road after tree clearing. The existing tree canopy on
the northern side of McConnell Road will be cleared to accommodate access into the substation.
Existing tree canopy on the southern side of McConnell Road will not be cleared and will provide
visual screening for adjacent residences.

F. Construction impacts: Temporary impacts will occur during the 8-month construction period.
These impacts include (but are not limited to) increased traffic, land disturbance, and noise
generated from excavation and tree clearing. To mitigate these impacts, Duke Energy will pursue
all necessary permitting required for the construction and implement best management practices
during site construction, including operating during normal business hours. The following best
management practices will be implemented:

a. Traffic and flagger plan

b. Daily street sweeping and sediment removal

c. Perimeter controls, including filler sock and silt fencing

d. Temperature and permeability stabilization by seeding disturbed ground

e. Schedule controls, including operating during normal business hours

f. Dust controls via concrete washouts

230213131030_b5d67c3f
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V.  GUILFORD COUNTY CODE AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
CONFORMANCE

Duke Energy asserts that the substation is in compliance with the Guilford County Code and the Guilford
County Comprehensive Plan. This section describes how the Project is consistent with applicable county
statutes and how it will benefit the community by improving electric service reliability for Duke Energy
customers in the Guilford County area.

Subsection — 12 Definitions under Section 15-56 of the UDO defines a major utility as follows:

Infrastructure services providing regional or community-wide service that normally entail the
construction of new buildings or structures such as water towers, waste treatment plants, potable
water treatment plants, and electrical substations.

In Table 4.3-1, Permitted Use Schedule, of the Guilford County Code, major utilities are represented by an
“S” in every zoning classification. The “S” indicates that a Special Use Permit is required in accordance with
Guilford County Code Section 3.5.Q.

The Guilford County Code also details the review factors that applicants are required to address to
demonstrate a project’s general conformity with the UDO and County Code. Approval of the Special Use
Permit by the Guilford County Planning Board would show that the proposed Project meets the statutory
requirements of Section 15-56 of the UDO in the Guilford County Code.

A. Purpose and Intent

According to the Guilford County Comprehensive Plan, Goal 1 of the Future Land Use Element section is
the following:

Guilford County shall position itself to accommodate new growth and redevelopment that is efficient
and cost-effective; improves the quality of life for residents; enhances economic vitality; is respectful to
citizen based Areas Plans; supports creativity and innovative design; and protects and preserves the
natural, historic, and cultural resources and assets of the County.

The Project will benefit Guilford County by improving the overall reliability and connectivity of the electric
grid throughout the region. It is our understanding that plans for the two PUDs and the 470-acre solar
facility in the region have been approved (according to Planning Board staff reports posted on Guilford
County’s website, accessed February 3, 2023). In addition, the PUDs are expected to spur the development
of up to 2,030 new residences in the area. Given the extent of the planned future development and the
County’s stated goal of enhancing economic vitality, Duke Energy asserts that the Project is necessary to
accommodate the future electricity demands of the new development and to facilitate the growth of a
healthy and resilient economy in the region, while maintaining consistency with Guilford County’s future
land use goals.

B. Agricultural District and Code Conformance

The proposed substation will be constructed on a parcel zoned as AG. The substation has been designed
to conform with the required setbacks for an AG district parcel (Exhibit 4), and the remaining existing
mature forest cover will screen the substation on its eastern, western, and northern sides. The parcel has
not been designated as a voluntary AG district.

230213131030_b5d67c3f
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Duke Energy asserts that the Project is consistent with the land use provisions of this zone as outlined in
Section 4.2.1, AG — Agricultural District, of the Guilford County Code. The following discussion
demonstrates how the Project complies with the applicable sections of the UDO of the Guilford County
Code.

As stated in Section Il. A, the proposed Project parcel abuts AG zoning districts to the north and west and
an AG-SP zoning district to the northwest (all parcels are forested and vacant). McConnell Road and
Andrew Farms Road form the parcel’s southern and eastern boundaries, respectively. According to

Table 6-2-1, Planting Area Descriptions, of the UDO, a street planting yard is required parallel to a public
street. According to “F. Specific Screening Requirements” in Section 15-56 of the UDO, screening is
qualified as follows:

The following areas shall be screened from off-site views in accordance with this Section: .. .d. To the
extent feasible given access requirements, ground-based utility equipment in excess of twelve (12)
cubic feet.

According to site plans shown on Exhibit 4, the construction of distribution lines, poles, and associated
rights-of-way would preclude installation of street planting yards along McConnell Road directly in front
of the substation. Given the ordinance’s “to the extent feasible given access requirements” language, Duke
Energy asserts that it is not feasible or safe to install vegetative screening and buffering on McConnell
Road directly in front of the substation. Such vegetative screening would prevent access to the substation
and interfere with the operation and maintenance of the distribution structures; however, tree cover will
remain on either side of the distribution lines along McConnell Road, which will help blend the substation
into its environs (Exhibit 4). In addition, existing tree cover along the southern side of McConnell Road will
help screen the substation from residences on that side of the road.

Note 1 of Table 6-2-2, Planting Yard Chart, in Section 15-56 of the UDQ, clarifies standards regarding
trees:

A proposed nonresidential use in an AG Zoning District locating next to vacant property shall be
required to install a Type D planting yard.

However, according to “I. Tree Preservation” in Section 15-56 of the UDO, “any existing tree or group of
trees which stands within or near a required planting area and meets or exceeds the standards of this
Ordinance may be used to satisfy the tree requirements of the planting area.”

The approximately 5 acres of LOI required for the substation will allow for approximately 7 acres of trees
to remain on the parcel. The existing tree cover abutting these AG districts consists of mature deciduous
and evergreen trees that meet or exceed the standards set forth in Table 6-2-2: PLANTING YARD CHART.
On the parcel’s eastern edge, 260 feet of tree cover separates the substation from Andrew Farms Road
(Exhibit 4).
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C. Special Use Permit Application Conformance

The Guilford County’s Special Use Permit Guide states that applicants are required to demonstrate the
following:

1. That the use will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located where proposed
and developed according to the plan submitted. This is based on the following:

a. The substation has been designed with an 8-foot-tall perimeter fence with protective
3-strand barbed wire extension designed to prevent unauthorized entry and to
protect the public from potentially hazardous electrical equipment. The substation
has been designed with the latest safety and operational protocols.

b. The substation will reduce power outages and service interruptions experienced by
Duke Energy customers.

c. The substation has been designed and graded to prevent groundwater contamination
and erosion.

d. The substation will have adequate lighting within its perimeter and associated
response procedures that will allow for the detection of potential spills from oil-filled
electrical equipment.

e. The substation will not generate toxic or hazardous materials or any air emissions as a
result of its operation.

2. The use, an electric substation, for which the Special Use Permit is sought, is in conformance
with all special requirements applicable to this use. The use meets all required conditions and
specifications. This is based on the following:

a. Asshown in Exhibit 4, the required setbacks described in Section V. B, Agricultural
District and Code Conformance, have been incorporated into the substation design.

b. According to “I. Tree Preservation,” in Section 15-56 of the UDQ, “any existing tree or
group of trees which stands within or near a required planting area and meets or
exceeds the standards of this Ordinance may be used to satisfy the tree requirements
of the planting area [this ordinance, referring to Table 6-2-2: Planting Yard Chart].”
As demonstrated in Section V.B, the existing trees on the site meet the standards of
the UDO and thus satisfy the tree requirements of the planting area.

3. That the location and character of the use, if developed according to the plan submitted, will
be in harmony with the area in which it is to be located and is in general conformity with the
plan of development of the Jurisdiction and its environs. This is based on the following:

a. The Project is necessary to support the development of the area and to accommodate
the future power demands of the planned development.

b. Nearby similar uses include West River Solar’s recently approved 470-acre solar farm.
This solar project also required a Special Use Permit and was determined to be
compatible with surrounding uses.

230213131030_b5d67c3f
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c. Compatible use with the Kimesville Circuit 1201 as the proposed substation will
relieve the demand on the Kimesville Circuit 1201. The Kimesville Circuit 1201 is
approximately 0.66-mile southwest of the proposed substation.

d. Remaining forest cover (7 acres on the 12-acre parcel) on the parcel’s eastern,
western, and northern sides, as well as to either side of the distribution lines along
McConnell Road, will help blend the substation into its environs (Exhibit 4).

4. The use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting property or the use is a
public necessity. This is based on the following:

a. Once the substation has been constructed, there will be sufficient mature forest cover
to adequately screen the use on its eastern, western, and northern sides. No additional
noise, light, or traffic impacts are anticipated after construction is finished. Seven
acres of tree cover will remain on the parcel. Approximately 260 feet of tree cover will
separate the station from Andrew Farms Road to the east.

b. Noise generated by the operation of the substation will peak at approximately 60 dB
with levels typically lower during normal operation. This peak dB level is audible
from up to 200 feet away. The nearest residence is approximately 400 feet from the
proposed substation. The distance and remaining forest cover will dampen noise
generated from the substation’s operation.

c. Atthe parcel’s southern end, the substation will be set back from McConnell Road
approximately 200 feet. The substation is approximately 330 feet from the nearest
residential zone. There will be adequate remaining forest cover (approximately
260 feet) between the substation and this residential zone to visually screen and
noise-dampen the substation.

VI.  CONCLUSION

This statement of justification describes the necessary construction of a substation in Guilford County to
accommodate future power demands and sustain service reliability. Electric substations require a Special
Use Permit in all zoning districts of Guilford County in accordance with Section 3.5.Q of the Guilford
County Code. Duke Energy asserts that the proposed construction of the substation is in conformance with
the applicable sections of the Guilford County Code, the UDO, Guilford Comprehensive Plan, the existing
zoning districts, and the North Carolina General Statutes. For the reasons set forth herein, Duke Energy
respectfully requests the approval of this application.

In light of the statement of justification described herein, Jacobs respectfully asks that the Guilford County
Planning and Development Department accept the submission of this application package. If you have any

230213131030_b5d67c3f
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questions on this submittal, please feel free to contact Tom Hahn at Tom.Hahn@jacobs.com, (859) 409-
0131, or me at Jonathan.Schultis@jacobs.com, (804) 426-3455.

Respectfully Submitted,

Thomas D. Hahn Jonathan W. Schultis, AICP

Siting Lead Siting and Permitting Program Lead
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First Amendment to Contract to Sell and Purchase Real Estate

This First Amendment to Contract to Sell and Purchase Real Estate (“Amendment”) is entered
into as of November 30, 2022 (“Amendment Date”) between Deborah G. Jones and spouse,
William Shannon Jones (collectively, “Seller”), and Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC, a North
Carolina limited liability company (“Buyer”).

A. Seller and Buyer are parties to the Contract to Sell and Purchase Real Estate with an
effective date of June 3, 2022 (“Contract”), under which Seller has agreed to sell to Buyer, and Buyer
has agreed to purchase from Seller, certain real property located in Guilford County, North Carolina,
as more particularly set forth in the Contract. Any capitalized term used, but not defined, in this
Amendment has the meaning given in the Contract.

B. Seller and Buyer desire to amend the Contract as set forth in this Amendment.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, and other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Buyer
and Seller amend the Contract as follows:

1. Investigation Period. The Investigation Period currently expires on November 30,
2022. As of the Effective Date, the Investigation Period is extended and shall expire on March 30,
2023.

2. Purchase Price. In consideration of Seller’s agreement to extend the Investigation
Period:

3. Closing Date. Paragraph 8 of the Contract is hereby amended to delete “December 29,
2022 and to replace it with “the date that is thirty (30) days after the final day of the Investigation
Period.”

4. No Further Changes. Except as amended hereby, the Contract shall remain in full
force and effect. To the extent any of the terms of the Contract conflict with this Amendment, this
Amendment shall control. This Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts and may
be signed electronically. Signed counterparts transmitted by email shall constitute originals.

[Signature Page Follows]
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Seller and Buyer have executed this Amendment as of the Amendment Date.

Seller:
DocuSigned by:

Diberale. &, Jonas

TOOTTOAZ2EALIFS..
Deborah G. Jones

DocuSigned by:

Nilliam Shavasi Jonrs

- ?CIE)??OAZQSAA:lFQ. .
William Shannon Jones

Buyer:

Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC,
a North Carolina limited liability company

DocuSigned by:

By: €ne ). Rouse

1131;’93?3839419...
Eric J. Rouse

Director, Land Services
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SPECIAL USE PERMIT CASE #23-03-PLBD-00039: ENERGY SUBSTATION (MAIJOR UTILITY); 1872
ANDREWS FARM RD

Property Information

Located at 1872 Andrews Farm Road (Guilford County Tax Parcel #229086 in Jefferson Township),
at the northwest intersection of McConnell Road, and comprises approximately 12.53 acres. The
subject parcel is zoned AG, Agricultural.

Zoning History of Denied Cases: There is no history of deniedcases.

Nature of the Request

This is a request for approval of a Special Use Permit for an Energy Substation and the associated
Sketch Site Plan. Energy substations are allowed as a Major Utility in the AG district pursuant to
the Guilford County Unified Development Ordinance.

Character of the Area

The subject parcel is in an area that is mainly single-family residential on subdivided lots and
includes a major residential subdivision off Andrews Farm Road. A 95-acre tract west of the site
is undeveloped but hasan approved Special Use Permit for.a Solar Collector Principal.

Existing Land Use(s) on the Property: Undeveloped

Surrounding Uses:
North: Undeveloped
South: Single-family dwellings on subdivided lots of 1 or more acres
East: Single-family residential subdivision with lots of 1 acre or less
West: Undeveloped land, single-family dwelling on more than 10 acres, and a 95-acre
undeveloped tract that is part of an approved SUP (Case #21-05-GCPL-04192) for a Solar
Collector Principal on approximately 470 acres

Historic Properties: There are no inventoried historic landmarks located on or adjacent to the
subject property.

Cemeteries: No cemeteries are shown to be located on the subject property, but efforts should
be made to rule out the potential of unknown grave sites.

Infrastructure and Community Facilities

Emergency Response:
Fire Protection District: Mount Hope FPSD

Miles from Fire Station: Approximately 3.9 miles



Water and Sewer Services:
Provider: Individual well and septic

Within Service Area: No

Feasibility Study or Service Commitment: No

Transportation:
Existing Conditions: Minor thoroughfare, 1,000 Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT) on
McConnell Road east of Mt. Hope Church Rd.

Proposed Improvements: NCDOT Commercial Driveway Permit will be required

Projected Traffic Generation: No data available

Environmental Assessment
Topography: Gently sloping

Regulated Floodplain/Wetlands:
There is no regulated floodplain on the property. There areno mapped wetlands on the property.

Streams and Watershed:
This property is located in the Lake Mackintosh (Big Alamance Creek) WS-IV Water Supply
Watershed in the General Watershed Area. There are no mapped streams on the property.

Land Use Analysis

Land Use Plan: Rock Creek Area.Plan
Plan Recommendation: AG Rural Residential

Consistency:

The zoning designation for the subject parcel is AG, Agricultural. The AG district is recognized as
consistent with the AG Rural Residential designation in the Rock Creek Area Plan. Electric
substations are major utilities and are allowed in the AG district with an approved Special Use
Permit.

Review Factors: Article 3.Q.G from the Guilford County UDO

The applicant shall demonstrate that the review factors listed below have been adequately
addressed.
1. Circulation: Number and location of access points to the property and the proposed
structures and uses, with particular reference to automotive, pedestrian safety, traffic flow
and control, and access in case of emergency. Per the associated sketch plan in this
application, access will be from McConnell Road. An NCDOT commercial driveway permit
will be required during the official commercial site plan review process.



2. Parking and Loading: Location of off-street parking and loading areas. Parking for an
Energy Substation is subject to Section 6.1.D, Table 6-1-1: Parking Requirements for Major
Utilities under the Utilities & Communications Use Category of the Guilford County UDO.

3. Service Entrances and Areas: Locations of refuse and service areas with adequate access
for services vehicles. Locations of service areas will be reviewed to allow for adequate access
for all service vehicles when the official site plan is submitted for review per Section 6.1 in
the Guilford County UDO. An approved NCDOT Commercial Driveway Permit is required as
part of the site plan review process.

4. Lighting: Location of lighting with reference to spillage & glare, motorist & pedestrian
traffic safety, and compatibility with other property in the area. A lighting plan, if required,
will be presented when the official site plan is submitted for review per Section 6.3 of the
Guilford County UDO.

5. Utilities: Location and availability of utilities (public or private). Septic evaluation will be
regulated by the Guilford County Environmental Health Department upon site plan review
by TRC or appropriate staff. Utility easements will be reviewed at TRC or by appropriate
staff.

6. Open Spaces: Location of required street yards and other open spaces and preservation
of existing trees and other natural features (where applicable). Landscape requirements will
be reviewed at TRC or by appropriate staff per Article 6.2 of the Guilford County UDO.

7. Environmental Protection: Provisions to protect floodplains, stream buffers, wetlands,
watersheds, open space and other natural features. Environmental regulations will be
reviewed by Guilford County’s Watershed/Stormwater Section at TRC or by appropriate
staff to meet all environmental regulations per Article 9 of the Guilford County UDO.

8. _landscaping, Buffering & Screening: Installation of landscaping, fencing or berming for
the purpose of buffering and screening where necessary to provide visual screening where
appropriate. A landscape buffer in the form of a Type C Planting Yard (min. width 15’, avg
width 20’, max width 40’) will be required per Section 5.14 (D) in the Guilford County UDO
and shown on the official site plan.

9. Effect on Nearby Properties: Effects of the proposed use on nearby properties, including,
but not limited to, the effects of noise, odor, lighting, and traffic. Lighting plan requirements
will be required and reviewed at TRC or by appropriate staff per Article 6.3 of the Guilford
County UDO.

10. Compatibility: The general compatibility with nearby properties, including but not limited
to the scale, design, and use in relationship to other properties. Energy Substations (Major
Utility) as a nonresidential use and being surrounded by residentially-zoned properties
(which include Agricultural) are required to have Type C landscape buffers along the
perimeter of the facility. The adjacent Parcel 120643 fronting on Mt. Hope Church Road is a
95-acre tract that is part of Special Use Permit Case #21-05-GCPL-04192, which is approved
for a Solar Collector Principal on approximately 470 acres.



Staff Comments

During consideration of a Special Use Permit, the Planning Board must determine that the
following Findings of Fact have been satisfied based upon relevant and credible evidence
presented during the hearing:

1. A written application was submitted and is complete in all respects;

2. That the use will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located where
proposed and developed according to the plan submitted;

3. The use, Energy Substation (Major Utility) subjectto the submitted Sketch Site Plan along
with the following proposed conditions: (as presented or agreed to by applicant), for
which the Special Use Permit is sought, is in.conformance with all special requirements
applicable to this use. The use meets all required conditions and specifications;

4. That the location and character of the use, if developed according to the plan submitted,
will be in harmony with the area in which'it is to be located and is in general conformity
with the plan of development of the Jurisdiction and its environs; and

5. That the use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting property, or
that the use is a public necessity.

After reviewing the proposed development plan for this request, staff offers the following for
Planning Board consideration:

1. The development of the parcel shall comply with all regulations as specified in the
Guilford County Unified Development Ordinance (GCUDO).

2. The development shall proceed in conformity with all amended plans and design features
submitted as part of the Special Use Permit Application and kept on file by the Guilford
County Planning and Development Department.

3. The development shall proceed upon approval of plan and design features by the
Technical Review Committee (TRC), illustrating conditions related to the request and
applicable development standards.

4. Added conditions if applicable.

5. If the specified conditions addressed in this Special Use Permit are violated, the permit
shall be revoked, and the use will no longer be allowed. Only by reapplying to the Planning
Board for another Special Use Permit and receiving its approval can the use be again
permitted.



TRC Comments on 1872 ANDREWS FARM Road Sketch Plan Duke Energy
Transfer Station

Planning Comments: (Oliver Bass, 641-3578)

1. Specify the proposed use as “Energy Transfer Station
(Major Utility” in the application and on the site plan. A
Special Use Permit i1s required In any district, including
the AG district.

2. Major utilities must comply with Development Standards
under Section 5.14.D of UDO.

3. Show location of at least 6’ high fence around the
facility on SUP site plan.

4. As a nonresidential use, minimum Type C planting yard
required along adjacent AG zoned properties. Site 1s
subject to 8’ street planting yard requirements.

5. Any proposed condition must be noted or i1llustrated on SUP
sketch plan.

6. After SUP is approved by Planning Board, applicant must
submit a formal detailed major site plan for review before
any development permits can be issued.

7. TRC comments do not constitute a recommendation of
approval on the SUP request to the Planning Board.

Building Comments: (Jim Lankford, 641-3321)
1. No comments at this time.

Watershed Comments: (Brent Gatlin, 641-3753)

1. Water Supply Watershed = Lake Mackintosh WS-1V, GWA

a. Max Allowable BUA (low density) = 24%

b. Max Allowable BUA (high density) = 70% (SCM required)

c. Gravel areas are considered BUA (impervious).

d. The site as shown on sketch is considered low-density
development and will not require a Stormwater Control
Measure (SCM) if the SUP applies to the entire parcel
and BUA remains below 24%. Note, some SUPs only apply
to a portion of a parcel and in those cases the % BUA
would need to be calculated based on defined SUP
area.

2. Include BUA calculations on Site Plan and results on the
Guilford County Site Plan Cover Sheet - Stormwater
Management / Watershed Protection information. Sign/seal
Cover Sheet and Site Plan set when submitted.

3. No new Drainage Easements are anticipated based on
GIS/LIDAR topo.

4. There are no mapped/buffered streams per USGS or Soil
Survey Map on the site.

5. There is no regulated floodplain on the site.




Community Services Comments: (Clyde Harding, 641-3792)
No Comments

Environmental Health Comments: (John Nykamp, 641-4807)
No comments

Fire Marshal Comments: (Michael Townsend, 641-6541)

No comments

NCDOT Comments: (Bobby Norris, 487-0100)
Commercial driveway permit will be required.

Addressing Comments: (Melissa Jones, 641-4877)

- The existing address 1872 Andrews Farm Road will need to be
changed to reflect the new access from McConnell Road.

- The new address will be 5049 McConnell Road.
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SPECIAL USE PERMIT #23-03-PLBD-00039: ENERGY SUBSTATION (MAJOR UTILITY); 1872 ANDREWS
FARM RD

GUILFORD COUNTY PLANNING BOARD
ORDER (GRANTING/DENYING) A SPECIAL USE PERMIT

The Guilford County Planning Board, having held an Evidentiary Hearing on April 12, 2023, to consider
a request for a Special Use Permit for an Energy Substation (Major Utility) subject to the submitted
Sketch Site Plan along with the following proposed conditions (no conditions listed, list if subsequently
presented and accepted) for the property located at 1872 Andrews Farm Road (Guilford County Tax
Parcel #229086 in Jefferson Township) at the northwest intersection of McConnell Road and comprises
approximately 12.53 acres, having heard all of the evidence and arguments presented at the
Evidentiary Hearing, makes the following FINDINGS OF FACTS and draws the following CONCLUSIONS:

1. A written application was submitted and [is/is not] complete in all respects.

2. That the use [will/will not] materially endanger the public health or safety if located where
proposed and developed according to the plan submitted. This conclusion is based on sworn
testimony and evidence submitted during the Evidentiary Hearing which shows the following:

3. The use, an Energy Substation (Major Utility), for which the Special Use Permit is sought, [is/is not] in
conformance with all special requirements applicable to this use. The use meets all required
conditions and specifications. This is based on sworn testimony and evidence submitted during the
Evidentiary Hearing which shows the following:

4. That the location and character of the use, if developed according to the plan submitted, [will /will
not] be in harmony with the area in which it is to be located and [is/is not] in general conformity
with the plan of development of the Jurisdiction and its environs. This is based on sworn testimony
and evidence submitted during the Evidentiary Hearing which shows the following:




5. The use [will/will not] substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting property, or the use is
a public necessity. This is based on sworn testimony and evidence submitted during the Evidentiary
Hearing which shows the following:

THEREFORE, on the basis of all the foregoing, IT IS ORDERED that the application for a SPECIAL USE
PERMIT for an Energy Substation (Major Utility) be [denied/granted] subject to the following:

1. The development of the parcel shall comply with all regulations as specified in the Unified
Development Ordinance (UDO).

2. The development shall proceed in conformity with all amended plans and design features
submitted as part of the Special Use Permit Application and kept on file by the Guilford County
Planning and Development Department.

3. The development shall proceed upon approval of plan and design features by the Technical Review
Committee (TRC), illustrating conditions related to the request and applicable development
standards.

4. Added conditions, if applicable.

5. If the specified conditions addressed in this Special Use Permit are violated, the permit shall be
revoked and the use will no longer be allowed. Only by reapplying to the Planning Board for another
Special Use Permit and receiving its approval can the use be again permitted.
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